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LANDMINE PROBLEM WHY IS IT NECESSARY TO HAVE A CAMPAIGN TO CLEAR MINEFIELDS? LANDMINES CONTINUE TO EFFECT MANY COMMUNITIES WELL AFTER HOSTILITIES HAVE CEASED; ONE THIRD OF ALL VICTIMS ARE CHILDREN. THE PRESENCE OF LANDMINES CAN ALSO HINDER THE REDEVELOPMENT OF A COUNTRY AND ITS ECONOMY FOR MANY YEARS AFTER A CONFLICT. 
THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN THE GROUND IN AT LEAST 90 COUNTRIES. LANDMINES REPORTEDLY MAIM OR KILL 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR. THOSE WHO SURVIVE ENDURE A LIFETIME OF PHYSICAL, PSYCHOLOGICAL, AND ECONOMIC HARDSHIP. LOCAL COMMUNITIES IN LANDMINE-AFFECTED COUNTRIES OFTEN DO NOT HAVE THE RESOURC-
ES TO CLEAR THEIR OWN LAND AND TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE CARE FOR THEIR LANDMINE SURVIVORS. THEY DEPEND PRIMARILY UPON FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM GOVERNMENTS, INTERNATIONAL AND NON GOVERNMENTAL ORGANISATIONS. WHAT IS MINE ACTION? MINE ACTION REFERS TO ALL THOSE ACTIVITIES, WHICH ADDRESS THE PROBLEMS FACED BY PEOPLE AS A 
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RESULT OF LANDMINE/UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO) CONTAMINATION. MINE ACTION IS NOT SO MUCH ABOUT LANDMINES, THOUGH, AS ABOUT PEOPLE AND THEIR INTERACTIONS WITH A MINE-CONTAMINATED ENVIRONMENT. IT AIMS TO RECREATE AN ENVIRONMENT IN WHICH PEOPLE CAN LIVE SAFELY, IN WHICH ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT CAN OCCUR FREE FROM CONSTRAINTS, AND IN WHICH LANDMINE SURVIVORS ARE FULLY INTEGRATED INTO THEIR SOCIETIES. MINE ACTION COMPRISES FIVE COMPLEMENTARY GROUPS OF ACTIVITIES: MINE RISK EDUCATION (MRE) THE EDUCATION PROCESS WHICH AIMS TO ENSURE THAT COMMUNITIES ARE NOT ONLY AWARE OF THE RISKS FROM LIVING IN PROXIMITY TO LANDMINES AND UXO, 
AND TO ENCOURAGE PEOPLE TO BEHAVE IN A WAY THAT REDUCES THE RISK TO PEOPLE, PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT. HUMANITARIAN DEMINING DEMINING ACTIVITIES WHICH LEAD TO THE REMOVAL OF LANDMINE AND UXO HAZARDS, INCLUDING TECHNICAL SURVEY, MAPPING, CLEARANCE, MARKING, POST-CLEARANCE DOCUMENTATION, COMMUNITY MINE ACTION LIAISON AND THE HANDOVER OF CLEARED LAND. DEMINING MAY BE EMERGENCY-BASED OR DEVELOPMENTAL. SURVIVOR ASSISTANCE REFERS TO ALL AID, RELIEF, COMFORT AND SUPPORT PROVIDED SURVIVORS WITH THE PURPOSE OF REDUCING THE IMMEDIATE AND LONG-TERM MEDICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL IMPLICATIONS OF THEIR TRAUMA. STOCKPILE DESTRUCTION 
ARTICLE 4 OF THE MINE BAN TREATY (MBT) REQUIRES THAT SIGNATORIES UNDERTAKE TO DESTROY OR ENSURE THE DESTRUCTION OF ALL STOCKPILED ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES IT OWNS OR POSSESSES, OR THAT ARE UNDER ITS JURISDICTION OR CONTROL, AS SOON AS POSSIBLE BUT NOT LATER THAN FOUR YEARS AFTER THE ENTRY INTO FORCE OF THE MBT FOR THAT STATE PARTY. ADVOCACY AGAINST THE USE OF ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES. IN THE CONTEXT OF MINE ACTION, THE TERM REFERS TO … PUBLIC SUPPORT, RECOMMENDATION OR POSITIVE PUBLICITY WITH THE AIM OF REMOVING, OR AT LEAST REDUCING, THE THREAT FROM, AND THE IMPACT OF, LANDMINES AND UXO. WHY CLEAR LANDMINES? THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE 
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Foreword

There is a significant public and political awareness of the mine problem in South East Europe (SEE) 

and the enormous impact that landmines have on safety, as well as on the humanitarian, economic and 

environmental development of the region. Slovenian Government has recognized its role in the SEE 

region 9 years ago by establishing the International Trust Fund for Demining and Mine Victims Assist-

ance (ITF). With its contribution of more than 4,9 million USD, Slovenia has greatly contributed to the 

increased stability and safer environment in the region of SEE. 

Since the start ITF has grown into an internationally recognized organization, supported by donations by 

more than 27 governments around the world and many other organizations, companies and individuals. 

ITF is now firmly set on the path to its main goal – South East Europe free of mines. With full coopera-

tion of the local authorities in all the countries of South East Europe, as well as international organiza-

tions and donors, ITF is optimistic that the maintenance of peace, reintegration of refugees/returnees and 

internally displaced persons, revitalization and economic development of SEE can become a reality.

Extensive experience and practice in Mine Action that has been accumulating in ITF for the past 9 years 

on one hand and successful operations and progress in the countries of SEE on the other, carried to deci-

sion to expand its activities also into other mine affected countries and regions. Lessons learned from 

regional cooperation through South East Europe Mine Action Coordination Council (SEEMACC) are 

being presented also to the representatives from other mine affected regions in order to apply positive ap-

proaches and to contribute to effectiveness, transparency, better use of resources and finally to confidence 

building between neighbouring countries. 

Finally, 2006 was a good year for ITF, not only in terms of fundraising, where ITF succeeded to raise 

more than 30 million USD, but also on the national, regional and international level. Therefore, I would 

like to express my deepest gratitude for all the contributions and stakeholders’ cooperation with the ITF. 

And at the end, even though it probably goes without saying, allow me to express my gratitude to the 

arduous and enthusiastic ITF team for all their efforts. Only together the goals set can become a reality.

Roman Kolar

Chairman of ITF Managing Board
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OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN 90 COUNTRIES. THESE REPORTEDLY KILL OR INJUR 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR.  IT IS HOWEVER DIFFICULT TO OBTAIN ACCURATE STATISTICS.  WE WON’T KNOW HOW MANY LANDMINES THERE ARE IN THE GROUND UNTIL WE’VE ACTUALLY FOUND THEM, AND MANY LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE NOT REPORTED BECAUSE THEY HAPPEN IN REMOTE 
AREAS AND HEALTH CENTRES DON’T EVEN FIND OUT ABOUT THEM. THIS IMPACT GOES FAR BEYOND PHYSICAL INJURY AND DEATH – IT INCLUDES VIRTUALLY EVERY ASPECT OF LIFE AND PREVENTS MINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITIES FROM FULLY RECOVERING AFTER ARMED CONFLICTS HAVE ENDED. ABOUT ONE THIRD OF ALL LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE CHILDREN.  MANY MORE 
LOSE PARENTS OR OTHER FAMILY MEMBERS AND SUDDENLY FIND THEMSELVES RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING FOR THE FAMILY. IN ADDITION, LANDMINES HINDER INFRASTRUCTURE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, THEY INCREASE A COUNTRY’S DEPENDENCY ON INTERNATIONAL AID, BLOCK THE DELIVERY OF RELIEF GOODS TO AREAS MOST IN NEED, PREVENT THE RETURN OF 
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Free affected land… 
reconstruct and develop. 



Introduction�

The International Trust Fund for Demining and 

Mine Victims Assistance (ITF) is a humanitarian, 

non-profit organization devoted to the eradica-

tion of landmines and their impact in South-East 

Europe and other mine-affected regions in the 

world.

Established by the Government of the Republic 

of Slovenia in March 1998, the initial purpose of 

ITF was to help Bosnia and Herzegovina in the 

implementation of the peace agreement and to 

provide assistance and support in relation to post-

conflict rehabilitation.
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Since its inception, ITF has augmented its ac-

tivities to include the rectification of landmine 

problems and helping landmine survivors with 

physical and socio-economic rehabilitation across 

the region, i.e. in Albania, Croatia, Macedonia, 

Montenegro and Serbia. As the European Com-

mission acknowledged ITF as the reference model 

of regional organization in mine action, ITF was 

asked by mine-affected countries and donors to 

expand operation to other mine-affected regions 

and countries as well, e.g. Cyprus, the South Cau-

casus and Central Asia.

REFUGEES AND HAMPER THE PROCESS OF PEACE AND RECONCILIATION. LANDMINES HAVE A KNOCK ON EFFECT TO OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS.  AID CONVOYS WILL NOT BE ABLE TO DRIVE ROADS SUSPECTED OF BEING MINED; THIS CAN MEAN AID FAILS TO REACH COMMUNITIES, AND OFTEN-EXPENSIVE ALTERNATIVES HAVE TO BE SOUGHT SUCH AS AIRDROPS. CASE STUDY: NUBA MOUNTAINS, CENTRAL SUDAN IN JANUARY 2003, THE DANCHURCH AID (DCA) MINE ACTION TEAM, WORKING IN THE NUBA MOUNTAINS, WERE TASKED TO CLEAR THE ROAD FROM THE VILLAGE OF EL HAMRA TO THE VILLAGE OF UMM SERDIBA. THERE HAD BEEN TWO MINE STRIKES ON THIS ROAD, ONE DESTROYED A TRACTOR KILLING A NUMBER OF PEOPLE; 
THE SECOND VEHICLE TO BE HIT BELONGED TO THE JMC, THE INTERNATIONAL BODY MONITORING THE ‘NUBA CEASEFIRE’ BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENT OF SUDAN AND THE SUDANESE PEOPLES LIBERATION MOVEMENT/ARMY. ALTHOUGH THE ROAD HAD TO REGARDED AS MINED; THE LOCAL POPULATION HAD TO CONTINUE USING THE ROAD, IT WAS THE ONLY WAY THEY COULD GET TO THE MAIN MARKET IN THE AREA. OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS WERE UNABLE TO ACCESS VAST AREAS OF THE NUBA MOUNTAINS; LEADING TO PROLONGED SUFFERING FOR THOUSANDS OF PEOPLE. DCA DEPLOYED A NUMBER OF DOG TEAMS ONTO THE ROAD, AND THE SUBSEQUENT CLEARANCE NOW PROVIDES THE LOCAL PEOPLE A SAFE ROUTE TO 
TRAVEL, THE JMC WITH SAFE PASSAGE AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF A ‘HUMANITARIAN HIGHWAY’ TO ALLOW OTHER ORGANISATIONS SAFE PASSAGE INTO THE AREA. IS MINE ACTION THE SAME IN ALL COUNTRIES? NO, IS THE SIMPLE ANSWER.  MINE ACTION DIFFERS FROM ONE COUNTRY TO ANOTHER. COUNTRIES SUCH AS AFGHANISTAN OR MOZAMBIQUE HAVE LONG ESTABLISHED PROGRAMMES; MINE ACTION HAS BEEN CONDUCTED THERE FOR MANY YEARS. OFTEN THESE COUNTRIES HAVE THERE OWN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION ORGANISATION; SUCH AS THE AFGHAN TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS (ATC). AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, A RAPID MINE ACTION RESPONSE WAS REQUIRED.  A COUNTRYWIDE SURVEY WAS CONDUCTED BY A BRITISH MINE 
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Principles

ITF’s approach in addressing the mine and UXO problem is based on the following principles:

	 Holistic approach enables mine-affected countries to effectively and efficiently confront and address 

	 the mine problem.

	 Regional approach involves interstate and regional mine action cooperation to ensure a 

	 cost-effective and the most efficient use of donations.

	 Transparent approach by employing a tendering system in mine action.

	 Sustainable approach by implementing those mine action projects, which address the humanitarian 

	 and safety concerns as well as the reconstruction and development needs of the affected 

	 communities.

	 Community-centered approach enables working closely with the authorities responsible for mine 

	 action programs in order to ensure that help and assistance provided are in fact needed and that the 

	 programs being implemented are consistent with the national plans.

	 Partnership approach: working together with donors, mine-affected countries, national 

	 governments, international and regional organizations, local and international non-governmental 

	 organizations, research centers and commercial enterprises to ensure mutual cooperation and 

	 communication, which is the key to the eradication of the landmine threat.

	 Matching fund mechanism for South-East Europe whereby every dollar raised by ITF is matched 

	 by an additional dollar provided by the US government.

Mission 

ITF’s mission is to raise funds and administer do-

nations made by public and private donors for the 

implementation of mine action related activities 

by addressing the needs of mine-affected com-

munities in accordance with donor’s interests, as 

follows:

	 Mine/UXO clearance and technical survey to 	

	 reduce mine-suspected areas;

	 Mine victims assistance programs ranging 	

	 from physical to psycho-social rehabilitation;

	 Mine risk education programs;

	 Support to the national mine action agencies;

	 Cooperation and coordination with 

	 international organizations involved in mine 	

	 action and development projects;

	 Mine action related training;

	 Promoting and facilitating regional 

	 cooperation through joint projects and the 

	 South-Eastern Europe Mine Action 		

	 Coordination Council (SEEMACC);

	 Assisting in the destruction of stockpiled 

	 anti-personnel mines;

	 Interfacing mine action with development 

	 projects.

Vision

ITF aspires to free the region of South-East 

Europe from the impact of landmines and unex-

ploded ordnance (UXO), and actively contribute 

to the eradication of the mine problem in other 

mine-affected parts of the world.

REFUGEES AND HAMPER THE PROCESS OF PEACE AND RECONCILIATION. LANDMINES HAVE A KNOCK ON EFFECT TO OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS.  AID CONVOYS WILL NOT BE ABLE TO DRIVE ROADS SUSPECTED OF BEING MINED; THIS CAN MEAN AID FAILS TO REACH COMMUNITIES, AND OFTEN-EXPENSIVE ALTERNATIVES HAVE TO BE SOUGHT SUCH AS AIRDROPS. CASE STUDY: NUBA MOUNTAINS, CENTRAL SUDAN IN JANUARY 2003, THE DANCHURCH AID (DCA) MINE ACTION TEAM, WORKING IN THE NUBA MOUNTAINS, WERE TASKED TO CLEAR THE ROAD FROM THE VILLAGE OF EL HAMRA TO THE VILLAGE OF UMM SERDIBA. THERE HAD BEEN TWO MINE STRIKES ON THIS ROAD, ONE DESTROYED A TRACTOR KILLING A NUMBER OF PEOPLE; 
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Year 2006 In Figures

	 30.750.883	 USD worth of donations raised

	 28.864.167	 USD worth of donations implemented

	 10.009.088	 square meters cleared in South-East Europe

	 399.000	 visits on ITF web page 

	 37.629	 children and adults directly included in mine risk education projects

	 5.501	 mines and UXO found and destroyed

	 1.013	 mine survivors included in mine victims assistance projects

	 83	 rehabilitation specialists and mine victims assistance professionals received training 

	 56	 percent of humanitarian demining program in Bosnia and Herzegovina funded through ITF

	 46	 public and private donors

	 22	 MDD teams trained

	 7	 benificiary countries

	 6	 countries received funds for structure support

	 1	 mine action regional body - South-Eastern Europe Mine Action Coordination Council

	 1	 country – Macedonia achieved mine free status

ACTION CHARITY.  THIS GAVE THE UNITED NATIONS MINE ACTION CENTRE A GOOD IDEA OF THE MINE AND UXO PROBLEM THE MINE ACTION COMMUNITY WAS ACTUALLY FACING.  WHERE THE PRIORITY CLEARANCE WAS AND WHICH MINEFIELDS NEEDED TO BE CLEARED FIRST. WITH A LARGE NUMBER OF INTERNATIONAL MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS WORKING IN KOSOVO; 
THE MAJORITY OF THE LANDMINE AND UXO PROBLEM WAS DEALT WITH WITHIN ABOUT 2 YEARS.  AN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION CAPACITY NOW REMAINS TO DEAL WITH THE LOW PRIORITY MINEFIELDS THAT WERE LEFT. MINE CLEARANCE WHAT IS A LANDMINE? A LANDMINE IS AN EXPLOSIVE DEVICE, DESIGNED TO WOUND, KILL OR OTHERWISE INCAPACITATE PERSONNEL; OR 
DESIGNED TO DESTROY OR DAMAGE VEHICLES. WHAT DIFFERENT TYPES OF LANDMINES ARE THERE? WE KNOW THERE ARE TWO MAIN GROUPS OF LANDMINES, ANTI PERSONNEL AND ANTI TANK MINES. ALL LANDMINES HAVE SPECIFIC CHARACTERISTICS AND ARE DESIGNED TO OPERATE IN SPECIFIC WAYS; THEY ARE BLAST, FRAGMENTATION AND BOUNDING. BLAST MINES: THE 
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Dignity and ordinary life…
integrate into society.



I. ITF Management and Organization10

ITF’s Headquarters is stationed in Ig, just on the outskirts of Slovenia’s capitol Ljubljana. In addition 

there are also two Implementation Offices, namely in Sarajevo, Bosnia and Herzegovina, and in Sisak, 

Croatia. Another ITF’s temporary office is active in Baku, Azerbaijan for the region of South Caucasus.

The ITF Headquarters is responsible for the coordination of all ITF activities as well as for the financial 

management of donations. In addition, Headquarters manages contracts and the awarding of contracts, 

carries out project reporting and evaluation, and organizes workshops, conferences and meetings. The 

Headquarters staff also performs monitoring and evaluation of operations in the field, on average twice 

per each project.

The two ITF implementation offices, which are based locally in Bosnia and Herzegovina and Croatia 

respectively, facilitate ITF operations in the mine contaminated countries and enable efficient coordina-

tion with the national Mine Action Centres and other relevant stakeholders to achieve better results as 

well as ensure smooth implementation of ITF activities.

The implementation offices evaluate mine clearance projects before they are put to tender, carry out on-

site supervision during the actual mine clearance and liaise with local donors. They are also involved in 

the technical evaluation of tenders for demining projects executed by ITF.

Subject to requirements, ITF has also an option of opening a Temporary Implementation Office. Typi-

cally, a Temporary Implementation Office is managed by a member of the existing ITF permanent staff 

while clerical staff is hired locally if/as required.

Altogether, 19 people were employed at ITF in 2006: 14 in Slovenia, four in Bosnia and Herzegovina, 

and one in Croatia. 

I.	 ITF Management 
and Organization

Organization 
of ITF

Organization of ITF	 10

ITF Address	 11

ITF Structure	 11

ITF Managing Board	 11

ITF Board of Advisors	 12

Relationship with Stakeholders	 12

BLAST EFFECT OF THE MINE EXPLODING IS THE MAIN CAUSE OF INJURY TO THE VICTIM. THE PMN ANTI-PERSONNEL MINE IS A BLAST MINE. FRAGMENTATION MINES: THE MINE HAS A METAL CASE, WHICH BREAKS INTO METAL FRAGMENTS AS THE MINE EXPLODES.  THE SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED OUT BY THE EXPLOSIVE FORCE OF THE MINE AND CAUSE INJURY TO THE VICTIMS. BOUNDING MINES: THE MINE, SIMILAR TO THE FRAGMENTATION, HAS A SMALL CHARGE THAT THROWS THE MINE OUT OF THE GROUND INTO THE AIR NORMALLY AT ABOUT HEAD HEIGHT.  THEN THE MAIN CHARGE EXPLODES AND SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED .  A TRIPWIRE USUALLY ACTIVATES THESE LANDMINES. WHAT ACTUALLY MAKES THE MINE 
EXPLODE? LANDMINES ARE USUALLY INITIATED BY PRESSURE OR TRIP WIRE. PRESSURE: DIRECT DOWNWARD PRESSURE ON THE LANDMINE WILL INITIATE THE LANDMINE. TRIPWIRE: A TRIPWIRE IS ATTACHED TO THE FUSE.  WHEN PRESSURE IS APPLIED TO THE TRIPWIRE, A PIN IS NORMALLY PULLED OUT OF THE FUSE INITIATING THE LANDMINE.  SOME LANDMINES MAYBE SET UP WITH MORE THAN ONE TRIPWIRE. HOW IS A LANDMINE LAID? LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED IN A NUMBER OF DIFFERENT WAYS: BY HAND, WHERE A LANDMINE IS USUALLY BURIED IN THE GROUND. BY MECHANICAL DEPLOYMENT, SPECIALLY DESIGNED VEHICLES ARE ABLE TO LAY LANDMINES. BY REMOTE DEPLOYMENT, MANY MODERN LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED BY REMOTE 
METHODS SUCH AS BY AIRCRAFT, HELICOPTER, ARTILLERY OR ROCKET.  LANDMINES DEPLOYED BY THIS MANOR WILL USUALLY BE SURFACE LAID. SCATTERABLE DEPLOYMENT, THESE MINES ARE DESIGNED TO SPREAD OF AS LARGE AN AREA AS POSSIBLE.  THE SOVIET PFM-1 ‘BUTTERFLY’ IS ONE SUCH EXAMPLE. WHAT IS A MINEFIELD? A MINEFIELD IS AN AREA OF LAND CONTAINING OR BELIEVED TO CONTAIN LANDMINES. IS IT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE A PROBLEM? NO, IT IS NOT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE CAUSING THESE PROBLEMS – COUNTLESS PIECES OF UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO), SUCH AS GRENADES, MORTARS AND CLUSTER BOMBLETS, MUNITIONS THAT DID NOT EXPLODE, HAVE VERY MUCH THE SAME EFFECT. WHY DON’T ALL MUNI-
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The ITF Managing Board consists of 9 members, as follows:

	 Roman Kolar, representative of Slovenia, Chairman of the Managing Board;

	 Mustafa Alikadić, representative of Bosnia and Herzegovina, Member; 

	 Kory Golob, representative of Slovenia, Member;

	 Dragiša Mekić, representative of Bosnia and Herzegovina, Member; 

	 Dijana Pleština, representative of Croatia, Member;

	 Zvezdana Veber - Hartman, representative of Slovenia, Member;

	 Stanislav Vidovič, representative of Slovenia, Member;

	 Darko Vidović, representative of Bosnia and Herzegovina, Member;

	 Bojan Žmavc, representative of Slovenia, Member; 

The Managing Board oversees the work of the ITF and ensures that the activities are implemented in a 

transparent and effective manner. 

In 2006 the Managing Board conducted two regular sessions and one correspondence session. On its 

29th session, which was held on 10th November 2006, the Managing Board adopted the decision and 

appointed Mr. Roman Kolar, Head of Military Affairs Agency at Ministry of Defence of the Republic 

of Slovenia, as the new Chairman of the ITF Managing Board. The Managing Board also approved and 

adopted the ITF Annual Report 2005, Plan for 2006 and the ITF Intermediate report for 2006. 

ITF Managing BoardITF Structure

ITF Headquarters in Slovenia

Managing
Board

Board of 
Advisors

ITF Implementation Office in 
Bosnia and Herzegovina

ITF Implementation Office in Croatia

ITF Temporary Implementation 
Office in South Caucasus

Donors

ITF Headquarters in Slovenia

Zabrv 12

1292 Ig 

Slovenia

Phone: +386 1 479 6580

Fax: + 386 1 479 6590

E-mail: ljubljana@itf-fund.si

ITF Implementation Office 

in Bosnia and Herzegovina

Tešanjska 1/19

71000 Sarajevo

Bosnia in Herzegovina

Phone: +387 33 261 180

Fax:+387 33 261 182

E-mail: itfio-sa@bih.net.ba

ITF Implementation Office in Croatia

Ante Kovačića 10, P.P. 8

44 000 Sisak

Croatia

Phone: +385 44 534 606

Fax: +385 44 534 608

E-mail: itf-fund@zg.htnet.hr

ITF Address

BLAST EFFECT OF THE MINE EXPLODING IS THE MAIN CAUSE OF INJURY TO THE VICTIM. THE PMN ANTI-PERSONNEL MINE IS A BLAST MINE. FRAGMENTATION MINES: THE MINE HAS A METAL CASE, WHICH BREAKS INTO METAL FRAGMENTS AS THE MINE EXPLODES.  THE SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED OUT BY THE EXPLOSIVE FORCE OF THE MINE AND CAUSE INJURY TO THE VICTIMS. BOUNDING MINES: THE MINE, SIMILAR TO THE FRAGMENTATION, HAS A SMALL CHARGE THAT THROWS THE MINE OUT OF THE GROUND INTO THE AIR NORMALLY AT ABOUT HEAD HEIGHT.  THEN THE MAIN CHARGE EXPLODES AND SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED .  A TRIPWIRE USUALLY ACTIVATES THESE LANDMINES. WHAT ACTUALLY MAKES THE MINE 
EXPLODE? LANDMINES ARE USUALLY INITIATED BY PRESSURE OR TRIP WIRE. PRESSURE: DIRECT DOWNWARD PRESSURE ON THE LANDMINE WILL INITIATE THE LANDMINE. TRIPWIRE: A TRIPWIRE IS ATTACHED TO THE FUSE.  WHEN PRESSURE IS APPLIED TO THE TRIPWIRE, A PIN IS NORMALLY PULLED OUT OF THE FUSE INITIATING THE LANDMINE.  SOME LANDMINES MAYBE SET UP WITH MORE THAN ONE TRIPWIRE. HOW IS A LANDMINE LAID? LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED IN A NUMBER OF DIFFERENT WAYS: BY HAND, WHERE A LANDMINE IS USUALLY BURIED IN THE GROUND. BY MECHANICAL DEPLOYMENT, SPECIALLY DESIGNED VEHICLES ARE ABLE TO LAY LANDMINES. BY REMOTE DEPLOYMENT, MANY MODERN LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED BY REMOTE 
METHODS SUCH AS BY AIRCRAFT, HELICOPTER, ARTILLERY OR ROCKET.  LANDMINES DEPLOYED BY THIS MANOR WILL USUALLY BE SURFACE LAID. SCATTERABLE DEPLOYMENT, THESE MINES ARE DESIGNED TO SPREAD OF AS LARGE AN AREA AS POSSIBLE.  THE SOVIET PFM-1 ‘BUTTERFLY’ IS ONE SUCH EXAMPLE. WHAT IS A MINEFIELD? A MINEFIELD IS AN AREA OF LAND CONTAINING OR BELIEVED TO CONTAIN LANDMINES. IS IT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE A PROBLEM? NO, IT IS NOT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE CAUSING THESE PROBLEMS – COUNTLESS PIECES OF UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO), SUCH AS GRENADES, MORTARS AND CLUSTER BOMBLETS, MUNITIONS THAT DID NOT EXPLODE, HAVE VERY MUCH THE SAME EFFECT. WHY DON’T ALL MUNI-
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25.	 Serbia

26.	 SPEM

27.	 Survey Action Center

28.	 Sweden

29.	 Switzerland 

30.	 UNDP

31.	 United Kingdom 

32.	 United States of America 

BoA represents a very important forum, particu-

larly in terms of its advisory role in determining 

ITF’s activities and future orientation. BoA draws 

attention to the matters, which are important to 

the donors, and to their desire and willingness to 

provide further assistance in relation to future hu-

manitarian projects in Mine Action. 

In 2006 the BoA conducted two regular meet-

ings and was highly involved in the provision of 

guidance to ITF with respect to mine victims’ 

assistance, mine clearance in the region of SEE 

and other mine action related activities. BoA also 

approved the ITF Annual Report 2005, Plan for 

2006 and the ITF Intermediate Report for 2006.

The success of ITF’s mine action activities de-

pends on ensuring the participation and success-

ful coordination of various stakeholders, whose 

interests are aligned with the common goal of 

making the region of SEE and other parts of the 

world free from the impact of mines. For this 

reason, ITF has been working intensively on de-

veloping and maintaining close as well as sound 

working relationships with beneficiary countries, 

the donor community, implementing partners and 

agencies, mine action milieu and employees.

By introducing a tendering system for mine ac-

tion activities in SEE as well as resources for their 

implementation, quality of service, customized 

projects, efficient management of activities, reli-

ability in business relations and a clearly defined 

vision has enabled ITF to deliver a high level of 

satisfaction to the stakeholders.

ITF’s Board of Advisors (BoA) actually represents 

the ITF’s Board of Donors. It has 32 members:

1.		  Austria

2.		  Belgium 

3.		  Bosnia and Herzegovina

4.		  Canada 

5.		  Croatia

6.		  Croatia Without Mines

7.		  Czech Republic 

8.		  Denmark

9.		  European Union 

10.	 France  

11.	 Germany 

12.	 Geneva International Center for 

		  Humanitarian Demining

13.	 Institute for Rehabilitation of 

		  Republic of Slovenia

14.	 Ireland 

15.	 Japan 

16.	 Korea

17.	 Kuwait 

18.	 Luxembourg 

19.	 Norway 

20.	 Red Cross of Slovenia

21.	 Qatar 

22.	 Slovenia

23.	 Slovak Republic

24.	 Spain

Relationships with 
Stakeholders

ITF Board of Advisors

Beneficiary 
Countries

Donor 
Community

Partners and 
Implementing

Agencies

Mine Action 
Environment

Employees

ITF Key Stakeholders

TIONS WORK? FOR THE SAME REASON ONE MORNING YOUR CAR WON’T START; SO GRENADES, MORTAR BOMBS ETC MAY NOT WORK. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINEFIELD? A SURVEY TEAM WILL START BY IDENTIFYING A LANDMINE-AFFLICTED COMMUNITY. ONCE IT HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED THAT LANDMINES AFFECT THE COMMUNITY, THE SURVEY OFFICER WILL TRY TO IDENTIFY THE AREA BELIEVED TO BE A MINEFIELD. THEY WILL USE A VARIETY OF SOURCES OF INFORMATION TO LOCATE A MINEFIELD; THIS WILL RANGE FROM MINEFIELD RECORDS, LOCAL KNOWLEDGE OR OTHER SOURCES. MINEFIELD RECORDS; IF A MINEFIELD IS LAID IT SHOULD BE RECORDED AND MARKED; IN MANY CONFLICTS THIS IS NOT DONE.  THIS COULD BE FOR A VARIETY OF 
REASONS; BUT IS OFTEN BECAUSE SOLDIERS INVOLVED IN SUCH CONFLICTS ARE NOT PROFESSIONAL SOLDIERS, BUT CONSCRIPTS OR GUERRILLA FIGHTERS. AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, THE YUGOSLAVIAN ARMY PROVIDED THE UN WITH VERY ACCURATE MINEFIELD RECORDS.  THIS MADE THE TASK OF IDENTIFYING MINEFIELDS MUCH EASIER IN MANY CASES. LOCAL KNOWLEDGE; IS AN INVALUABLE SOURCE OF INFORMATION.  PEOPLE WHO LIVE THEIR LIVES WITH LANDMINES WILL KNOW WHICH FIELDS NOT TO USE AND WHICH TRACKS NOT TO DRIVE DOWN. A SURVEY TEAM WILL BE ABLE TO TAKE SUCH INFORMATION AND LOCATE SUSPECTED MINEFIELDS. HOW DO YOU DECIDE WHERE TO WORK AND WHAT LAND TO CLEAR? DEMINING AGENCIES 
MUST IDENTIFY AREAS OF GROUND THAT HAS THE HIGHEST PRIORITY FOR CLEARANCE.  THIS WILL BE DONE IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LANDMINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITY, NGOS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORGANISATIONS PRIORITISATION. AN AREA MAYBE THOUGHT TO BE MINED, OR THE FEAR OF LANDMINES IS DENYING THE USE OF THIS LAND TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS.  ONCE THE LAND HAS BEEN CLEARED IT IS THEN FREE TO BE USED. A LARGE PLOT OF LAND MAY BE DENIED TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS BY ONLY A FEW LANDMINES, THEREFORE THE AREA CLEARED IS MORE IMPORTANT THAN THE NUMBER OF LANDMINES FOUND. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINE? THE MOST COMMON METHOD WILL BE A DEMINER 
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Beneficiary Countries

The region of SEE is one of the most densely 

mined regions in the world. Mines and explosive 

remnants of war constitute one of the most signif-

icant problems for the international community 

as well as local communities in the region in terms 

of safety, humanitarian issues, the environment, 

economy and development. 

ITF’s cooperation and coordination with local 

authorities in mine contaminated areas, national 

mine action authorities and governments of mine 

affected countries ensures that the needs of mine-

affected communities are properly addressed. 

Furthermore, by supporting the South-Eastern 

Europe Mine Action Coordination Council, ITF 

promotes regional cooperation and joint projects 

in the mine affected region of SEE and the world.

In 2006, ITF supported programs in Albania, 

Bosnia and Herzegovina, Croatia, Macedonia, 

Montenegro and Serbia (incl. the province of Ko-

sovo), and in the region of South Caucasus.

Additionally, ITF established communication and 

cooperation with mine action authorities from the 

following countries: Algeria, Colombia, Jordan, 

Lebanon (UNMAS), Sudan and Vietnam. 

Donor Community 

The donor community, through their solidarity 

and willingness to help, contributes to the solu-

tion of the mine problem in mine contaminated 

countries of SEE and the world. The mandate 

for fund raising and fund management is year by 

year again entrusted to ITF, as ITF is constantly 

proving to be a reliable and trustworthy partner in 

fulfilling its obligations to the donors.

Since the inception of ITF, over 100 donors have 

made donations to ITF for mine action activi-

ties. Almost 95 % of the donations originate from 

public donors- including 27 governments, the EU 

and UNDP, and many local authorities; the rest 

of the funds have been contributed by private do-

nors: non-government and humanitarian organi-

zations, businesses and individuals. Some donors 

make recurring donations to ITF. In total, ITF 

received funds from 46 donors in 2006 alone (see 

Managing of ITF Funds 2006, page 16).

Donors, as members of the BoA, actively partici-

pate in ITF’s Board of Advisors meetings where 

they determine guidelines for future humanitarian 

projects in the region of SEE and the world. They 

also voice their proposals for mine action activities 

in the countries of their particular interest. 

The Government of the United States has insti-

tuted the Matching Fund Mechanism for SEE 

by matching every dollar raised by ITF with ad-

ditional dollar provided by the US Government, 

thus accomplishing two-fold results in mine ac-

tion projects.

TIONS WORK? FOR THE SAME REASON ONE MORNING YOUR CAR WON’T START; SO GRENADES, MORTAR BOMBS ETC MAY NOT WORK. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINEFIELD? A SURVEY TEAM WILL START BY IDENTIFYING A LANDMINE-AFFLICTED COMMUNITY. ONCE IT HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED THAT LANDMINES AFFECT THE COMMUNITY, THE SURVEY OFFICER WILL TRY TO IDENTIFY THE AREA BELIEVED TO BE A MINEFIELD. THEY WILL USE A VARIETY OF SOURCES OF INFORMATION TO LOCATE A MINEFIELD; THIS WILL RANGE FROM MINEFIELD RECORDS, LOCAL KNOWLEDGE OR OTHER SOURCES. MINEFIELD RECORDS; IF A MINEFIELD IS LAID IT SHOULD BE RECORDED AND MARKED; IN MANY CONFLICTS THIS IS NOT DONE.  THIS COULD BE FOR A VARIETY OF 
REASONS; BUT IS OFTEN BECAUSE SOLDIERS INVOLVED IN SUCH CONFLICTS ARE NOT PROFESSIONAL SOLDIERS, BUT CONSCRIPTS OR GUERRILLA FIGHTERS. AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, THE YUGOSLAVIAN ARMY PROVIDED THE UN WITH VERY ACCURATE MINEFIELD RECORDS.  THIS MADE THE TASK OF IDENTIFYING MINEFIELDS MUCH EASIER IN MANY CASES. LOCAL KNOWLEDGE; IS AN INVALUABLE SOURCE OF INFORMATION.  PEOPLE WHO LIVE THEIR LIVES WITH LANDMINES WILL KNOW WHICH FIELDS NOT TO USE AND WHICH TRACKS NOT TO DRIVE DOWN. A SURVEY TEAM WILL BE ABLE TO TAKE SUCH INFORMATION AND LOCATE SUSPECTED MINEFIELDS. HOW DO YOU DECIDE WHERE TO WORK AND WHAT LAND TO CLEAR? DEMINING AGENCIES 
MUST IDENTIFY AREAS OF GROUND THAT HAS THE HIGHEST PRIORITY FOR CLEARANCE.  THIS WILL BE DONE IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LANDMINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITY, NGOS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORGANISATIONS PRIORITISATION. AN AREA MAYBE THOUGHT TO BE MINED, OR THE FEAR OF LANDMINES IS DENYING THE USE OF THIS LAND TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS.  ONCE THE LAND HAS BEEN CLEARED IT IS THEN FREE TO BE USED. A LARGE PLOT OF LAND MAY BE DENIED TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS BY ONLY A FEW LANDMINES, THEREFORE THE AREA CLEARED IS MORE IMPORTANT THAN THE NUMBER OF LANDMINES FOUND. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINE? THE MOST COMMON METHOD WILL BE A DEMINER 



I. ITF Management and Organization14

ITF Employees

ITF has a small and flexible team consisting of 

19 employees. ITF is committed to ensuring all-

round employee development, ongoing training 

and education, good working conditions, stimula-

tion of individual capabilities and employee crea-

tivity in order to promote and facilitate team work 

and provide a positive environment favourable to 

sustainable long-term relationships and an adap-

tive organization.

Partners and Implementing Agencies Mine Action Environment

ITF has been actively involved in the work of the 

Mine Action Support Group, a UN mechanism 

for the coordination and monitoring of donor ac-

tivities in relation to mine action. 

In addition to being engaged in activities related to 

the implementation of Ottawa Convention proc-

ess and taking an active role at the Intersessional 

meetings and Seventh Meeting of States Parties 

in Geneva. 

At the regional level, ITF has been playing an ac-

tive role in SEEMACC meetings. 

Furthermore, ITF has been working on the in-

tegration of mine action into the framework of 

other international organizations and associations 

whose work overlaps with the mine problem (e.g. 

the Organization for Security and Cooperation in 

Europe (OSCE)).

ITF also follows mine action activities of the 

United States of America, the European Union, 

the Organization of American States and other 

entities.

During 2006, ITF collaborated with more than 

50 partners and implementing agencies involved 

in mine action – UN bodies, regional organiza-

tions, international and local NGOs and other 

implementing agencies. 

ITF pursues the belief of building long-term part-

nerships and relationships with implementing 

bodies based on the quality of their performance 

and reliability in mine action activities. In the field 

of humanitarian demining in particular, ITF uses 

a tendering system, which is aimed at selection of 

monitoring and demining agencies/organizations 

based on their competitive advantages.

ITF worked together with the following partners 

and implementing agencies in 2006: Adopt-A-

Minefield, Akcija Protiv Mina, Albanian Mine 

and Weapon Victims Association, Amphibia, 

Bembo, C.I.D.C., Croatian Mine Victims Asso-

ciation, DanishChurchAid, Deminka, Demira, 

Detektor, Dinamit, Dok-ing Razminiranje, Eco-

sport Group, Eksploring, ELS, Enigma, Faculty 

of Social Work (University of Ljubljana), Foun-

dation Together, GICHD, Handicap Interna-

tional, Heksogen, Landmine Survivors Network, 

Marshall Legacy Institute, Mine Detection Dog 

Center in Konjic (BiH), MECHEM, MKA Dem-

ining, Mustela, National Mine Action Centers in 

the areas of ITF operations, N&N Ivša, Norwe-

gian People’s Aid, OSCE, PMC Inženjering, Pro-

vita, RCUD Montenegro, REASEURO, Institute 

for Rehabilitation of the Republic of Slovenia, 

ROEHLL, Rumital, Scanjack, Spirit of Soccer, 

STOP MINES, Terra-Firma, Tornado, TT-KA, 

Udružavanje za eliminaciju mina, UG ZOM, 

UNA Trust, UNDP, UNMIK, UXB Balkans, 

VILAKOL.

USING A METAL DETECTOR. A DEMINER WILL USE A METAL DETECTOR AND A VARIETY OF OTHER TOOLS, QUIET OFTEN-SIMPLE GARDENING TOOLS. THE DETECTOR WILL INDICATE THE PRESENCE OF METAL IN THE GROUND. EVERY METAL INDICATION GIVEN BY THE METAL DETECTOR NEEDS TO BE CHECKED IN CASE IT‘S A MINE. SO THE MORE METAL FRAGMENTS THERE ARE, THE 
MORE TIME IT MIGHT TAKE. THE DEMINER WILL THEN MARK THIS SPOT PRIOR TO EXCAVATING ON THAT LOCATION USING A PROBE AND EXCAVATION TOOLS. IF HE OR SHE FINDS A LANDMINE, A SUPERIOR WILL BE INFORMED. DO ALL MINES CONTAIN METAL? NO, THERE ARE SOME THAT DO NOT CONTAIN ANY METAL AT ALL. SO HOW DO YOU CLEAR MINES WITHOUT METAL IN 
THEM? THE DEMINERS WILL HAVE TO CARRY OUT A 100% EXCAVATION OF THE AREA; OR DOGS MAYBE USED IN SUCH AREAS. WHO ACTUALLY CLEARS THE MINES? IN MOST CASES DEMINERS WILL BE VOLUNTEERS FROM THE LOCAL COMMUNITY, HOWEVER SOMETIMES THEY ARE DEMOBILISED SOLDIERS.  THESE PEOPLE WILL MAKE UP THE NATIONAL STAFF EMPLOYED BY MINE 
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Children are the most vulnerable 
group in population… 

educate them. 
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ITF has established efficient internal controls regarding financial management and administration of 

donations by applying the following procedures:

	 Donations Receiving procedures ensuring that all acquired donations are in fact received and 

	 accurately recorded;

	 Matching Fund procedures to ensure that all valid claims for matched funds are made and that no 

	 ineligible claims are submitted;

	 Banking and Reconciliation procedures to ensure safe custody of received donors’ funds, by means 

	 of banking and reconciliation controls to prevent loss occasioned by error or fraud;

	 Disbursement procedures to ensure that all disbursements of donors’ funds are actually made, that 

	 they are made only for such purposes as stipulated by the donors, and that the disbursements are 

	 accurately recorded.

Above mentioned procedures are subject to regular external control.

 

Furthermore, in 2002 ITF introduced ‘hedging’, i.e. the donation transfer policy where donations are 

being transferred to implementing agencies in the original donation currency in order to minimize losses 

arising from currency rate fluctuations.

ITF’s financial accounts are subject to annual external audits. The 2006 ITF Auditors’ Report is enclosed 

in this Annual Report under the “Statutory Annual Statements for the Financial Year 2006” section.

The accounts are audited in accordance with the International Auditing Standards. The auditing is car-

ried out by UHY Revizija in svetovanje d.o.o., a Slovenian audit firm, which is a member of the UHY 

international association of independent accounting and consultancy firms, established and coordinated 

by Urbach Hacker Young International Limited from UK.
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ACTION ORGANISATIONS. ALL ORGANISATIONS THAT ADOPT-A-MINEFIELD (UK) FUNDS EMPLOY NATIONAL STAFF, BOTH IN OPERATIONAL ROLES AND OPERATIONAL SUPPORT.  MINE CLEARANCES ORGANISATIONS ARE COMMITTED TO CAPACITY BUILDING OF LOCAL STAFF; PROVIDING MANAGEMENT TRAINING NATIONAL STAFF, SO THAT THEY CAN ONE DAY RUN THE PROGRAMME WITHOUT THE PRESENCES OF INTERNATIONAL STAFF. MINES IN CAMBODIA, ARE A CAMBODIAN PROBLEM; IT IS THE KHMER PEOPLE, FAMILY, FRIENDS WHO ARE AFFECTED BY LANDMINES.  WHAT DO THEY DO WHEN THEY FIND A LANDMINE? LANDMINE PROBLEM WHY IS IT NECESSARY TO HAVE A CAMPAIGN TO CLEAR MINEFIELDS? LANDMINES CONTINUE TO EFFECT MANY 
COMMUNITIES WELL AFTER HOSTILITIES HAVE CEASED; ONE THIRD OF ALL VICTIMS ARE CHILDREN. THE PRESENCE OF LANDMINES CAN ALSO HINDER THE REDEVELOPMENT OF A COUNTRY AND ITS ECONOMY FOR MANY YEARS AFTER A CONFLICT. THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN THE GROUND IN AT LEAST 90 COUNTRIES. LANDMINES REPORTEDLY MAIM OR KILL 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR. THOSE WHO SURVIVE ENDURE A LIFETIME OF PHYSICAL, PSYCHOLOGICAL, AND ECONOMIC HARDSHIP. LOCAL COMMUNITIES IN LANDMINE-AFFECTED COUNTRIES OFTEN DO NOT HAVE THE RESOURCES TO CLEAR THEIR OWN LAND AND TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE CARE FOR THEIR LANDMINE SURVIVORS. THEY DEPEND PRIMARILY 
UPON FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM GOVERNMENTS, INTERNATIONAL AND NON GOVERNMENTAL ORGANISATIONS. WHAT IS MINE ACTION? MINE ACTION REFERS TO ALL THOSE ACTIVITIES, WHICH ADDRESS THE PROBLEMS FACED BY PEOPLE AS A RESULT OF LANDMINE/UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO) CONTAMINATION. MINE ACTION IS NOT SO MUCH ABOUT LANDMINES, THOUGH, AS ABOUT PEOPLE AND THEIR INTERACTIONS WITH A MINE-CONTAMINATED ENVIRONMENT. IT AIMS TO RECREATE AN ENVIRONMENT IN WHICH PEOPLE CAN LIVE SAFELY, IN WHICH ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT CAN OCCUR FREE FROM CONSTRAINTS, AND IN WHICH LANDMINE SURVIVORS ARE FULLY INTEGRATED INTO THEIR SOCIETIES. MINE ACTION COM-



ITF Annual Report 2006 17

ITF raised a total of USD 30.750.883,38 of do-

nations in 2006. These funds were contributed by 

25 public donors (including 15 governments, the 

EU and UNDP, and many local authorities and 

government organizations) and 14 private donors 

(private companies, foundations and organiza-

tions).

The overall number of donors reached 46 in com-

parison to 38 in 2005. This clearly demonstrates 

ITF’s efforts directed towards attracting new do-

nors as well as retaining the active ones. 

Donations in 2006

Chart 1: 

ITF donations raised since 1998

The total amount of donations raised in 2006 has 

increased by 10,7 % in comparison to 2005. ITF’s 

primary goal is to ensure a stable and continuous 

inflow of funds for mine action, which will help 

the mine affected countries in the region of SEE 

to become free from the impact of landmines in 

the designated timeframes.

Private donations accounted for 6,5 % of the total 

donations (see Chart 2). Raising private dona-

tions remains to be a challenge for ITF in the fu-

ture. The essential aim will also be to increase the 

interest of the private sector in supporting mine 

action activities in the mine-contaminated coun-

tries of SEE.

In 2006 ITF secured USD 9.900.000,00 through 

the matching funds mechanism instituted by the 

Government of the United States of America. 

Donations by other donors amounted to USD 

20.850.883,38. In order to secure sufficient fund-

ing for the mine contaminated countries of SEE 

to become free from the impact of mines by 2010, 

the donations should remain at the present level 

at the very least.

Chart 2: 

ITF donations raised in 2006 by origin

Chart 3: 

ITF private donations raised in period 2004-2006
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ACTION ORGANISATIONS. ALL ORGANISATIONS THAT ADOPT-A-MINEFIELD (UK) FUNDS EMPLOY NATIONAL STAFF, BOTH IN OPERATIONAL ROLES AND OPERATIONAL SUPPORT.  MINE CLEARANCES ORGANISATIONS ARE COMMITTED TO CAPACITY BUILDING OF LOCAL STAFF; PROVIDING MANAGEMENT TRAINING NATIONAL STAFF, SO THAT THEY CAN ONE DAY RUN THE PROGRAMME WITHOUT THE PRESENCES OF INTERNATIONAL STAFF. MINES IN CAMBODIA, ARE A CAMBODIAN PROBLEM; IT IS THE KHMER PEOPLE, FAMILY, FRIENDS WHO ARE AFFECTED BY LANDMINES.  WHAT DO THEY DO WHEN THEY FIND A LANDMINE? LANDMINE PROBLEM WHY IS IT NECESSARY TO HAVE A CAMPAIGN TO CLEAR MINEFIELDS? LANDMINES CONTINUE TO EFFECT MANY 
COMMUNITIES WELL AFTER HOSTILITIES HAVE CEASED; ONE THIRD OF ALL VICTIMS ARE CHILDREN. THE PRESENCE OF LANDMINES CAN ALSO HINDER THE REDEVELOPMENT OF A COUNTRY AND ITS ECONOMY FOR MANY YEARS AFTER A CONFLICT. THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN THE GROUND IN AT LEAST 90 COUNTRIES. LANDMINES REPORTEDLY MAIM OR KILL 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR. THOSE WHO SURVIVE ENDURE A LIFETIME OF PHYSICAL, PSYCHOLOGICAL, AND ECONOMIC HARDSHIP. LOCAL COMMUNITIES IN LANDMINE-AFFECTED COUNTRIES OFTEN DO NOT HAVE THE RESOURCES TO CLEAR THEIR OWN LAND AND TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE CARE FOR THEIR LANDMINE SURVIVORS. THEY DEPEND PRIMARILY 
UPON FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM GOVERNMENTS, INTERNATIONAL AND NON GOVERNMENTAL ORGANISATIONS. WHAT IS MINE ACTION? MINE ACTION REFERS TO ALL THOSE ACTIVITIES, WHICH ADDRESS THE PROBLEMS FACED BY PEOPLE AS A RESULT OF LANDMINE/UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO) CONTAMINATION. MINE ACTION IS NOT SO MUCH ABOUT LANDMINES, THOUGH, AS ABOUT PEOPLE AND THEIR INTERACTIONS WITH A MINE-CONTAMINATED ENVIRONMENT. IT AIMS TO RECREATE AN ENVIRONMENT IN WHICH PEOPLE CAN LIVE SAFELY, IN WHICH ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT CAN OCCUR FREE FROM CONSTRAINTS, AND IN WHICH LANDMINE SURVIVORS ARE FULLY INTEGRATED INTO THEIR SOCIETIES. MINE ACTION COM-
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Adopt-a-Minefield

2006 269.231,86 USD Demining activities in BiH 
and Croatia

2006 281.407,19 USD Demining activities in BiH 
and Croatia

550.639,05 USD

Arne Hodalič
2006 0,00 USD In-kind donation-photo 

material for SEE

0,00 USD

Austria

2006 597.824,92 USD Demining activities in Bosnia 
and Herzegovina

2006 26.472,00 USD
Mine Victims Assistance
Workshop in Bosnia and
Herzegovina

624.296,92 USD

Austrian Airlines
2006 0,00 USD

In-kind donation-rehabilita-
tion of Mine Survivor from 
Azerbaijan

0,00 USD

Belgium

2006 49.636,01 USD Demining activities in Bosnia 
and Herzegovina

2006 52.704,01 USD Demining activities in Bosnia 
and Herzegovina

102.340,02 USD

Bosnia and 
Herzegovina 

2006 2.200.000,00 USD  Structure support in Bosnia 
and Herzegovina

2.200.000,00 USD

Donor report 2006

Brčko District 
Government 

2006 426.726,37 USD Demining activities in Bosnia 
and Herzegovina

426.726,37 USD 

Canada 

2006 87.109,20 USD Demining activities in Bos-
nia and Herzegovina

2006 11.586,21 USD Mine Action Program in 
BiH

2006 763.358,60 USD Mine Action Program in 
BiH

2006 44.901,61 USD Demining activities in Bos-
nia and Herzegovina

906.955,62 USD

Canton Bosansko-
Podrinjski Goražde 

2006 16.255,25 USD Demining activities in Bos-
nia and Herzegovina

16.255,25 USD 

Canton Central 
Bosnian 

2006 62.658,82 USD Demining activities in Bos-
nia and Herzegovina

2006 67.464,96 USD Demining activities in Bos-
nia and Herzegovina

130.123,78 USD  

Canton Sarajevo 
- Ministry of Urban 
Planning and 
Environmental 
Protection 

2006 110.813,83 USD Demining activities in Bos-
nia and Herzegovina

110.813,83 USD

PRISES FIVE COMPLEMENTARY GROUPS OF ACTIVITIES: MINE RISK EDUCATION (MRE) THE EDUCATION PROCESS WHICH AIMS TO ENSURE THAT COMMUNITIES ARE NOT ONLY AWARE OF THE RISKS FROM LIVING IN PROXIMITY TO LANDMINES AND UXO, AND TO ENCOURAGE PEOPLE TO BEHAVE IN A WAY THAT REDUCES THE RISK TO PEOPLE, PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT. HUMANITARIAN DEMINING DEMINING ACTIVITIES WHICH LEAD TO THE REMOVAL OF LANDMINE AND UXO HAZARDS, INCLUDING TECHNICAL SURVEY, MAPPING, CLEARANCE, MARKING, POST-CLEARANCE DOCUMENTATION, COMMUNITY MINE ACTION LIAISON AND THE HANDOVER OF CLEARED LAND. DEMINING MAY BE EMERGENCY-BASED OR DEVELOPMENTAL. SURVIVOR AS-
SISTANCE REFERS TO ALL AID, RELIEF, COMFORT AND SUPPORT PROVIDED SURVIVORS WITH THE PURPOSE OF REDUCING THE IMMEDIATE AND LONG-TERM MEDICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL IMPLICATIONS OF THEIR TRAUMA. STOCKPILE DESTRUCTION ARTICLE 4 OF THE MINE BAN TREATY (MBT) REQUIRES THAT SIGNATORIES UNDERTAKE TO DESTROY OR ENSURE THE DESTRUCTION OF ALL STOCKPILED ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES IT OWNS OR POSSESSES, OR THAT ARE UNDER ITS JURISDICTION OR CONTROL, AS SOON AS POSSIBLE BUT NOT LATER THAN FOUR YEARS AFTER THE ENTRY INTO FORCE OF THE MBT FOR THAT STATE PARTY. ADVOCACY AGAINST THE USE OF ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES. IN THE CONTEXT OF MINE ACTION, THE TERM REFERS 
TO … PUBLIC SUPPORT, RECOMMENDATION OR POSITIVE PUBLICITY WITH THE AIM OF REMOVING, OR AT LEAST REDUCING, THE THREAT FROM, AND THE IMPACT OF, LANDMINES AND UXO. WHY CLEAR LANDMINES? THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN 90 COUNTRIES. THESE REPORTEDLY KILL OR INJUR 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR.  IT IS HOWEVER DIFFICULT TO OBTAIN ACCURATE STATISTICS.  WE WON’T KNOW HOW MANY LANDMINES THERE ARE IN THE GROUND UNTIL WE’VE ACTUALLY FOUND THEM, AND MANY LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE NOT REPORTED BECAUSE THEY HAPPEN IN REMOTE AREAS AND HEALTH CENTRES DON’T EVEN FIND OUT ABOUT THEM. THIS IMPACT GOES FAR BEYOND PHYSICAL INJURY AND DEATH 
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Cimermqcic Zdenka
2006 35,78 USD Rehabilitation of Mr. Nikola 

Klepič

35,78 USD

Community Goražde 
2006 13.536,97 USD Demining activities in Bos-

nia and Herzegovina

13.536,97 USD 

Community Ilidža 
2006 64.565,94 USD Demining activities in Bos-

nia and Herzegovina

64.565,94 USD

Czech Republic 
2006 87.633,26 USD Mine Victims Assistance 

activities in Croatia

87.633,26 USD   

DanChurchAid 
2006 61.551,61 USD Demining activities in 

Albania

61.551,61 USD

EC Delegation in 
Croatia 

2006 212.803,90 USD Demining activities in 
Croatia

212.803,90 USD 

European Union 
2006 39.261,33 USD Landmine Impact Survey in 

Bosnia and Herzegovina

39.261,33 USD

Foundation World 
Without Mines 

2006 46.060,00 USD Demining activities in Bos-
nia and Herzegovina

46.060,00 USD

Germany 

2006 256.100,02 USD Demining activities in 
Albania

2006 252.079,99 USD Demining activities in Serbia 

2006 378.119,98 USD Demining activities in Bosnia 
and Herzegovina

2006 843.942,06 USD Demining activities in Bosnia 
and Herzegovina

2006 1.159.061,10 USD Demining activities in Bosnia 
and Herzegovina

2006 250.740,03 USD Demining activities in Bosnia 
and Herzegovina

3.140.043,18 USD

Handicap 
International 

2006 69.280,00 USD Access to Physical and Medi-
cal Rehabilitation in Albania 

69.280,00 USD

Herakel Baku
2006 0,00 USD

In-kind donation-rehabilita-
tion of Mine Survivor from 
Azerbaijan

0,00 USD

Hungary 
2006 20.000,00 USD Demining activities in Bosnia 

and Herzegovina

20.000,00 USD

Ireland 
2006 147.083,97 USD Demining activities in Bosnia 

and Herzegovina

147.083,97 USD

Kampos Iztok
2006 247,00 USD Rehabilitation of Mr. Nikola 

Klepič

247,00 USD

PRISES FIVE COMPLEMENTARY GROUPS OF ACTIVITIES: MINE RISK EDUCATION (MRE) THE EDUCATION PROCESS WHICH AIMS TO ENSURE THAT COMMUNITIES ARE NOT ONLY AWARE OF THE RISKS FROM LIVING IN PROXIMITY TO LANDMINES AND UXO, AND TO ENCOURAGE PEOPLE TO BEHAVE IN A WAY THAT REDUCES THE RISK TO PEOPLE, PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT. HUMANITARIAN DEMINING DEMINING ACTIVITIES WHICH LEAD TO THE REMOVAL OF LANDMINE AND UXO HAZARDS, INCLUDING TECHNICAL SURVEY, MAPPING, CLEARANCE, MARKING, POST-CLEARANCE DOCUMENTATION, COMMUNITY MINE ACTION LIAISON AND THE HANDOVER OF CLEARED LAND. DEMINING MAY BE EMERGENCY-BASED OR DEVELOPMENTAL. SURVIVOR AS-
SISTANCE REFERS TO ALL AID, RELIEF, COMFORT AND SUPPORT PROVIDED SURVIVORS WITH THE PURPOSE OF REDUCING THE IMMEDIATE AND LONG-TERM MEDICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL IMPLICATIONS OF THEIR TRAUMA. STOCKPILE DESTRUCTION ARTICLE 4 OF THE MINE BAN TREATY (MBT) REQUIRES THAT SIGNATORIES UNDERTAKE TO DESTROY OR ENSURE THE DESTRUCTION OF ALL STOCKPILED ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES IT OWNS OR POSSESSES, OR THAT ARE UNDER ITS JURISDICTION OR CONTROL, AS SOON AS POSSIBLE BUT NOT LATER THAN FOUR YEARS AFTER THE ENTRY INTO FORCE OF THE MBT FOR THAT STATE PARTY. ADVOCACY AGAINST THE USE OF ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES. IN THE CONTEXT OF MINE ACTION, THE TERM REFERS 
TO … PUBLIC SUPPORT, RECOMMENDATION OR POSITIVE PUBLICITY WITH THE AIM OF REMOVING, OR AT LEAST REDUCING, THE THREAT FROM, AND THE IMPACT OF, LANDMINES AND UXO. WHY CLEAR LANDMINES? THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN 90 COUNTRIES. THESE REPORTEDLY KILL OR INJUR 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR.  IT IS HOWEVER DIFFICULT TO OBTAIN ACCURATE STATISTICS.  WE WON’T KNOW HOW MANY LANDMINES THERE ARE IN THE GROUND UNTIL WE’VE ACTUALLY FOUND THEM, AND MANY LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE NOT REPORTED BECAUSE THEY HAPPEN IN REMOTE AREAS AND HEALTH CENTRES DON’T EVEN FIND OUT ABOUT THEM. THIS IMPACT GOES FAR BEYOND PHYSICAL INJURY AND DEATH 
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Landmine Survivors 
Network 

2006 450.000,00 USD Mine Victims Assistance 
in BiH

450.000,00 USD

Maraska d.d. 

2006 247.598,92 USD  Demining activities in 
Croatia

2006 115.209,75 USD Demining activities in 
Croatia

2006 16.550,29 USD  Demining activities in 
Croatia

379.358,96 USD

Marshall Legacy 
Institute 

2006 19.456,13 USD  Training of Mine Detection 
Dogs 

2006 35.788,77 USD Training of Mine Detection 
Dogs 

2006 1.708,60 USD Training of Mine Detection 
Dogs 

2006 36.132,40 USD Training of Mine Detection 
Dogs 

93.085,90 USD  

Mobitel d.d. 
2006 1.986,31 USD Support of ITF activities

1.986,31 USD 

Music Gallery Baku
2006 0,00 USD

In-kind donation-rehabilita-
tion of Mine Survivor from 
Azerbaijan

0,00 USD 

Night of A 
Thousand Dinners 

2006 48.970,72 USD Night of A Thousand Dinners

48.970,72 USD

Norway
2006 4.975.619,13 USD

Demining activities in 
Croatia and Bosnia and 
Herzegovina/Mine Victims 
Assistance 

2006 621.222,62 USD Demining activities in Serbia

5.596.841,75 USD 

Panalpina Baku
2006 0,00 USD

In-kind donation-rehabilita-
tion of Mine Survivor from 
Azerbaijan

0,00 USD 

Raiffeisen Krekova 
Banka d.d. 

2006 5.265,20 USD  Support of ITF activities

5.265,20 USD 

Rotary Club 
International Calvia 

2006 7.112,40 USD  Rehabilitation

7.112,40 USD

Rotary Club 
Wien-Nordost

2006 285.360,49 USD Demining activities in 
Croatia

285.360,49 USD 

Serbia
2006 628.549,87 USD   Demining activities in 

Serbia

628.549,87 USD

Slovenia 

2006 460.437,43 USD  Support of ITF activities

2006 152.906,39 USD Support of ITF activities

2006 77.017,99 USD Support of ITF activities

2006 94.093,98 USD Demining activities in 
Lebanon

2006 0,55 USD   Support of ITF activities

784.456,34 USD

– IT INCLUDES VIRTUALLY EVERY ASPECT OF LIFE AND PREVENTS MINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITIES FROM FULLY RECOVERING AFTER ARMED CONFLICTS HAVE ENDED. ABOUT ONE THIRD OF ALL LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE CHILDREN.  MANY MORE LOSE PARENTS OR OTHER FAMILY MEMBERS AND SUDDENLY FIND THEMSELVES RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING FOR THE FAMILY. IN ADDITION, LANDMINES HINDER INFRASTRUCTURE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, THEY INCREASE A COUNTRY’S DEPENDENCY ON INTERNATIONAL AID, BLOCK THE DELIVERY OF RELIEF GOODS TO AREAS MOST IN NEED, PREVENT THE RETURN OF REFUGEES AND HAMPER THE PROCESS OF PEACE AND RECONCILIATION. LANDMINES HAVE A KNOCK ON EFFECT TO OTHER HU-
MANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS.  AID CONVOYS WILL NOT BE ABLE TO DRIVE ROADS SUSPECTED OF BEING MINED; THIS CAN MEAN AID FAILS TO REACH COMMUNITIES, AND OFTEN-EXPENSIVE ALTERNATIVES HAVE TO BE SOUGHT SUCH AS AIRDROPS. CASE STUDY: NUBA MOUNTAINS, CENTRAL SUDAN IN JANUARY 2003, THE DANCHURCH AID (DCA) MINE ACTION TEAM, WORKING IN THE NUBA MOUNTAINS, WERE TASKED TO CLEAR THE ROAD FROM THE VILLAGE OF EL HAMRA TO THE VILLAGE OF UMM SERDIBA. THERE HAD BEEN TWO MINE STRIKES ON THIS ROAD, ONE DESTROYED A TRACTOR KILLING A NUMBER OF PEOPLE; THE SECOND VEHICLE TO BE HIT BELONGED TO THE JMC, THE INTERNATIONAL BODY MONITORING THE ‘NUBA CEASEFIRE’ BETWEEN 
THE GOVERNMENT OF SUDAN AND THE SUDANESE PEOPLES LIBERATION MOVEMENT/ARMY. ALTHOUGH THE ROAD HAD TO REGARDED AS MINED; THE LOCAL POPULATION HAD TO CONTINUE USING THE ROAD, IT WAS THE ONLY WAY THEY COULD GET TO THE MAIN MARKET IN THE AREA. OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS WERE UNABLE TO ACCESS VAST AREAS OF THE NUBA MOUNTAINS; LEADING TO PROLONGED SUFFERING FOR THOUSANDS OF PEOPLE. DCA DEPLOYED A NUMBER OF DOG TEAMS ONTO THE ROAD, AND THE SUBSEQUENT CLEARANCE NOW PROVIDES THE LOCAL PEOPLE A SAFE ROUTE TO TRAVEL, THE JMC WITH SAFE PASSAGE AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF A ‘HUMANITARIAN HIGHWAY’ TO ALLOW OTHER ORGANISATIONS SAFE 
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Slovenian Table 
Tennis Association 

2006 5.372,50 USD  Mine Risk Education in 
Bosnia and Herzegovina

5.372,50 USD 

Spain 
2006 380.280,09 USD Demining activities in 

Serbia and Croatia

380.280,09 USD

Studio Moderna 
Azerbaijan

2006 0,00 USD
In-kind donation-rehabilita-
tion of Mine Survivor from 
Azerbaijan

0,00 USD 

Switzerland 

2006 118.920,20 USD  Demining activities in Bos-
nia and Herzegovina

2006 281.985,81 USD Demining activities in Bos-
nia and Herzegovina

400.906,01 USD   

United Kingdom
2006 762.167,87 USD

Mine Action projects in 
Albania, Azerbaijan, Bosnia 
and Herzegovina, Serbia

762.167,87 USD

United Nations 
Association of the 
USA (UNA-USA) 

2006 1.000,00 USD Rehabilitation

1.000,00 USD

TOTAL 	 30.750.883,38 USD

United Nations 
Development 
Program

2006 508.868,00 USD Demining activities in 
Albania

2006 244.257,00 USD Demining activities in 
Albania

2006 407.095,00 USD Demining activities in 
Albania

2006 26.769,00 USD Demining activities in Bos-
nia and Herzegovina

2006 407.095,00 USD Demining activities in 
Albania

2006 48.736,19 USD Demining activities in Bos-
nia and Herzegovina

2006 407.095,00 USD Demining activities in 
Albania

2.049.915,19 USD 

United States of 
America 

2006 9.900.000,00 USD Support of Mine Action 
Activities

9.900.000,00 USD

– IT INCLUDES VIRTUALLY EVERY ASPECT OF LIFE AND PREVENTS MINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITIES FROM FULLY RECOVERING AFTER ARMED CONFLICTS HAVE ENDED. ABOUT ONE THIRD OF ALL LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE CHILDREN.  MANY MORE LOSE PARENTS OR OTHER FAMILY MEMBERS AND SUDDENLY FIND THEMSELVES RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING FOR THE FAMILY. IN ADDITION, LANDMINES HINDER INFRASTRUCTURE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, THEY INCREASE A COUNTRY’S DEPENDENCY ON INTERNATIONAL AID, BLOCK THE DELIVERY OF RELIEF GOODS TO AREAS MOST IN NEED, PREVENT THE RETURN OF REFUGEES AND HAMPER THE PROCESS OF PEACE AND RECONCILIATION. LANDMINES HAVE A KNOCK ON EFFECT TO OTHER HU-
MANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS.  AID CONVOYS WILL NOT BE ABLE TO DRIVE ROADS SUSPECTED OF BEING MINED; THIS CAN MEAN AID FAILS TO REACH COMMUNITIES, AND OFTEN-EXPENSIVE ALTERNATIVES HAVE TO BE SOUGHT SUCH AS AIRDROPS. CASE STUDY: NUBA MOUNTAINS, CENTRAL SUDAN IN JANUARY 2003, THE DANCHURCH AID (DCA) MINE ACTION TEAM, WORKING IN THE NUBA MOUNTAINS, WERE TASKED TO CLEAR THE ROAD FROM THE VILLAGE OF EL HAMRA TO THE VILLAGE OF UMM SERDIBA. THERE HAD BEEN TWO MINE STRIKES ON THIS ROAD, ONE DESTROYED A TRACTOR KILLING A NUMBER OF PEOPLE; THE SECOND VEHICLE TO BE HIT BELONGED TO THE JMC, THE INTERNATIONAL BODY MONITORING THE ‘NUBA CEASEFIRE’ BETWEEN 
THE GOVERNMENT OF SUDAN AND THE SUDANESE PEOPLES LIBERATION MOVEMENT/ARMY. ALTHOUGH THE ROAD HAD TO REGARDED AS MINED; THE LOCAL POPULATION HAD TO CONTINUE USING THE ROAD, IT WAS THE ONLY WAY THEY COULD GET TO THE MAIN MARKET IN THE AREA. OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS WERE UNABLE TO ACCESS VAST AREAS OF THE NUBA MOUNTAINS; LEADING TO PROLONGED SUFFERING FOR THOUSANDS OF PEOPLE. DCA DEPLOYED A NUMBER OF DOG TEAMS ONTO THE ROAD, AND THE SUBSEQUENT CLEARANCE NOW PROVIDES THE LOCAL PEOPLE A SAFE ROUTE TO TRAVEL, THE JMC WITH SAFE PASSAGE AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF A ‘HUMANITARIAN HIGHWAY’ TO ALLOW OTHER ORGANISATIONS SAFE 
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Allocation of Donations 
in 2006

Allocation of donations by purpose in 2006

In 2006, USD 28.864.167,03 was spent on the following ITF mine action activities:

	 USD 21.383.372,29 on Demining and Technical Survey (74,1 percent);

	 USD 4.717.152,01 on the local Mine Action Structure Support (16,3 percent);

	 USD 1.809.196,35 on Mine Victims Assistance (6,3 percent);

	 USD 548.719,37 on Regional and other activities (1,9 percent);

	 USD 252.319,53 on Mine Risk Education programs (0,9 percent);

	 USD 153.407,48 USD on Training (0,5 percent).

Overall, 2006 was the most successful year in 

terms of funds implementation since the incep-

tion of ITF. The amount of implemented funds 

in 2006 was increased by 4,25% in comparison to 

the funds implemented in 2005.

The level of expenditure for all ITF supported ac-

tivities remained equal to the level in 2005. ITF is 

pleased to report that support for Mine Victims 

Assistance in 2006 increased compared to 2005 

from 4,12% to 6,3% of overall expenditure. How-

ever, it still remains below the targeted 15% of all 

expenditure. ITF is striving to increase the fund-

ing for this component of mine action in the fu-

ture, as there are still close to 7.500 mine victims 

in SEE and over 3.000 in the South Caucasus. Chart 5: Comparison of funds allocation by purpose (in USD) in period 2004-2006

Chart 4: 

Distribution of funds by purpose in 2006
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PASSAGE INTO THE AREA. IS MINE ACTION THE SAME IN ALL COUNTRIES? NO, IS THE SIMPLE ANSWER.  MINE ACTION DIFFERS FROM ONE COUNTRY TO ANOTHER. COUNTRIES SUCH AS AFGHANISTAN OR MOZAMBIQUE HAVE LONG ESTABLISHED PROGRAMMES; MINE ACTION HAS BEEN CONDUCTED THERE FOR MANY YEARS. OFTEN THESE COUNTRIES HAVE THERE OWN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION ORGANISATION; SUCH AS THE AFGHAN TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS (ATC). AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, A RAPID MINE ACTION RESPONSE WAS REQUIRED.  A COUNTRYWIDE SURVEY WAS CONDUCTED BY A BRITISH MINE ACTION CHARITY.  THIS GAVE THE UNITED NATIONS MINE ACTION CENTRE A GOOD IDEA OF THE MINE AND UXO PROBLEM THE MINE ACTION 
COMMUNITY WAS ACTUALLY FACING.  WHERE THE PRIORITY CLEARANCE WAS AND WHICH MINEFIELDS NEEDED TO BE CLEARED FIRST. WITH A LARGE NUMBER OF INTERNATIONAL MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS WORKING IN KOSOVO; THE MAJORITY OF THE LANDMINE AND UXO PROBLEM WAS DEALT WITH WITHIN ABOUT 2 YEARS.  AN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION CAPACITY NOW REMAINS TO DEAL WITH THE LOW PRIORITY MINEFIELDS THAT WERE LEFT. MINE CLEARANCE WHAT IS A LANDMINE? A LANDMINE IS AN EXPLOSIVE DEVICE, DESIGNED TO WOUND, KILL OR OTHERWISE INCAPACITATE PERSONNEL; OR DESIGNED TO DESTROY OR DAMAGE VEHICLES. WHAT DIFFERENT TYPES OF LANDMINES ARE THERE? WE KNOW THERE ARE TWO MAIN GROUPS 
OF LANDMINES, ANTI PERSONNEL AND ANTI TANK MINES. ALL LANDMINES HAVE SPECIFIC CHARACTERISTICS AND ARE DESIGNED TO OPERATE IN SPECIFIC WAYS; THEY ARE BLAST, FRAGMENTATION AND BOUNDING. BLAST MINES: THE BLAST EFFECT OF THE MINE EXPLODING IS THE MAIN CAUSE OF INJURY TO THE VICTIM. THE PMN ANTI-PERSONNEL MINE IS A BLAST MINE. FRAGMENTATION MINES: THE MINE HAS A METAL CASE, WHICH BREAKS INTO METAL FRAGMENTS AS THE MINE EXPLODES.  THE SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED OUT BY THE EXPLOSIVE FORCE OF THE MINE AND CAUSE INJURY TO THE VICTIMS. BOUNDING MINES: THE MINE, SIMILAR TO THE FRAGMENTATION, HAS A SMALL CHARGE THAT THROWS THE MINE OUT OF THE 



ITF Annual Report 2006 23

Allocation of donations by country/region in 2006

In 2006 the distribution of funds implemented (USD 28.864.167,03) by country/region was as follows:

	 USD 14.741.465,45 on Mine Action activities in Bosnia and Herzegovina (51,1 percent).

	 USD 7.363.708,82 on Mine Action activities in Croatia (25,5 percent).

	 USD 3.336.598,13 on Mine Action activities in Albania (11,6 percent).

	 USD 2.552.290,88 on Mine Action activities in Serbia (incl. Kosovo) (8,8 percent).

	 USD 483.818,87 on Mine Action activities outside the region of SEE (1,7 percent).

	 USD 176.182,28 on Mine Action activities in Montenegro (0,6 percent).

	 USD 157.420,63 on regional Mine Action activities in SEE (0,5 percent).

	 USD 52.681,97 for Mine Action activities in Macedonia (0,2 percent)

ITF aspires to meet the needs of mine contami-

nated countries in SEE and the South Caucasus 

in order to enable them to achieve the goals set in 

their national strategic plans. For an overview of 

distribution of implemented funds by country/re-

gion in period 2004-2006 see Chart 7. Chart 7: Comparison of funds allocation by country/region (in USD) in period 2004-2006

Chart 6: 

Use of donations by countries in year 2006
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PASSAGE INTO THE AREA. IS MINE ACTION THE SAME IN ALL COUNTRIES? NO, IS THE SIMPLE ANSWER.  MINE ACTION DIFFERS FROM ONE COUNTRY TO ANOTHER. COUNTRIES SUCH AS AFGHANISTAN OR MOZAMBIQUE HAVE LONG ESTABLISHED PROGRAMMES; MINE ACTION HAS BEEN CONDUCTED THERE FOR MANY YEARS. OFTEN THESE COUNTRIES HAVE THERE OWN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION ORGANISATION; SUCH AS THE AFGHAN TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS (ATC). AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, A RAPID MINE ACTION RESPONSE WAS REQUIRED.  A COUNTRYWIDE SURVEY WAS CONDUCTED BY A BRITISH MINE ACTION CHARITY.  THIS GAVE THE UNITED NATIONS MINE ACTION CENTRE A GOOD IDEA OF THE MINE AND UXO PROBLEM THE MINE ACTION 
COMMUNITY WAS ACTUALLY FACING.  WHERE THE PRIORITY CLEARANCE WAS AND WHICH MINEFIELDS NEEDED TO BE CLEARED FIRST. WITH A LARGE NUMBER OF INTERNATIONAL MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS WORKING IN KOSOVO; THE MAJORITY OF THE LANDMINE AND UXO PROBLEM WAS DEALT WITH WITHIN ABOUT 2 YEARS.  AN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION CAPACITY NOW REMAINS TO DEAL WITH THE LOW PRIORITY MINEFIELDS THAT WERE LEFT. MINE CLEARANCE WHAT IS A LANDMINE? A LANDMINE IS AN EXPLOSIVE DEVICE, DESIGNED TO WOUND, KILL OR OTHERWISE INCAPACITATE PERSONNEL; OR DESIGNED TO DESTROY OR DAMAGE VEHICLES. WHAT DIFFERENT TYPES OF LANDMINES ARE THERE? WE KNOW THERE ARE TWO MAIN GROUPS 
OF LANDMINES, ANTI PERSONNEL AND ANTI TANK MINES. ALL LANDMINES HAVE SPECIFIC CHARACTERISTICS AND ARE DESIGNED TO OPERATE IN SPECIFIC WAYS; THEY ARE BLAST, FRAGMENTATION AND BOUNDING. BLAST MINES: THE BLAST EFFECT OF THE MINE EXPLODING IS THE MAIN CAUSE OF INJURY TO THE VICTIM. THE PMN ANTI-PERSONNEL MINE IS A BLAST MINE. FRAGMENTATION MINES: THE MINE HAS A METAL CASE, WHICH BREAKS INTO METAL FRAGMENTS AS THE MINE EXPLODES.  THE SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED OUT BY THE EXPLOSIVE FORCE OF THE MINE AND CAUSE INJURY TO THE VICTIMS. BOUNDING MINES: THE MINE, SIMILAR TO THE FRAGMENTATION, HAS A SMALL CHARGE THAT THROWS THE MINE OUT OF THE 
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The standard ITF operational fee amounts to 3 percent of the donated funds. The fee is set to cover all 

ITF costs related to individual donations, i.e. the tender process, contract awarding procedures, con-

tract monitoring and supervision, project evaluation and reporting. The administration and project costs 

covered by the fee also include the operating expenses of the ITF Headquarters in Slovenia and Imple-

mentation Offices in Bosnia and Herzegovina and in Croatia, monitoring visits by ITF staff in the field, 

conferences, seminars, ITF publications and related activities.

In addition, the fee covers the organization of meetings of the Board of Advisors and all generated re-

ports and corresponding materials.

 

The overview of the administration and project costs is presented in the chart 9.

ITF administration and 
project costs

Chart 9: 

Distribution of ITF administration and project 

costs in 2006

	 Salaries 55,3%

	 Supplies 19,1%

	 External Services 9,8%

	 Fund Raising Expenses 7,1%

	 Insurance 3,4%

	 Printed Materials 1,5%

	 Assets 1,4%

	 Other Costs 1,3%

	 Seminars and Training 1,1%

GROUND INTO THE AIR NORMALLY AT ABOUT HEAD HEIGHT.  THEN THE MAIN CHARGE EXPLODES AND SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED .  A TRIPWIRE USUALLY ACTIVATES THESE LANDMINES. WHAT ACTUALLY MAKES THE MINE EXPLODE? LANDMINES ARE USUALLY INITIATED BY PRESSURE OR TRIP WIRE. PRESSURE: DIRECT DOWNWARD PRESSURE ON THE LANDMINE 
WILL INITIATE THE LANDMINE. TRIPWIRE: A TRIPWIRE IS ATTACHED TO THE FUSE.  WHEN PRESSURE IS APPLIED TO THE TRIPWIRE, A PIN IS NORMALLY PULLED OUT OF THE FUSE INITIATING THE LANDMINE.  SOME LANDMINES MAYBE SET UP WITH MORE THAN ONE TRIPWIRE. HOW IS A LANDMINE LAID? LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED IN A NUMBER OF DIFFERENT WAYS: BY HAND, 
WHERE A LANDMINE IS USUALLY BURIED IN THE GROUND. BY MECHANICAL DEPLOYMENT, SPECIALLY DESIGNED VEHICLES ARE ABLE TO LAY LANDMINES. BY REMOTE DEPLOYMENT, MANY MODERN LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED BY REMOTE METHODS SUCH AS BY AIRCRAFT, HELICOPTER, ARTILLERY OR ROCKET.  LANDMINES DEPLOYED BY THIS MANOR WILL USUALLY BE SURFACE 
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Knowledge and skills through 
trainings needed… 

deliver them.
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III.b. Other Countries and Regions	 51
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Albania	
Bosnia and Herzegovina
Croatia
Macedonia
Montenegro
Serbia (including Kosovo)

III.a. 

LAID. SCATTERABLE DEPLOYMENT, THESE MINES ARE DESIGNED TO SPREAD OF AS LARGE AN AREA AS POSSIBLE.  THE SOVIET PFM-1 ‘BUTTERFLY’ IS ONE SUCH EXAMPLE. WHAT IS A MINEFIELD? A MINEFIELD IS AN AREA OF LAND CONTAINING OR BELIEVED TO CONTAIN LANDMINES. IS IT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE A PROBLEM? NO, IT IS NOT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE CAUSING THESE PROBLEMS – COUNTLESS PIECES OF UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO), SUCH AS GRENADES, MORTARS AND CLUSTER BOMBLETS, MUNITIONS THAT DID NOT EXPLODE, HAVE VERY MUCH THE SAME EFFECT. WHY DON’T ALL MUNITIONS WORK? FOR THE SAME REASON ONE MORNING YOUR CAR WON’T START; SO GRENADES, MORTAR BOMBS ETC MAY NOT WORK. HOW DO 
YOU LOCATE A MINEFIELD? A SURVEY TEAM WILL START BY IDENTIFYING A LANDMINE-AFFLICTED COMMUNITY. ONCE IT HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED THAT LANDMINES AFFECT THE COMMUNITY, THE SURVEY OFFICER WILL TRY TO IDENTIFY THE AREA BELIEVED TO BE A MINEFIELD. THEY WILL USE A VARIETY OF SOURCES OF INFORMATION TO LOCATE A MINEFIELD; THIS WILL RANGE FROM MINEFIELD RECORDS, LOCAL KNOWLEDGE OR OTHER SOURCES. MINEFIELD RECORDS; IF A MINEFIELD IS LAID IT SHOULD BE RECORDED AND MARKED; IN MANY CONFLICTS THIS IS NOT DONE.  THIS COULD BE FOR A VARIETY OF REASONS; BUT IS OFTEN BECAUSE SOLDIERS INVOLVED IN SUCH CONFLICTS ARE NOT PROFESSIONAL SOLDIERS, BUT CONSCRIPTS OR GUER-
RILLA FIGHTERS. AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, THE YUGOSLAVIAN ARMY PROVIDED THE UN WITH VERY ACCURATE MINEFIELD RECORDS.  THIS MADE THE TASK OF IDENTIFYING MINEFIELDS MUCH EASIER IN MANY CASES. LOCAL KNOWLEDGE; IS AN INVALUABLE SOURCE OF INFORMATION.  PEOPLE WHO LIVE THEIR LIVES WITH LANDMINES WILL KNOW WHICH FIELDS NOT TO USE AND WHICH TRACKS NOT TO DRIVE DOWN. A SURVEY TEAM WILL BE ABLE TO TAKE SUCH INFORMATION AND LOCATE SUSPECTED MINEFIELDS. HOW DO YOU DECIDE WHERE TO WORK AND WHAT LAND TO CLEAR? DEMINING AGENCIES MUST IDENTIFY AREAS OF GROUND THAT HAS THE HIGHEST PRIORITY FOR CLEARANCE.  THIS WILL BE DONE IN CONSULTATION WITH THE 
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Demining and Battle Area Clearance (BAC) activ-

ities in 2006 in Albania were executed by a single 

demining organization, namely DanChurchAid 

(DCA). Demining operations were performed 

along the Albanian/Serbian (Northern Albania/

Kosovo) border, i.e. in the regions of Tropoje, 

Has and Kukes. Clearance activities are crucial 

in these regions in order to provide minimum of 

subsistence to people whose lives depend mostly 

on activities such as farming, herding and wood 

collection. The execution of these daily activities is 

still being hindered by mines in some parts of the 

border region. Clearance activities also contribute 

towards better border control of the area, where 

trafficking and other cross border crimes take 

place on daily basis. 

Albania

Donors for Demining and Battle Area 

Clearance in Albania: 

DanChurchAid – private donors, 

EC Delegation in Albania, Germany, 

UK Department for International Development 

(DFID) and the United States of America. 

Demining and 
Battle Area Clearance

In 2006 the clearance program was divided into 

two parts, namely Humanitarian Mine Ac-

tion (HMA) and National Clearance Capacity 

(NCC).

Until the end of 2006, DCA cleared a substantial-

ly larger area compared to the same period of last 

year. During 2006 clearance season DCA cleared 

252.023 square meters of land under HMA pro-

gram with 514 mines and 415 UXO and another 

223.093 square meters of land under NCC pro-

gram with 373 mines and 781 UXO found and 

destroyed. 

Consequently, through clearance of 475.116 

square meters and destruction of 887 mines and 

1.196 UXO, 1.380.928 square meters of land was 

released and returned into use by the local popu-

lation.

Chart 10: 

Distribution of funds in Albania 

by purpose in 2006

	 Mine and UXO Clearance		  86,8%

	 Mine Victims Assistance		  10,9%

	 Mine Risk Education		  1,9%

	 Structure Support		  0,4%

LAID. SCATTERABLE DEPLOYMENT, THESE MINES ARE DESIGNED TO SPREAD OF AS LARGE AN AREA AS POSSIBLE.  THE SOVIET PFM-1 ‘BUTTERFLY’ IS ONE SUCH EXAMPLE. WHAT IS A MINEFIELD? A MINEFIELD IS AN AREA OF LAND CONTAINING OR BELIEVED TO CONTAIN LANDMINES. IS IT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE A PROBLEM? NO, IT IS NOT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE CAUSING THESE PROBLEMS – COUNTLESS PIECES OF UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO), SUCH AS GRENADES, MORTARS AND CLUSTER BOMBLETS, MUNITIONS THAT DID NOT EXPLODE, HAVE VERY MUCH THE SAME EFFECT. WHY DON’T ALL MUNITIONS WORK? FOR THE SAME REASON ONE MORNING YOUR CAR WON’T START; SO GRENADES, MORTAR BOMBS ETC MAY NOT WORK. HOW DO 
YOU LOCATE A MINEFIELD? A SURVEY TEAM WILL START BY IDENTIFYING A LANDMINE-AFFLICTED COMMUNITY. ONCE IT HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED THAT LANDMINES AFFECT THE COMMUNITY, THE SURVEY OFFICER WILL TRY TO IDENTIFY THE AREA BELIEVED TO BE A MINEFIELD. THEY WILL USE A VARIETY OF SOURCES OF INFORMATION TO LOCATE A MINEFIELD; THIS WILL RANGE FROM MINEFIELD RECORDS, LOCAL KNOWLEDGE OR OTHER SOURCES. MINEFIELD RECORDS; IF A MINEFIELD IS LAID IT SHOULD BE RECORDED AND MARKED; IN MANY CONFLICTS THIS IS NOT DONE.  THIS COULD BE FOR A VARIETY OF REASONS; BUT IS OFTEN BECAUSE SOLDIERS INVOLVED IN SUCH CONFLICTS ARE NOT PROFESSIONAL SOLDIERS, BUT CONSCRIPTS OR GUER-
RILLA FIGHTERS. AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, THE YUGOSLAVIAN ARMY PROVIDED THE UN WITH VERY ACCURATE MINEFIELD RECORDS.  THIS MADE THE TASK OF IDENTIFYING MINEFIELDS MUCH EASIER IN MANY CASES. LOCAL KNOWLEDGE; IS AN INVALUABLE SOURCE OF INFORMATION.  PEOPLE WHO LIVE THEIR LIVES WITH LANDMINES WILL KNOW WHICH FIELDS NOT TO USE AND WHICH TRACKS NOT TO DRIVE DOWN. A SURVEY TEAM WILL BE ABLE TO TAKE SUCH INFORMATION AND LOCATE SUSPECTED MINEFIELDS. HOW DO YOU DECIDE WHERE TO WORK AND WHAT LAND TO CLEAR? DEMINING AGENCIES MUST IDENTIFY AREAS OF GROUND THAT HAS THE HIGHEST PRIORITY FOR CLEARANCE.  THIS WILL BE DONE IN CONSULTATION WITH THE 
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Project “Social-Economic Re-inte-
gration of Mine survivors, through 
Animal Husbandry, Phase II’’

Project ‘’Improvement of Community 
Based Medical and Social Services 
for Mine survivors, Phase II’’

The project strives to improve access to social 

and medical services for mine survivors in mine 

affected communities of Northeast Albania. It 

is empowering local structures to provide social 

and medical services to mine survivors and other 

people with disabilities through the establishment 

of a proper referral network system, including a 

physiotherapist, orthopaedist, psychotherapist 

and 30 trained nurses. 

The project provides basic services like physi-

otherapy, counselling and orthopaedic services to 

mine/UXO survivors, with activities consisting 

of logistic support to mine/UXO survivors (or-

thopaedic, physiotherapy and counselling) at the 

regional hospital of Kukes, regular home visits to 

mine survivors from MWVA project team to 

alleviate survivors stress and trauma, support vil-

lage nurses to conduct regular visits and to enable 

a “follow up” of mine survivors health situation, 

training of amputee mine survivors on the main-

tenance of prosthesis, organization of a “round 

table” discussions on rights and responsibilities of 

mine survivors, conducting counselling sessions 

and recreational activities with traumatized sur-

vivors.

The main activities in 2006 encompassed logis-

tic support to 221 survivors - physiotherapy ses-

sions/services to 72 survivors, orthopaedic serv-

ices to 48 survivors, a prosthesis repair workshop 

(Kukes Hospital), counselling sessions to 48 sur-

vivors, 61 home visits, 53 survivors training and 

knowledge improvement on the maintenance of 

prosthesis. 2.100 leaflets were distributed to mine 

survivors on physiotherapy exercises and prosthe-

sis maintenance. 

Project is being implemented by Albanian 

NGO Mine and Weapons Victim Association 

(MWVA).

Mine Victims Assistance

During the second year of the project, (September 

2005 – August 2006) 31 beneficiaries were assist-

ed with interest-free loans, which enabled them 

to purchase cows in order to establish household 

economies. Beneficiaries are required to pay back 

interest-free loans within a two year timeframe. 

The main activities of this project were to con-

duct simple training of household economies for 

marketing issues, conduct community based voca-

tional training on the management of household 

economies and revolving fund, collect instalments 

of the first phase project and keep financial track 

of the returned loans, procure and distribute cows 

to new beneficiaries and to provide veterinary and 

technical support to newly established household 

economies. 

Donors for Mine Victims Assistance 

in Albania: 

Handicap International,

Night of A Thousand Dinners-Albania, 

Slovenia and the United States of America.

LANDMINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITY, NGOS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORGANISATIONS PRIORITISATION. AN AREA MAYBE THOUGHT TO BE MINED, OR THE FEAR OF LANDMINES IS DENYING THE USE OF THIS LAND TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS.  ONCE THE LAND HAS BEEN CLEARED IT IS THEN FREE TO BE USED. A LARGE PLOT OF LAND MAY BE DENIED TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS BY ONLY A FEW LANDMINES, THEREFORE THE AREA CLEARED IS MORE IMPORTANT THAN THE NUMBER OF LANDMINES FOUND. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINE? THE MOST COMMON METHOD WILL BE A DEMINER USING A METAL DETECTOR. A DEMINER WILL USE A METAL DETECTOR AND A VARIETY OF OTHER TOOLS, QUIET OFTEN-SIMPLE GARDEN-
ING TOOLS. THE DETECTOR WILL INDICATE THE PRESENCE OF METAL IN THE GROUND. EVERY METAL INDICATION GIVEN BY THE METAL DETECTOR NEEDS TO BE CHECKED IN CASE IT‘S A MINE. SO THE MORE METAL FRAGMENTS THERE ARE, THE MORE TIME IT MIGHT TAKE. THE DEMINER WILL THEN MARK THIS SPOT PRIOR TO EXCAVATING ON THAT LOCATION USING A PROBE AND EXCAVATION TOOLS. IF HE OR SHE FINDS A LANDMINE, A SUPERIOR WILL BE INFORMED. DO ALL MINES CONTAIN METAL? NO, THERE ARE SOME THAT DO NOT CONTAIN ANY METAL AT ALL. SO HOW DO YOU CLEAR MINES WITHOUT METAL IN THEM? THE DEMINERS WILL HAVE TO CARRY OUT A 100% EXCAVATION OF THE AREA; OR DOGS MAYBE USED IN SUCH AREAS. WHO ACTU-
ALLY CLEARS THE MINES? IN MOST CASES DEMINERS WILL BE VOLUNTEERS FROM THE LOCAL COMMUNITY, HOWEVER SOMETIMES THEY ARE DEMOBILISED SOLDIERS.  THESE PEOPLE WILL MAKE UP THE NATIONAL STAFF EMPLOYED BY MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS. ALL ORGANISATIONS THAT ADOPT-A-MINEFIELD (UK) FUNDS EMPLOY NATIONAL STAFF, BOTH IN OPERATIONAL ROLES AND OPERATIONAL SUPPORT.  MINE CLEARANCES ORGANISATIONS ARE COMMITTED TO CAPACITY BUILDING OF LOCAL STAFF; PROVIDING MANAGEMENT TRAINING NATIONAL STAFF, SO THAT THEY CAN ONE DAY RUN THE PROGRAMME WITHOUT THE PRESENCES OF INTERNATIONAL STAFF. MINES IN CAMBODIA, ARE A CAMBODIAN PROBLEM; IT IS THE KHMER PEOPLE, 
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Project “Support to Land Mine/ UXO Survivors through Medical Treatment 
for the Sight Impaired”

In 2005, the fund-raising event “Night of a Thou-

sand Dinners” was organized in order to col-

lect funds for the implementation of the Project 

“Support to Landmine/UXO Survivors through 

Medical Treatment for Sight Impaired”. The col-

lected funds were matched by funds provided by 

the United States of America. 

The overall objective of this project was to sup-

port the social and physical reintegration of sight 

impaired mine survivors into their communities. 

The MWVA and AMAE organized screening for 

26 sight impaired mine survivors at the private 

Russian IGLI clinic. 

Project “Triage of Mine Victims for Rehabilitation Treatment in Slovenia”

In November 2006 Slovenian Rehabilitation Institute (IRRS) implemented triage in Kukes and Tropoje, 

Albania. From those examined 31 were selected for further treatment at IRRS in Ljubljana, Slovenia,  

in 2007.

The main activities included the provision of lo-

gistic support to mine sight impaired survivors, 

which were screened, planning and organization 

of meetings with Russian IGLI clinic for medical 

interventions, support for sight impaired survivors 

prior to operations and post-operation follow up 

of treated survivors.

Consequently, the activities resulted in screening of 

29 sight impaired survivors, operations of 8 sight 

impaired survivors with their vision significantly 

improving, periodical post medical follow-up of 

12 sight impaired survivors and four mine survi-

vors supported with medication and equipment, 

providing information to sight impaired survivors 

regarding various available services and eye-injury 

care procedures, periodical ophthalmologist post 

medical check-ups of 12 sight impaired survivors, 

providing medication for one mine survivor for 

his trachea injuries and his epilepsy - a result of 

the mine accident. 

The main achievements/results in 2006 were the 

establishment of the revolving fund, facilitation of 

small scale economic opportunities for mine survi-

vors through the formation of revolving fund op-

eration, distribution of 55 cows to 31 beneficiar-

ies, the establishment of 31 households, economic 

re-integration of 31 mine survivors, the achieved 

increase of incomes for families of mine survivors 

(by approximately 1.000 USD per year). 

So far, 104 cows were distributed to 63 mine sur-

vivors in two phases of the project.

The program is being partially self-sufficient and 

is expected to become fully self-sufficient in the 

following 5 years time. The monthly repayment 

instalments are interest free. The main obstacles 

to quality integration include poverty, access dif-

ficulties in very remote areas as well as lack of 

education, poor infrastructure, social and health 

services for persons with disabilities. 

Project is being implemented by Albanian NGO 

Mine and Weapons Victim Association. 

LANDMINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITY, NGOS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORGANISATIONS PRIORITISATION. AN AREA MAYBE THOUGHT TO BE MINED, OR THE FEAR OF LANDMINES IS DENYING THE USE OF THIS LAND TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS.  ONCE THE LAND HAS BEEN CLEARED IT IS THEN FREE TO BE USED. A LARGE PLOT OF LAND MAY BE DENIED TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS BY ONLY A FEW LANDMINES, THEREFORE THE AREA CLEARED IS MORE IMPORTANT THAN THE NUMBER OF LANDMINES FOUND. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINE? THE MOST COMMON METHOD WILL BE A DEMINER USING A METAL DETECTOR. A DEMINER WILL USE A METAL DETECTOR AND A VARIETY OF OTHER TOOLS, QUIET OFTEN-SIMPLE GARDEN-
ING TOOLS. THE DETECTOR WILL INDICATE THE PRESENCE OF METAL IN THE GROUND. EVERY METAL INDICATION GIVEN BY THE METAL DETECTOR NEEDS TO BE CHECKED IN CASE IT‘S A MINE. SO THE MORE METAL FRAGMENTS THERE ARE, THE MORE TIME IT MIGHT TAKE. THE DEMINER WILL THEN MARK THIS SPOT PRIOR TO EXCAVATING ON THAT LOCATION USING A PROBE AND EXCAVATION TOOLS. IF HE OR SHE FINDS A LANDMINE, A SUPERIOR WILL BE INFORMED. DO ALL MINES CONTAIN METAL? NO, THERE ARE SOME THAT DO NOT CONTAIN ANY METAL AT ALL. SO HOW DO YOU CLEAR MINES WITHOUT METAL IN THEM? THE DEMINERS WILL HAVE TO CARRY OUT A 100% EXCAVATION OF THE AREA; OR DOGS MAYBE USED IN SUCH AREAS. WHO ACTU-
ALLY CLEARS THE MINES? IN MOST CASES DEMINERS WILL BE VOLUNTEERS FROM THE LOCAL COMMUNITY, HOWEVER SOMETIMES THEY ARE DEMOBILISED SOLDIERS.  THESE PEOPLE WILL MAKE UP THE NATIONAL STAFF EMPLOYED BY MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS. ALL ORGANISATIONS THAT ADOPT-A-MINEFIELD (UK) FUNDS EMPLOY NATIONAL STAFF, BOTH IN OPERATIONAL ROLES AND OPERATIONAL SUPPORT.  MINE CLEARANCES ORGANISATIONS ARE COMMITTED TO CAPACITY BUILDING OF LOCAL STAFF; PROVIDING MANAGEMENT TRAINING NATIONAL STAFF, SO THAT THEY CAN ONE DAY RUN THE PROGRAMME WITHOUT THE PRESENCES OF INTERNATIONAL STAFF. MINES IN CAMBODIA, ARE A CAMBODIAN PROBLEM; IT IS THE KHMER PEOPLE, 
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Project “Mine Risk Education (MRE) 
in Northeast Albania” 

Mine Risk Education

“Mine Risk Education in Northern Albania” 

project was executed by local NGO Mine and 

Weapon Victims Association from May until De-

cember of 2006. The main purpose was to keep 

30.000 mine affected community members in 39 

villages continuously informed about mine and 

UXO threat. 

The communities supported by MWA team, or-

ganized regular monthly meetings within their 

communities to disseminate MRE information 

and MRE materials (posters, leaflets and other 

prints). Field teams help to plan and organize 

school based activities related to MRE. These ac-

tivities consist of contests among classes for the 

best poster, leaflet or song with mine threat aware-

ness, including role plays, providing information 

on remaining mine-fields, mine-signs, environ-

mental issues, violence and participation of wom-

en. A mobile theatre with comedians travels from 

village to village on a regular basis to disseminate 

safety messages through comedies and parodies. 

The physical and medical rehabilitation (PMR) 

system in Albania is inadequately developed. The 

lack of adequate services indicate, which injured 

persons and persons with physical disabilities 

(including landmine survivors) are unable to fully 

benefit from proper treatment that could prevent 

further complications or even aggravation of exist-

ing impairments. 

The project aims to support the Albanian public 

authorities to develop a proper PMR system on 

the national level, while developing a sustainable 

response to the PMR needs of landmine survivors 

in the mine affected region of Kukes.

In 2006, the PMR referral person was nominated 

by the Ministry of Health; workshops compris-

ing of PMR experts were implemented; a study 

visit for the working group members in Belgium 

was carried out and a conference by MoH (with 

participation from the Ministries of Education / 

Sciences, Defence and Labour / Social Affairs) 

was carried out in order to present the draft PMR 

strategy. 

The Nursing Faculty in Tirana implements a sus-

tainable program for the development of physi-

otherapy training (20 students enrolled, support 

of two Belgium nursing schools). The quality of 

existing prosthetics services are improving and the 

training capacities for prosthetics of the Albanian 

health sector developing. The rehabilitation unit 

of the Kukes hospital has been established and 

now delivers basic rehabilitation services particu-

larly addressing the needs of landmine survivors. 

Ortho-prosthetic facilities are to be improved 

with equipment and qualified staff at the regional 

hospital level in Kukes. Regulatory mechanisms 

for rehabilitation as well as prosthetics and or-

thotics services delivery have been defined and are 

being enforced.

The two year project (from April 2006 to March 

2008) is being carried out by Handicap Interna-

tional in close collaboration with the Ministry of 

Health (MoH). The level of cooperation between 

HI, the MoH, AMAE and other organisations of-

fers quite an optimistic view regarding the success 

of the project.

Project ‘’Access to Physical & Medical 
Rehabilitation in Albania - phase I” 

Donor for Mine Risk Education 

in Albania: 

United States of America.

FAMILY, FRIENDS WHO ARE AFFECTED BY LANDMINES.  WHAT DO THEY DO WHEN THEY FIND A LANDMINE? LANDMINE PROBLEM WHY IS IT NECESSARY TO HAVE A CAMPAIGN TO CLEAR MINEFIELDS? LANDMINES CONTINUE TO EFFECT MANY COMMUNITIES WELL AFTER HOSTILITIES HAVE CEASED; ONE THIRD OF ALL VICTIMS ARE CHILDREN. THE PRESENCE OF LANDMINES CAN ALSO HINDER THE REDEVELOPMENT OF A COUNTRY AND ITS ECONOMY FOR MANY YEARS AFTER A CONFLICT. THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN THE GROUND IN AT LEAST 90 COUNTRIES. LANDMINES REPORTEDLY MAIM OR KILL 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR. THOSE WHO SURVIVE ENDURE A LIFETIME OF PHYSICAL, PSYCHOLOGICAL, AND ECO-
NOMIC HARDSHIP. LOCAL COMMUNITIES IN LANDMINE-AFFECTED COUNTRIES OFTEN DO NOT HAVE THE RESOURCES TO CLEAR THEIR OWN LAND AND TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE CARE FOR THEIR LANDMINE SURVIVORS. THEY DEPEND PRIMARILY UPON FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM GOVERNMENTS, INTERNATIONAL AND NON GOVERNMENTAL ORGANISATIONS. WHAT IS MINE ACTION? MINE ACTION REFERS TO ALL THOSE ACTIVITIES, WHICH ADDRESS THE PROBLEMS FACED BY PEOPLE AS A RESULT OF LANDMINE/UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO) CONTAMINATION. MINE ACTION IS NOT SO MUCH ABOUT LANDMINES, THOUGH, AS ABOUT PEOPLE AND THEIR INTERACTIONS WITH A MINE-CONTAMINATED ENVIRONMENT. IT AIMS TO RECREATE AN ENVIRON-
MENT IN WHICH PEOPLE CAN LIVE SAFELY, IN WHICH ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT CAN OCCUR FREE FROM CONSTRAINTS, AND IN WHICH LANDMINE SURVIVORS ARE FULLY INTEGRATED INTO THEIR SOCIETIES. MINE ACTION COMPRISES FIVE COMPLEMENTARY GROUPS OF ACTIVITIES: MINE RISK EDUCATION (MRE) THE EDUCATION PROCESS WHICH AIMS TO ENSURE THAT COMMUNITIES ARE NOT ONLY AWARE OF THE RISKS FROM LIVING IN PROXIMITY TO LANDMINES AND UXO, AND TO ENCOURAGE PEOPLE TO BEHAVE IN A WAY THAT REDUCES THE RISK TO PEOPLE, PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT. HUMANITARIAN DEMINING DEMINING ACTIVITIES WHICH LEAD TO THE REMOVAL OF LANDMINE AND UXO HAZARDS, INCLUDING TECHNICAL 
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Project “Quality Management Team 
Support”

Structure Support

From May to December of 2006 the MRE team 

conducted 92 field visits by MRE field monitors, 

78 MRE sessions/meetings with school children 

and the village communities, 37 MRE school ac-

tivities conducted regarding the selection of best 

poster and/or verse, 2.350 MRE leaflets and 

3.100 MRE booklets distributed in 39 villages, 16 

handover ceremonies of cleared/de-mined land 

carried out, MRE messages disseminated by a 

mobile theatre (consisting of 7 local comedians). 

21 out of 30 planned mobile theatre perform-

ances were conducted, attended by 5.400 school 

children and 15.800 community members.

Donors for Structure Support in Albania: 

Czech Republic and 

the United States of America.

At the end of February 2006 a four-month sup-

port of the Quality Management AMAE team 

completed. The project objectives were to secure 

conditions under which mine and UXO clearance 

activities are carried out in a safe and effective 

manner, to ensure that the area cleared is safe for 

use by the community and that the area cleared 

is returned back to the people for productive use. 

The QMT support contributed to better Qual-

ity Assurance and Quality Control of the AMAE 

Quality Management Team.

FAMILY, FRIENDS WHO ARE AFFECTED BY LANDMINES.  WHAT DO THEY DO WHEN THEY FIND A LANDMINE? LANDMINE PROBLEM WHY IS IT NECESSARY TO HAVE A CAMPAIGN TO CLEAR MINEFIELDS? LANDMINES CONTINUE TO EFFECT MANY COMMUNITIES WELL AFTER HOSTILITIES HAVE CEASED; ONE THIRD OF ALL VICTIMS ARE CHILDREN. THE PRESENCE OF LANDMINES CAN ALSO HINDER THE REDEVELOPMENT OF A COUNTRY AND ITS ECONOMY FOR MANY YEARS AFTER A CONFLICT. THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN THE GROUND IN AT LEAST 90 COUNTRIES. LANDMINES REPORTEDLY MAIM OR KILL 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR. THOSE WHO SURVIVE ENDURE A LIFETIME OF PHYSICAL, PSYCHOLOGICAL, AND ECO-
NOMIC HARDSHIP. LOCAL COMMUNITIES IN LANDMINE-AFFECTED COUNTRIES OFTEN DO NOT HAVE THE RESOURCES TO CLEAR THEIR OWN LAND AND TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE CARE FOR THEIR LANDMINE SURVIVORS. THEY DEPEND PRIMARILY UPON FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM GOVERNMENTS, INTERNATIONAL AND NON GOVERNMENTAL ORGANISATIONS. WHAT IS MINE ACTION? MINE ACTION REFERS TO ALL THOSE ACTIVITIES, WHICH ADDRESS THE PROBLEMS FACED BY PEOPLE AS A RESULT OF LANDMINE/UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO) CONTAMINATION. MINE ACTION IS NOT SO MUCH ABOUT LANDMINES, THOUGH, AS ABOUT PEOPLE AND THEIR INTERACTIONS WITH A MINE-CONTAMINATED ENVIRONMENT. IT AIMS TO RECREATE AN ENVIRON-
MENT IN WHICH PEOPLE CAN LIVE SAFELY, IN WHICH ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT CAN OCCUR FREE FROM CONSTRAINTS, AND IN WHICH LANDMINE SURVIVORS ARE FULLY INTEGRATED INTO THEIR SOCIETIES. MINE ACTION COMPRISES FIVE COMPLEMENTARY GROUPS OF ACTIVITIES: MINE RISK EDUCATION (MRE) THE EDUCATION PROCESS WHICH AIMS TO ENSURE THAT COMMUNITIES ARE NOT ONLY AWARE OF THE RISKS FROM LIVING IN PROXIMITY TO LANDMINES AND UXO, AND TO ENCOURAGE PEOPLE TO BEHAVE IN A WAY THAT REDUCES THE RISK TO PEOPLE, PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT. HUMANITARIAN DEMINING DEMINING ACTIVITIES WHICH LEAD TO THE REMOVAL OF LANDMINE AND UXO HAZARDS, INCLUDING TECHNICAL 
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By 31 December 2006, 1.498.455 square meters 

of mine suspected land was cleared in Bosnia and 

Herzegovina; additionally 4.259.757 square me-

ters of land was released through technical survey 

operations. Consequently, the total figures amount 

to over 5.758.212 square meters of cleared land 

with 2.105 mines and 495 UXO found and de-

stroyed. 

Furthermore, demining projects totalling to 

142.000 square meters with additional 417.000 

square meters of technical survey projects have 

been contracted in 2006, for which works and 

services are presently in progress.

There were 4 Community Integrated Mine Action 

Plans (CIMAP) implemented with total surface 

of 1.115.403 square meters released. Additional 

CIMAP project in total surface of 176.845 square 

meters continues to be implemented in 2007. 

Bosnia and
Herzegovina 

Donors for Demining and Technical Survey 

in Bosnia and Herzegovina: 

Adopt-A-Minefield®, Austria, Belgium, 

Bosnia and Herzegovina, Brčko District, Canada, 

Central Bosnian Canton, Bosnian –Podrinje 

Canton, Community Goražde, Canton  

Sarajevo – Ministry of Urban Planning and En-

vironmental Protection, Community Stari grad, 

Community Ilidža, Germany, Norway, Slovenia, 

Switzerland, United Nations Development 

Program in Bosnia and Herzegovina, 

UK Department for International Development 

(DFID), World Without Mines and 

the United States of America. 

Demining and 
Technical Survey

In 2006, 20 tender procedures for commercial 

companies and NGOs were carried out by ITF 

Implementation Office in Bosnia and Herzegovi-

na (4 open and 16 restricted). Tenders included 

demining projects that were selected from BH 

MAC priority list and in accordance with Land-

mine Impact Survey results. Project priorities 

were verified by ITF coordinators prior to their 

publication. ITF also implemented a project fi-

nanced with Irish donation - support to Entity 

Armed Forces through EUFOR. EUFOR exe-

cuted the mechanical ground preparation of more 

than 220.000 square meters of land while Entity 

Armed Forces performed the follow-up activities 

by manual demining and monitoring. In addition, 

Norway, Switzerland and Germany supported ac-

tivities of NGO Norwegian People’s Aid. 

Implementation of demining and technical survey 

activities in Bosnia and Herzegovina was greatly 

Chart 11: 

Distribution of funds in Bosnia and 

Herzegovina by purpose in 2006

	 Mine and UXO Clearance		  63.4% 

	 Structure Support		  26.5%

	 Mine Victims Assistance		  6.7%

	 Other				    2.0%

	 Mine Risk Education		  1.1%

	 Training			   0.4%

SURVEY, MAPPING, CLEARANCE, MARKING, POST-CLEARANCE DOCUMENTATION, COMMUNITY MINE ACTION LIAISON AND THE HANDOVER OF CLEARED LAND. DEMINING MAY BE EMERGENCY-BASED OR DEVELOPMENTAL. SURVIVOR ASSISTANCE REFERS TO ALL AID, RELIEF, COMFORT AND SUPPORT PROVIDED SURVIVORS WITH THE PURPOSE OF REDUCING THE IMMEDIATE AND LONG-TERM MEDICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL IMPLICATIONS OF THEIR TRAUMA. STOCKPILE DESTRUCTION ARTICLE 4 OF THE MINE BAN TREATY (MBT) REQUIRES THAT SIGNATORIES UNDERTAKE TO DESTROY OR ENSURE THE DESTRUCTION OF ALL STOCKPILED ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES IT OWNS OR POSSESSES, OR THAT ARE UNDER ITS JURISDICTION OR CONTROL, AS SOON 
AS POSSIBLE BUT NOT LATER THAN FOUR YEARS AFTER THE ENTRY INTO FORCE OF THE MBT FOR THAT STATE PARTY. ADVOCACY AGAINST THE USE OF ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES. IN THE CONTEXT OF MINE ACTION, THE TERM REFERS TO … PUBLIC SUPPORT, RECOMMENDATION OR POSITIVE PUBLICITY WITH THE AIM OF REMOVING, OR AT LEAST REDUCING, THE THREAT FROM, AND THE IMPACT OF, LANDMINES AND UXO. WHY CLEAR LANDMINES? THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN 90 COUNTRIES. THESE REPORTEDLY KILL OR INJUR 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR.  IT IS HOWEVER DIFFICULT TO OBTAIN ACCURATE STATISTICS.  WE WON’T KNOW HOW MANY LANDMINES THERE ARE IN THE GROUND UNTIL WE’VE ACTUALLY 
FOUND THEM, AND MANY LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE NOT REPORTED BECAUSE THEY HAPPEN IN REMOTE AREAS AND HEALTH CENTRES DON’T EVEN FIND OUT ABOUT THEM. THIS IMPACT GOES FAR BEYOND PHYSICAL INJURY AND DEATH – IT INCLUDES VIRTUALLY EVERY ASPECT OF LIFE AND PREVENTS MINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITIES FROM FULLY RECOVERING AFTER ARMED CONFLICTS HAVE ENDED. ABOUT ONE THIRD OF ALL LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE CHILDREN.  MANY MORE LOSE PARENTS OR OTHER FAMILY MEMBERS AND SUDDENLY FIND THEMSELVES RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING FOR THE FAMILY. IN ADDITION, LANDMINES HINDER INFRASTRUCTURE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, THEY INCREASE A COUNTRY’S DEPENDENCY ON IN-
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affected by the introduction of Value Added Tax 

(VAT) in 2006. This has been pointed out in the 

opinion stated in UHY Revizija and svetovanje 

d.o.o. Auditor’s Report:

»The Fund has outstanding receivables from VAT in 

Bosnia and Herzegovina in amount 159,4 millions 

SIT (ITF remark: USD 873.879,32) at the 2006 

yearend. The VAT system in Bosnia and Herzegovi-

na has been introduced in 2006. At the beginning 

the tax authorities in Bosnia and Herzegovina have 

refunded VAT claims to the Fund, but the last VAT 

claim has not successfully processed. The Ministry for 

Foreign Affairs of Bosnia and Herzegovina has issued 

a written explanation that the Fund is not entitled for 

VAT refunds. Therefore there is certain degree of un-

certainty when and in what amount VAT receivables 

could be collected.«(Please refer to page 66.)

Support to the program “Landmine Survivors 

Network in Bosnia and Herzegovina” (LSN) con-

tinued in 2006. LSN offers assistance to survivors 

in their recovery, increases support to survivors 

assistance and changes the overall perception of 

persons with disabilities through raising aware-

ness and community outreach. In 2006, 190 mine 

survivors were treated and LSN expanded its ac-

tivities to 9 new municipalities. 

In 2006, 97 survivors received economic assist-

ance with the aim of facilitating the start-up, 32 

expanding and 64 survivors starting new busi-

nesses. one survivor was supported in education. 

Four groups of survivors were organized in order 

to implement a project of economic integration 

with goal to develop entrepreneurial skills of mine 

survivors and educate them in business planning. 

Another 21 landmine survivors and LSN BiH 

staff members participated in the “Greenhouse 

Vegetable Production and Marketing” training 

program. LSN BiH arranged the participation 

of 26 survivors at the agriculture fair held in 

northeast BiH. 26 participants were able to dis-

play agricultural products, which they cultivated 

themselves (fruits and vegetables) as well as other 

goods (wood products, steel fences, etc).

Mine Victims Assistance 

LSN also focused on offering psychological sup-

port for landmine survivors/amputees through 

group work. Three support groups were organ-

ised, each group comprising of 8 survivors with 

the aim of social re-integration (with special at-

tention to female amputees). The first survivor 

advocacy/rights group was organized in Banja 

Luka with active participation of 13 survivors/ 

amputees. 

	

The 4th Survivors Art/Artisan work Exhibition 

was opened on 18 April 2006 in the BiH Art Gal-

lery in Sarajevo. Art and artisan work by 29 land-

mine survivors/amputees from different regions 

was exhibited, with participation of guest exhibi-

tors from the Art Colony for people with disabili-

ties. The Art Colony had a Regional character and 

was a five-day gathering of 15 artists from Bosnia 

and Herzegovina, Croatia, Macedonia, Montene-

gro and Serbia. 

Donors for Mine Victims Assistance 

in Bosnia and Herzegovina: 

Landmine Survivors 

Network and the United States of America.

Program “Landmine Survivors Network in Bosnia and Herzegovina”
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LSN participated at the meetings of the 7th and 

8th UN “ad hoc” committee on Convention for the 

Rights of Persons with Disabilities, where LSN 

played an important role in the negotiations talks, 

including the last meeting when the Convention 

text was finalised and adopted for submission to 

the UN General Assembly. LSN also continues to 

participate at the BH MAC coordination meet-

ings related to development/implementation of 

the State MVA 2006 operational plan based on 

recommendations from Nairobi Action Plan. 

Between 26th February and 2th March 2006, LSN 

assisted ITF in implementing a 5-day assessment 

visit to Azerbaijan with goal to asses the needs / 

situation of landmine survivors in Azerbaijan and 

available services for mine survivors. The aim was 

also to look for the possibilities of potential capac-

ity building trainings that LSN could provide to 

strengthen the MVA component in ANAMA 

Mine Action program. Based on recommenda-

tions by LSN, ITF together with ANAMA co-

shaped National MVA program in Azerbaijan. 

With the aim of reaching and assisting more sur-

vivors in 2006, LSN appointed a Regional Coor-

dinator for SEE who would in cooperation with 

the Network Director, spearhead LSN activities 

in the neighbouring countries of Albania, Croatia, 

Macedonia, Montenegro, Serbia and possibly, Az-

erbaijan.

Project “Sport-Psychological Reha-
bilitation of Mine Victims in Bosnia 
and Herzegovina”

The implementation of the project “Sport - Psy-

chological Rehabilitation of Mine Victims in 

Bosnia and Herzegovina” started in May 2006. 

The aim of this project was to improve quality of 

civilian mine survivors’ life and to offer new pos-

sibilities of their physical and mental engagement 

in their social surroundings. 

Program “Sustainable Professional 
Rehabilitation for Landmine Survi-
vors in Bosnia and Herzegovina”

Adopt-A-Minefield® UK started with the imple-

mentation of the program “Sustainable Profession-

al Rehabilitation for Landmine Survivors in BiH” 

together with NGO Stop Mines in September 

2004. The project addressed and fulfilled the needs 

of landmine survivors in order to demonstrate sig-

nificant client and institutional sustainability. Due 

to revolving fund established, project program con-

tinued in 2006 supporting 10 projects. The initial 

donation in 2004 was provided by the Adopt-A-

Minefield® UK and United States of America.

TERNATIONAL AID, BLOCK THE DELIVERY OF RELIEF GOODS TO AREAS MOST IN NEED, PREVENT THE RETURN OF REFUGEES AND HAMPER THE PROCESS OF PEACE AND RECONCILIATION. LANDMINES HAVE A KNOCK ON EFFECT TO OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS.  AID CONVOYS WILL NOT BE ABLE TO DRIVE ROADS SUSPECTED OF BEING MINED; THIS CAN MEAN AID FAILS TO REACH COMMUNITIES, AND OFTEN-EXPENSIVE ALTERNATIVES HAVE TO BE SOUGHT SUCH AS AIRDROPS. CASE STUDY: NUBA MOUNTAINS, CENTRAL SUDAN IN JANUARY 2003, THE DANCHURCH AID (DCA) MINE ACTION TEAM, WORKING IN THE NUBA MOUNTAINS, WERE TASKED TO CLEAR THE ROAD FROM THE VILLAGE OF EL HAMRA TO THE VILLAGE OF UMM SERDIBA. THERE 
HAD BEEN TWO MINE STRIKES ON THIS ROAD, ONE DESTROYED A TRACTOR KILLING A NUMBER OF PEOPLE; THE SECOND VEHICLE TO BE HIT BELONGED TO THE JMC, THE INTERNATIONAL BODY MONITORING THE ‘NUBA CEASEFIRE’ BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENT OF SUDAN AND THE SUDANESE PEOPLES LIBERATION MOVEMENT/ARMY. ALTHOUGH THE ROAD HAD TO REGARDED AS MINED; THE LOCAL POPULATION HAD TO CONTINUE USING THE ROAD, IT WAS THE ONLY WAY THEY COULD GET TO THE MAIN MARKET IN THE AREA. OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS WERE UNABLE TO ACCESS VAST AREAS OF THE NUBA MOUNTAINS; LEADING TO PROLONGED SUFFERING FOR THOUSANDS OF PEOPLE. DCA DEPLOYED A NUMBER OF DOG TEAMS ONTO 
THE ROAD, AND THE SUBSEQUENT CLEARANCE NOW PROVIDES THE LOCAL PEOPLE A SAFE ROUTE TO TRAVEL, THE JMC WITH SAFE PASSAGE AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF A ‘HUMANITARIAN HIGHWAY’ TO ALLOW OTHER ORGANISATIONS SAFE PASSAGE INTO THE AREA. IS MINE ACTION THE SAME IN ALL COUNTRIES? NO, IS THE SIMPLE ANSWER.  MINE ACTION DIFFERS FROM ONE COUNTRY TO ANOTHER. COUNTRIES SUCH AS AFGHANISTAN OR MOZAMBIQUE HAVE LONG ESTABLISHED PROGRAMMES; MINE ACTION HAS BEEN CONDUCTED THERE FOR MANY YEARS. OFTEN THESE COUNTRIES HAVE THERE OWN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION ORGANISATION; SUCH AS THE AFGHAN TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS (ATC). AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, A RAPID MINE 
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Project “Sponsorship of 
International Sitting Volleyball 
Tournament”

ITF sponsored a 2-day International Sitting Vol-

leyball Tournament held from 27th May to 28th 

May 2006 with donor support provided by the 

United States of America. 8 teams with approxi-

mately 150 disabled persons from Croatia, BiH, 

Egypt and Slovenia participated in the tourna-

ment. 

Project “Spirit of Soccer”

Spirit of Soccer’s project in 2006 underwent two 

major transformations. In the first half of 2006, 

the organization transformed from an interna-

tional organization, with an expatriate project 

leader presenting direct MRE in the English 

language, to a Bosnian registered organization, 

consisting largely of Bosnian field staff presenting 

MRE in local language(s). In the second half of 

2006, the project transformed further, which re-

sulted in structural changes of the organization. 

During this second transformation, Spirit of Soc-

cer halved the number of staff and adopted new 

methodologies aimed at utilizing the trainers as 

the spearhead to spread positive MRE messages 

to young athletes throughout Bosnia and Herze-

govina.

A total number of beneficiaries for the period 

from 1 April to 30 November 2006 was 7.429. 

In reported period the total number of posters 

distributed was 8.452. Moreover 137 sport clubs 

individually benefited from the provision of 620 

footballs, handballs, volleyballs and basketballs 

through participation in the Spirit of Soccer 

scheme. Additional equipment was donated to 

karate and judo clubs.

Mine Risk Education

Donors for Mine Risk Education 

in Bosnia and Herzegovina: 

Austria, Brčko District Government

and the United States of America.

In May 2006, 21 survivors from BiH took part in 

diving activities on an Island of Krk, Croatia. All 

together 232 diving expeditions were performed 

on different locations. A course in underwater 

photography was also held during their stay on 

Krk. In June 2006 two survivors took part in spe-

cial training course to obtain necessary skills for 

diving and escorting the persons with disabilities. 

Another four participants took part in a 3-day in 

the underwater first aid course. In July 2006, a 

diving camp was organized for 7 mine survivors 

at Jablaničko Lake. In August 2006, two survivors 

were trained in proper handling with diving bot-

tles and three survivors participated in training or-

ganized by BiH Police diving team. During train-

ing, different rescue underwater search techniques 

were performed and exercised. In October 2006, 

diving in Pliva Lake was also organized for 16 par-

ticipants. Project attracted wide media coverage. 
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Program “Mine Risk Education 
through Community Integrated 
Mine Action Plans”

There were four CIMAP projects concluded in 

2006 and one CIMAP will continue through-

out 2007. Beside demining and technical survey 

components, CIMAP projects include Mine Risk 

Education component, by addressing the mine 

problem in the affected community through the 

holistic approach. Altogether over 3.000 people 

from four local communities were included in 

CIMAP’s Mine Risk Education activities. 

Conference “Rehabilitation within 
the Employment Process of Persons 
with Disabilities in Tuzla” 

The conference was organized by Institute for Re-

habilitation Republic of Slovenia (IRRS) in April 

2006 in Tuzla, BiH. 61 experts and participants 

from rehabilitation and education institutions, so-

cial and health service authorities, governmental 

and non governmental organizations dealing with 

disability issues in BiH and Slovenia attended. 

The aim was to provide an overview on situation 

and efforts made in dealing with disability issues 

in Tuzla, to present good practice from Slovenia, 

and to provide possible guidelines for the future. 

Project “Prosthetics and Orthotics 
Course for Rehabilitation Specialists 
from Bosnia and Herzegovina”

As a follow-up to the above-mentioned confer-

ence, three rehabilitation specialists from Reha-

bilitation Faculty of University of Tuzla attended 

a 7-day Prosthetics and Orthotics course at 

Slovenian Rehabilitation Institute in Ljubljana, 

Slovenia in June 2006. Aim of the project was to 

enhance the capacity of rehabilitation institutions 

in Tuzla in treating of the landmine survivors and 

other disabled persons. 

Training 

Donors for Training in 

Bosnia and Herzegovina: 

Slovenia and the United States of America.

ACTION RESPONSE WAS REQUIRED.  A COUNTRYWIDE SURVEY WAS CONDUCTED BY A BRITISH MINE ACTION CHARITY.  THIS GAVE THE UNITED NATIONS MINE ACTION CENTRE A GOOD IDEA OF THE MINE AND UXO PROBLEM THE MINE ACTION COMMUNITY WAS ACTUALLY FACING.  WHERE THE PRIORITY CLEARANCE WAS AND WHICH MINEFIELDS NEEDED TO BE CLEARED FIRST. WITH A LARGE NUMBER OF INTERNATIONAL MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS WORKING IN KOSOVO; THE MAJORITY OF THE LANDMINE AND UXO PROBLEM WAS DEALT WITH WITHIN ABOUT 2 YEARS.  AN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION CAPACITY NOW REMAINS TO DEAL WITH THE LOW PRIORITY MINEFIELDS THAT WERE LEFT. MINE CLEARANCE WHAT IS A LANDMINE? A LANDMINE IS 
AN EXPLOSIVE DEVICE, DESIGNED TO WOUND, KILL OR OTHERWISE INCAPACITATE PERSONNEL; OR DESIGNED TO DESTROY OR DAMAGE VEHICLES. WHAT DIFFERENT TYPES OF LANDMINES ARE THERE? WE KNOW THERE ARE TWO MAIN GROUPS OF LANDMINES, ANTI PERSONNEL AND ANTI TANK MINES. ALL LANDMINES HAVE SPECIFIC CHARACTERISTICS AND ARE DESIGNED TO OPERATE IN SPECIFIC WAYS; THEY ARE BLAST, FRAGMENTATION AND BOUNDING. BLAST MINES: THE BLAST EFFECT OF THE MINE EXPLODING IS THE MAIN CAUSE OF INJURY TO THE VICTIM. THE PMN ANTI-PERSONNEL MINE IS A BLAST MINE. FRAGMENTATION MINES: THE MINE HAS A METAL CASE, WHICH BREAKS INTO METAL FRAGMENTS AS THE MINE EXPLODES.  THE SMALL 
FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED OUT BY THE EXPLOSIVE FORCE OF THE MINE AND CAUSE INJURY TO THE VICTIMS. BOUNDING MINES: THE MINE, SIMILAR TO THE FRAGMENTATION, HAS A SMALL CHARGE THAT THROWS THE MINE OUT OF THE GROUND INTO THE AIR NORMALLY AT ABOUT HEAD HEIGHT.  THEN THE MAIN CHARGE EXPLODES AND SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED .  A TRIPWIRE USUALLY ACTIVATES THESE LANDMINES. WHAT ACTUALLY MAKES THE MINE EXPLODE? LANDMINES ARE USUALLY INITIATED BY PRESSURE OR TRIP WIRE. PRESSURE: DIRECT DOWNWARD PRESSURE ON THE LANDMINE WILL INITIATE THE LANDMINE. TRIPWIRE: A TRIPWIRE IS ATTACHED TO THE FUSE.  WHEN PRESSURE IS APPLIED TO THE TRIPWIRE, A PIN 
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Regional Mine Detection Dog 
Center (MDDC) in Konjic, BiH

ITF continued to support activities of the Re-

gional Mine Detection Dog Center in Konjic with 

funds provided by the United States of America. 

During 2006, MDDC completed the training of 

22 mine detection dogs (MDD). The scope of 

work of MDDC includes the selection of dogs 

as well as complete integration process of both 

dog and handler, so they could work as a team in 

the later stage. As a direct result, 14 MDD teams 

completed training courses for demining needs 

in SEE, with another 8 MDD teams completing 

training courses in order to assist Azerbaijan Na-

tional Agency for Mine Action (ANAMA) dem-

ining efforts.

Bosnia and Herzegovina Mine 
Action Center

Sustainability of Bosnia and Herzegovina Mine 

Action Center’s program is being enabled by do-

nation of Bosnia and Herzegovina.

Structure Support

Donor for Bosnia and Herzegovina 

Mine Action Center:  

Bosnia and Herzegovina.

Donors for Regional Mine Detection Dog 

Center in Bosnia and Herzegovina:

Slovenia and the United States of America.
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In 2006, ITF surveyed and cleared more than 

2,5 million square meters of land in Croatia with 

more than 590 mines and 35 UXO found and de-

stroyed during mine clearance activities at various 

project sites. In total 26 projects were completed 

(19 demining and 7 technical survey projects). 

In total 8 tenders were published (three open and 

five restricted procedure tenders with projects in-

cluding more than 1.8 million square meters of 

mine suspected areas), with 17 projects tendered 

(11 demining and 6 technical survey projects).

Croatia The program “Town of Karlovac without mines” 

was successfully concluded with the donations 

from the Rotary Club Vienna Nord-Ost and the 

US matching funds. The technical survey project 

“Cherry plantations Maraska“ was finalized with 

the matching fund contribution from the US.

 “Support of demining program in Eastern Sla-

vonia” financed with Austrian donation was also 

successfully concluded with more than 390.000 

square meters of land surveyed and cleared as a 

result of the project implementation.

The implementation of a joint borderline project 

of the Croatian Mine Action Center and Mine 

Action Center of Serbia, funded by the European 

Union donation, concluded in 2006 with 269.493 

square meters of land being cleared in Croatia 

alone. 

Donors for Demining and Technical Survey 

in Croatia: 

Adopt-A-Minefield, Austrian Development 

Agency, European Union, Roots of Peace, Rotary 

Club Vienna Nord-Ost, Slovenia and 

the United States of America.

Demining and 
Technical Survey

Chart 12: 

Distribution of funds in Croatia 

by purpose in 2006

	 Mine and UXO Clearance		  93.0%

	 Mine Victims Assistance		  5.5%

	 Other				    1.2%

	 Mine Risk Education		  0.2%

	 Training			   0.1%

IS NORMALLY PULLED OUT OF THE FUSE INITIATING THE LANDMINE.  SOME LANDMINES MAYBE SET UP WITH MORE THAN ONE TRIPWIRE. HOW IS A LANDMINE LAID? LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED IN A NUMBER OF DIFFERENT WAYS: BY HAND, WHERE A LANDMINE IS USUALLY BURIED IN THE GROUND. BY MECHANICAL DEPLOYMENT, SPECIALLY DESIGNED VEHICLES ARE ABLE TO LAY LANDMINES. BY REMOTE DEPLOYMENT, MANY MODERN LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED BY REMOTE METHODS SUCH AS BY AIRCRAFT, HELICOPTER, ARTILLERY OR ROCKET.  LANDMINES DEPLOYED BY THIS MANOR WILL USUALLY BE SURFACE LAID. SCATTERABLE DEPLOYMENT, THESE MINES ARE DESIGNED TO SPREAD OF AS LARGE AN AREA AS POSSIBLE.  THE SOVIET 
PFM-1 ‘BUTTERFLY’ IS ONE SUCH EXAMPLE. WHAT IS A MINEFIELD? A MINEFIELD IS AN AREA OF LAND CONTAINING OR BELIEVED TO CONTAIN LANDMINES. IS IT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE A PROBLEM? NO, IT IS NOT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE CAUSING THESE PROBLEMS – COUNTLESS PIECES OF UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO), SUCH AS GRENADES, MORTARS AND CLUSTER BOMBLETS, MUNITIONS THAT DID NOT EXPLODE, HAVE VERY MUCH THE SAME EFFECT. WHY DON’T ALL MUNITIONS WORK? FOR THE SAME REASON ONE MORNING YOUR CAR WON’T START; SO GRENADES, MORTAR BOMBS ETC MAY NOT WORK. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINEFIELD? A SURVEY TEAM WILL START BY IDENTIFYING A LANDMINE-AFFLICTED COMMUNITY. ONCE IT HAS 
BEEN ESTABLISHED THAT LANDMINES AFFECT THE COMMUNITY, THE SURVEY OFFICER WILL TRY TO IDENTIFY THE AREA BELIEVED TO BE A MINEFIELD. THEY WILL USE A VARIETY OF SOURCES OF INFORMATION TO LOCATE A MINEFIELD; THIS WILL RANGE FROM MINEFIELD RECORDS, LOCAL KNOWLEDGE OR OTHER SOURCES. MINEFIELD RECORDS; IF A MINEFIELD IS LAID IT SHOULD BE RECORDED AND MARKED; IN MANY CONFLICTS THIS IS NOT DONE.  THIS COULD BE FOR A VARIETY OF REASONS; BUT IS OFTEN BECAUSE SOLDIERS INVOLVED IN SUCH CONFLICTS ARE NOT PROFESSIONAL SOLDIERS, BUT CONSCRIPTS OR GUERRILLA FIGHTERS. AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, THE YUGOSLAVIAN ARMY PROVIDED THE UN WITH VERY ACCURATE MINEFIELD 
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Mine Victims Assistance Project “The Summer Workshops 
for Psycho-social Rehabilitation of 
Young Landmine and UXO Survi-
vors”

The summer workshop was carried out in Rovinj 

(Croatia) in July 2006. 43 participants - young 

mine survivors attended the workshop (10 from 

Bosnia and Herzegovina). Again, participants from 

Bosnia and Herzegovina were identified through 

Landmine Survivor Network. The program was 

divided into 7 main thematic workshops: cycling, 

music, photography, sport, English language, IT 

and journalism. Swiss para-olympic cyclist Armin 

Kohli (double amputee) and Croatian para-olym-

pic cyclist, a mine survivor with one amputation 

Tomo Zadro ran the cycling workshop. Sports 

workshop included activities related to swimming, 

table tennis, badminton, basketball and football 

designed to improve self-confidence and motori-

cal capabilities of young survivors. Most of the 

participants enthusiastically participated in the 

sports activities workshops. 

Project “The Winter Workshops 
for Psycho-social Rehabilitation of 
Young Landmine and UXO Survi-
vors”

The winter workshop project was implemented in 

Kranjska Gora (Slovenia) in March 2006. 38 chil-

dren – young mine survivors attended the work-

shop (12 of them from Bosnia and Herzegovina). 

Participants from Bosnia and Herzegovina were 

identified through Landmine Survivors Network 

(similar to previous years).

The workshop activities included ski lessons, mu-

sic, photo and IT lessons (including MS Word, 

Excel and Outlook programs). Ski instructors and 

trainers helped mine-survivors with their first ski 

lessons. 6 instructors (four from Croatia and two 

from Switzerland) gave the skiing lessons. 

Donors for Mine Victims Assistance 

in Croatia: 

Czech Republic, Dijana Pleština and 

the United States of America.

In accordance with the project proposal that was 

submitted to the Norwegian Embassy, the US 

Embassy in Zagreb, Croatia and ITF, the Croatian 

Mine Victims Association (CMVA) and Norwe-

gian People’s Aid (NPA) implemented the project 

Winter and Summer Workshops for Young 

Landmine and UXO Survivors in Kranjska Gora 

(Slovenia) and Rovinj (Croatia). The workshops 

were oriented towards psychosocial rehabilitation 

of young mine survivors from Croatia and Bosnia 

and Herzegovina.

IS NORMALLY PULLED OUT OF THE FUSE INITIATING THE LANDMINE.  SOME LANDMINES MAYBE SET UP WITH MORE THAN ONE TRIPWIRE. HOW IS A LANDMINE LAID? LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED IN A NUMBER OF DIFFERENT WAYS: BY HAND, WHERE A LANDMINE IS USUALLY BURIED IN THE GROUND. BY MECHANICAL DEPLOYMENT, SPECIALLY DESIGNED VEHICLES ARE ABLE TO LAY LANDMINES. BY REMOTE DEPLOYMENT, MANY MODERN LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED BY REMOTE METHODS SUCH AS BY AIRCRAFT, HELICOPTER, ARTILLERY OR ROCKET.  LANDMINES DEPLOYED BY THIS MANOR WILL USUALLY BE SURFACE LAID. SCATTERABLE DEPLOYMENT, THESE MINES ARE DESIGNED TO SPREAD OF AS LARGE AN AREA AS POSSIBLE.  THE SOVIET 
PFM-1 ‘BUTTERFLY’ IS ONE SUCH EXAMPLE. WHAT IS A MINEFIELD? A MINEFIELD IS AN AREA OF LAND CONTAINING OR BELIEVED TO CONTAIN LANDMINES. IS IT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE A PROBLEM? NO, IT IS NOT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE CAUSING THESE PROBLEMS – COUNTLESS PIECES OF UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO), SUCH AS GRENADES, MORTARS AND CLUSTER BOMBLETS, MUNITIONS THAT DID NOT EXPLODE, HAVE VERY MUCH THE SAME EFFECT. WHY DON’T ALL MUNITIONS WORK? FOR THE SAME REASON ONE MORNING YOUR CAR WON’T START; SO GRENADES, MORTAR BOMBS ETC MAY NOT WORK. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINEFIELD? A SURVEY TEAM WILL START BY IDENTIFYING A LANDMINE-AFFLICTED COMMUNITY. ONCE IT HAS 
BEEN ESTABLISHED THAT LANDMINES AFFECT THE COMMUNITY, THE SURVEY OFFICER WILL TRY TO IDENTIFY THE AREA BELIEVED TO BE A MINEFIELD. THEY WILL USE A VARIETY OF SOURCES OF INFORMATION TO LOCATE A MINEFIELD; THIS WILL RANGE FROM MINEFIELD RECORDS, LOCAL KNOWLEDGE OR OTHER SOURCES. MINEFIELD RECORDS; IF A MINEFIELD IS LAID IT SHOULD BE RECORDED AND MARKED; IN MANY CONFLICTS THIS IS NOT DONE.  THIS COULD BE FOR A VARIETY OF REASONS; BUT IS OFTEN BECAUSE SOLDIERS INVOLVED IN SUCH CONFLICTS ARE NOT PROFESSIONAL SOLDIERS, BUT CONSCRIPTS OR GUERRILLA FIGHTERS. AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, THE YUGOSLAVIAN ARMY PROVIDED THE UN WITH VERY ACCURATE MINEFIELD 
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Project »WATCH OUT – MINES!« 
- Education of Children About the 
Dangers of Mines Through Story-
book and Creative Workshops”

US State Department and ITF financed a story-

book project, which was submitted by “Center for 

Neo-humanistic studies” from Karlovac, Croatia. 

The project comprised of printing and distribu-

tion of 10.000 storybooks relating to the subject of 

mine risk education that were used for disseminat-

ing crucial message of presence of mine-threat by 

distributing them throughout elementary schools 

in different parts of Croatia that have not yet been 

cleared from mines. With this project, through 

pictures and stories, the problem of mines would 

be made more comprehensible to children. 

Project “South-East European Center 
for Psycho-social Rehabilitation of 
Children and Young Landmines and 
UXO Survivors in Rovinj”

ITF also financed equipping of hospital “Dr. Mar-

tin Horvat” in Rovinj, Croatia in cooperation with 

the US State Department and Czech Republic. 

Once opened and fully functional the hospital 

will represent a regional center offering psychoso-

cial rehabilitation of young mine-survivors from 

South East Europe. 

Due to a favorable Mediterranean climate, the Re-

gional Center will work all year round. The par-

ticipants will be offered the following programs: 

psycho-social support, medical rehabilitation, 

diagnostics, kinesis-therapy, electro-therapy, heat-

therapy, hydro-therapy, breathing exercises, edu-

cational workshops such as IT, foreign languages, 

music, video, photo, sport activities and entertain-

ment.

Project “Support to Education of 
Young Mine Survivors”

Additional 7 young mine survivors have received 

funds from Dijana Pleština in order to facilitate 

their education and allow them to attain possibili-

ties of leading a normal life. 

Mine Risk Education

Donors for Mine Risk Education in Croatia: 

United States of America.

RECORDS.  THIS MADE THE TASK OF IDENTIFYING MINEFIELDS MUCH EASIER IN MANY CASES. LOCAL KNOWLEDGE; IS AN INVALUABLE SOURCE OF INFORMATION.  PEOPLE WHO LIVE THEIR LIVES WITH LANDMINES WILL KNOW WHICH FIELDS NOT TO USE AND WHICH TRACKS NOT TO DRIVE DOWN. A SURVEY TEAM WILL BE ABLE TO TAKE SUCH INFORMATION AND LOCATE SUSPECTED MINEFIELDS. HOW DO YOU DECIDE WHERE TO WORK AND WHAT LAND TO CLEAR? DEMINING AGENCIES MUST IDENTIFY AREAS OF GROUND THAT HAS THE HIGHEST PRIORITY FOR CLEARANCE.  THIS WILL BE DONE IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LANDMINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITY, NGOS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORGANISATIONS PRIORITISATION. 
AN AREA MAYBE THOUGHT TO BE MINED, OR THE FEAR OF LANDMINES IS DENYING THE USE OF THIS LAND TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS.  ONCE THE LAND HAS BEEN CLEARED IT IS THEN FREE TO BE USED. A LARGE PLOT OF LAND MAY BE DENIED TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS BY ONLY A FEW LANDMINES, THEREFORE THE AREA CLEARED IS MORE IMPORTANT THAN THE NUMBER OF LANDMINES FOUND. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINE? THE MOST COMMON METHOD WILL BE A DEMINER USING A METAL DETECTOR. A DEMINER WILL USE A METAL DETECTOR AND A VARIETY OF OTHER TOOLS, QUIET OFTEN-SIMPLE GARDENING TOOLS. THE DETECTOR WILL INDICATE THE PRESENCE OF METAL IN THE GROUND. EVERY METAL INDICATION GIVEN BY THE METAL 
DETECTOR NEEDS TO BE CHECKED IN CASE IT‘S A MINE. SO THE MORE METAL FRAGMENTS THERE ARE, THE MORE TIME IT MIGHT TAKE. THE DEMINER WILL THEN MARK THIS SPOT PRIOR TO EXCAVATING ON THAT LOCATION USING A PROBE AND EXCAVATION TOOLS. IF HE OR SHE FINDS A LANDMINE, A SUPERIOR WILL BE INFORMED. DO ALL MINES CONTAIN METAL? NO, THERE ARE SOME THAT DO NOT CONTAIN ANY METAL AT ALL. SO HOW DO YOU CLEAR MINES WITHOUT METAL IN THEM? THE DEMINERS WILL HAVE TO CARRY OUT A 100% EXCAVATION OF THE AREA; OR DOGS MAYBE USED IN SUCH AREAS. WHO ACTUALLY CLEARS THE MINES? IN MOST CASES DEMINERS WILL BE VOLUNTEERS FROM THE LOCAL COMMUNITY, HOWEVER SOMETIMES THEY 
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Project “The Theatre Play »Bembo 
and Friends Against Mines«”

US State Department also financed the pro-

duction of theatre play and DVD dedicated to 

schoolchildren in numerous elementary schools 

throughout Croatia. The aim of the theatre play 

performed by artistic NGO group “Bembo” is to 

convey the mine awareness message to young chil-

dren through interesting and educational interac-

tive theatre play. Total number of schoolchildren 

attending the MRE shows reached 6,000 (the 

play was organized for audiences in 34 schools 

throughout mine affected regions in Croatia).

Project “From Accident to Reinte-
gration – Capacity Building in the 
Republic of Croatia”

In July 2006 a workshop “From Accident to Re-

integration – Capacity Building in the Republic of 

Croatia” took place in hospital “Dr. Martin Hor-

vat” in Rovinj, Croatia. The aim of the workshop 

was to educate the mine survivors in the field of 

mine action and to create and maintain network-

ing among young mine survivors and other sectors 

including non-commercial, commercial and state 

institutions.

The main character in the project is one of the 

most popular TV characters in Croatia “Bembo” 

impersonated by a famous actor, singer and danc-

er. The play is an educational and funny mélange 

of music, pantomime, dance and acting scenes. 

The audience (children and parents) is actively 

engaged in the play. Goal of the project is to raise 

mine awareness and promote safe behaviour of 

target groups with the aim of preventing mine-

incidents.

The final results achieved by the implementation 

of the production of theatre play and DVD were:

	 34 plays presented in 24 venues with an 

	 audience exceeding 6,000 children and adults,

	 5,000 picture books distributed to children,

	 educational films produced and 500 DVD 

	 copies distributed to children.

Training

Donor for Training in Croatia: 

United States of America.

RECORDS.  THIS MADE THE TASK OF IDENTIFYING MINEFIELDS MUCH EASIER IN MANY CASES. LOCAL KNOWLEDGE; IS AN INVALUABLE SOURCE OF INFORMATION.  PEOPLE WHO LIVE THEIR LIVES WITH LANDMINES WILL KNOW WHICH FIELDS NOT TO USE AND WHICH TRACKS NOT TO DRIVE DOWN. A SURVEY TEAM WILL BE ABLE TO TAKE SUCH INFORMATION AND LOCATE SUSPECTED MINEFIELDS. HOW DO YOU DECIDE WHERE TO WORK AND WHAT LAND TO CLEAR? DEMINING AGENCIES MUST IDENTIFY AREAS OF GROUND THAT HAS THE HIGHEST PRIORITY FOR CLEARANCE.  THIS WILL BE DONE IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LANDMINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITY, NGOS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORGANISATIONS PRIORITISATION. 
AN AREA MAYBE THOUGHT TO BE MINED, OR THE FEAR OF LANDMINES IS DENYING THE USE OF THIS LAND TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS.  ONCE THE LAND HAS BEEN CLEARED IT IS THEN FREE TO BE USED. A LARGE PLOT OF LAND MAY BE DENIED TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS BY ONLY A FEW LANDMINES, THEREFORE THE AREA CLEARED IS MORE IMPORTANT THAN THE NUMBER OF LANDMINES FOUND. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINE? THE MOST COMMON METHOD WILL BE A DEMINER USING A METAL DETECTOR. A DEMINER WILL USE A METAL DETECTOR AND A VARIETY OF OTHER TOOLS, QUIET OFTEN-SIMPLE GARDENING TOOLS. THE DETECTOR WILL INDICATE THE PRESENCE OF METAL IN THE GROUND. EVERY METAL INDICATION GIVEN BY THE METAL 
DETECTOR NEEDS TO BE CHECKED IN CASE IT‘S A MINE. SO THE MORE METAL FRAGMENTS THERE ARE, THE MORE TIME IT MIGHT TAKE. THE DEMINER WILL THEN MARK THIS SPOT PRIOR TO EXCAVATING ON THAT LOCATION USING A PROBE AND EXCAVATION TOOLS. IF HE OR SHE FINDS A LANDMINE, A SUPERIOR WILL BE INFORMED. DO ALL MINES CONTAIN METAL? NO, THERE ARE SOME THAT DO NOT CONTAIN ANY METAL AT ALL. SO HOW DO YOU CLEAR MINES WITHOUT METAL IN THEM? THE DEMINERS WILL HAVE TO CARRY OUT A 100% EXCAVATION OF THE AREA; OR DOGS MAYBE USED IN SUCH AREAS. WHO ACTUALLY CLEARS THE MINES? IN MOST CASES DEMINERS WILL BE VOLUNTEERS FROM THE LOCAL COMMUNITY, HOWEVER SOMETIMES THEY 
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Project “Sustainability of Macedonian 
Demining Program and 
Implementation of Technical Survey 
Operations”

ITF supported implementation of the project in 

period from July to September 2006. Republic of 

Macedonia Protection and Rescue Directorate, 

which is the responsible body in the field of hu-

manitarian demining in Macedonia, implemented 

this project. Within the project a refreshment 

training course was organized for 10 deminers as 

a preparation phase for the clearance of last three 

mine suspected areas in Macedonia. After the im-

plementation of the course, deminers took part in 

clearance operations. ITF provided, to Macedo-

nian Directorate, the demining equipment and 

part of funds earmarked for operational expenses 

stemming from clearance operations. ITF also 

provided the operations supervisor. Consequently, 

47.226 square meters of mine suspected land was 

released and handed over to local population. 

Macedonia

Donor for Structure Support in Macedonia: 

Slovenia and the United States of America. 

Structure Support

Chart 13: 

Distribution of funds in Macedonia 

by purpose in 2006

	 Structure Support		  73,4%

	 Training			   11,0%

	 UXO Survey	  		  9,8%

	 Other				    5,7%

In addition to this, Macedonia fulfilled it’s obliga-

tions of Article 5 of Ottawa convention by clear-

ing last three mine suspected areas, thus, achiev-

ing, the status of a mine free country. 

ARE DEMOBILISED SOLDIERS.  THESE PEOPLE WILL MAKE UP THE NATIONAL STAFF EMPLOYED BY MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS. ALL ORGANISATIONS THAT ADOPT-A-MINEFIELD (UK) FUNDS EMPLOY NATIONAL STAFF, BOTH IN OPERATIONAL ROLES AND OPERATIONAL SUPPORT.  MINE CLEARANCES ORGANISATIONS ARE COMMITTED TO CAPACITY BUILDING OF LOCAL STAFF; PROVIDING MANAGEMENT TRAINING NATIONAL STAFF, SO THAT THEY CAN ONE DAY RUN THE PROGRAMME WITHOUT THE PRESENCES OF INTERNATIONAL STAFF. MINES IN CAMBODIA, ARE A CAMBODIAN PROBLEM; IT IS THE KHMER PEOPLE, FAMILY, FRIENDS WHO ARE AFFECTED BY LANDMINES.  WHAT DO THEY DO WHEN THEY FIND A LANDMINE? LANDMINE PROBLEM WHY IS 
IT NECESSARY TO HAVE A CAMPAIGN TO CLEAR MINEFIELDS? LANDMINES CONTINUE TO EFFECT MANY COMMUNITIES WELL AFTER HOSTILITIES HAVE CEASED; ONE THIRD OF ALL VICTIMS ARE CHILDREN. THE PRESENCE OF LANDMINES CAN ALSO HINDER THE REDEVELOPMENT OF A COUNTRY AND ITS ECONOMY FOR MANY YEARS AFTER A CONFLICT. THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN THE GROUND IN AT LEAST 90 COUNTRIES. LANDMINES REPORTEDLY MAIM OR KILL 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR. THOSE WHO SURVIVE ENDURE A LIFETIME OF PHYSICAL, PSYCHOLOGICAL, AND ECONOMIC HARDSHIP. LOCAL COMMUNITIES IN LANDMINE-AFFECTED COUNTRIES OFTEN DO NOT HAVE THE RESOURCES TO CLEAR THEIR OWN 
LAND AND TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE CARE FOR THEIR LANDMINE SURVIVORS. THEY DEPEND PRIMARILY UPON FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM GOVERNMENTS, INTERNATIONAL AND NON GOVERNMENTAL ORGANISATIONS. WHAT IS MINE ACTION? MINE ACTION REFERS TO ALL THOSE ACTIVITIES, WHICH ADDRESS THE PROBLEMS FACED BY PEOPLE AS A RESULT OF LANDMINE/UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO) CONTAMINATION. MINE ACTION IS NOT SO MUCH ABOUT LANDMINES, THOUGH, AS ABOUT PEOPLE AND THEIR INTERACTIONS WITH A MINE-CONTAMINATED ENVIRONMENT. IT AIMS TO RECREATE AN ENVIRONMENT IN WHICH PEOPLE CAN LIVE SAFELY, IN WHICH ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT CAN OCCUR FREE FROM CONSTRAINTS, AND 
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Project “Assessment of UXO 
Problem in Lake Ohrid”

ITF supported implementation of the project 

»Assessment of UXO Problem in Lake Ohrid« 

in Macedonia. The project was implemented from 

21st October to 24th October 2006 by two divers 

of P.E.D. SAVA Kranj (Slovenia) and two mem-

bers of ITF. Furthermore, the local police authori-

ties and Republic of Macedonia Protection and 

Rescue Directorate provided logistical support.

UXO Clearance 

Assessment confirmed the presence of underwa-

ter AXO/UXO problem in Lake Ohrid on three 

selected locations in close proximity to settlements 

with approximately 60.000 inhabitants – Town of 

Ohrid, village of Peštani and Kalište. As the Lake 

Ohrid itself is the favourite domestic tourism des-

tination in Macedonia and taking into account the 

rising interest of foreigners in this tourist desti-

nation, the assessment results pose a great con-

cern to the locals. Moreover, local authorities on 

several other locations, which have not been sur-

veyed yet, have also indicated the presence of un-

derwater AXO/UXO. Taking into consideration 

that AXO/UXO problem directly impacts public 

safety (local and tourist population) and the fact 

that lake Ohrid is under UNESCO protection, 

the clearance of the underwater AXO/UXO ap-

pears to be necessary. 

Donor for UXO Clearance in Macedonia: 

Slovenia and the United States of America.

ARE DEMOBILISED SOLDIERS.  THESE PEOPLE WILL MAKE UP THE NATIONAL STAFF EMPLOYED BY MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS. ALL ORGANISATIONS THAT ADOPT-A-MINEFIELD (UK) FUNDS EMPLOY NATIONAL STAFF, BOTH IN OPERATIONAL ROLES AND OPERATIONAL SUPPORT.  MINE CLEARANCES ORGANISATIONS ARE COMMITTED TO CAPACITY BUILDING OF LOCAL STAFF; PROVIDING MANAGEMENT TRAINING NATIONAL STAFF, SO THAT THEY CAN ONE DAY RUN THE PROGRAMME WITHOUT THE PRESENCES OF INTERNATIONAL STAFF. MINES IN CAMBODIA, ARE A CAMBODIAN PROBLEM; IT IS THE KHMER PEOPLE, FAMILY, FRIENDS WHO ARE AFFECTED BY LANDMINES.  WHAT DO THEY DO WHEN THEY FIND A LANDMINE? LANDMINE PROBLEM WHY IS 
IT NECESSARY TO HAVE A CAMPAIGN TO CLEAR MINEFIELDS? LANDMINES CONTINUE TO EFFECT MANY COMMUNITIES WELL AFTER HOSTILITIES HAVE CEASED; ONE THIRD OF ALL VICTIMS ARE CHILDREN. THE PRESENCE OF LANDMINES CAN ALSO HINDER THE REDEVELOPMENT OF A COUNTRY AND ITS ECONOMY FOR MANY YEARS AFTER A CONFLICT. THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN THE GROUND IN AT LEAST 90 COUNTRIES. LANDMINES REPORTEDLY MAIM OR KILL 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR. THOSE WHO SURVIVE ENDURE A LIFETIME OF PHYSICAL, PSYCHOLOGICAL, AND ECONOMIC HARDSHIP. LOCAL COMMUNITIES IN LANDMINE-AFFECTED COUNTRIES OFTEN DO NOT HAVE THE RESOURCES TO CLEAR THEIR OWN 
LAND AND TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE CARE FOR THEIR LANDMINE SURVIVORS. THEY DEPEND PRIMARILY UPON FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM GOVERNMENTS, INTERNATIONAL AND NON GOVERNMENTAL ORGANISATIONS. WHAT IS MINE ACTION? MINE ACTION REFERS TO ALL THOSE ACTIVITIES, WHICH ADDRESS THE PROBLEMS FACED BY PEOPLE AS A RESULT OF LANDMINE/UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO) CONTAMINATION. MINE ACTION IS NOT SO MUCH ABOUT LANDMINES, THOUGH, AS ABOUT PEOPLE AND THEIR INTERACTIONS WITH A MINE-CONTAMINATED ENVIRONMENT. IT AIMS TO RECREATE AN ENVIRONMENT IN WHICH PEOPLE CAN LIVE SAFELY, IN WHICH ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT CAN OCCUR FREE FROM CONSTRAINTS, AND 



III. ITF Operational Overview44

General Survey

￼

Montenegro

Project “Adaptation and Equipping 
of Diving Ship for Support of Hu-
manitarian Underwater Demining 
and Divers Training”

Through ITF the implementation of the project 

of adaptation and equipping of humanitarian 

underwater demining and diver’s training sup-

port ship of the Regional Center for Underwater 

Demining (RCUD) in Bijela has been supported 

(it continues in 2007). The goal of this project is 

to enable adequate preconditions for the use of 

the ship for the underwater demining operations, 

training of divers for underwater demining as well 

as for sea bottom and naval routes surveys. 

Project “General Survey on the 
Border Area between Montenegro 
and Albania”

ITF supported the implementation of the General 

Survey, which was executed jointly by CROMAC 

and RCUD along the border of Montenegro and 

Albania, and in the area of Besnik and Njeguši set-

tlements. The clearance of projects created (app. 

470.000 square meters) shall be implemented in 

2007. 

Structure Support

Donor for Structure Support in Montenegro: 

Slovenia and the United States of America.

Donor for General Survey in Montenegro: 

Slovenia and the United States of America.

Chart 14: 

Distribution of funds in Montenegro 

by purpose in 2006

	 Structure Support		  60,4%

	 General Survey			   37,1% 

	 Other				    2,4%

IN WHICH LANDMINE SURVIVORS ARE FULLY INTEGRATED INTO THEIR SOCIETIES. MINE ACTION COMPRISES FIVE COMPLEMENTARY GROUPS OF ACTIVITIES: MINE RISK EDUCATION (MRE) THE EDUCATION PROCESS WHICH AIMS TO ENSURE THAT COMMUNITIES ARE NOT ONLY AWARE OF THE RISKS FROM LIVING IN PROXIMITY TO LANDMINES AND UXO, AND TO ENCOURAGE PEOPLE TO BEHAVE IN A WAY THAT REDUCES THE RISK TO PEOPLE, PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT. HUMANITARIAN DEMINING DEMINING ACTIVITIES WHICH LEAD TO THE REMOVAL OF LANDMINE AND UXO HAZARDS, INCLUDING TECHNICAL SURVEY, MAPPING, CLEARANCE, MARKING, POST-CLEARANCE DOCUMENTATION, COMMUNITY MINE ACTION LIAISON AND THE HANDOVER 
OF CLEARED LAND. DEMINING MAY BE EMERGENCY-BASED OR DEVELOPMENTAL. SURVIVOR ASSISTANCE REFERS TO ALL AID, RELIEF, COMFORT AND SUPPORT PROVIDED SURVIVORS WITH THE PURPOSE OF REDUCING THE IMMEDIATE AND LONG-TERM MEDICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL IMPLICATIONS OF THEIR TRAUMA. STOCKPILE DESTRUCTION ARTICLE 4 OF THE MINE BAN TREATY (MBT) REQUIRES THAT SIGNATORIES UNDERTAKE TO DESTROY OR ENSURE THE DESTRUCTION OF ALL STOCKPILED ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES IT OWNS OR POSSESSES, OR THAT ARE UNDER ITS JURISDICTION OR CONTROL, AS SOON AS POSSIBLE BUT NOT LATER THAN FOUR YEARS AFTER THE ENTRY INTO FORCE OF THE MBT FOR THAT STATE PARTY. ADVOCACY AGAINST 
THE USE OF ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES. IN THE CONTEXT OF MINE ACTION, THE TERM REFERS TO … PUBLIC SUPPORT, RECOMMENDATION OR POSITIVE PUBLICITY WITH THE AIM OF REMOVING, OR AT LEAST REDUCING, THE THREAT FROM, AND THE IMPACT OF, LANDMINES AND UXO. WHY CLEAR LANDMINES? THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN 90 COUNTRIES. THESE REPORTEDLY KILL OR INJUR 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR.  IT IS HOWEVER DIFFICULT TO OBTAIN ACCURATE STATISTICS.  WE WON’T KNOW HOW MANY LANDMINES THERE ARE IN THE GROUND UNTIL WE’VE ACTUALLY FOUND THEM, AND MANY LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE NOT REPORTED BECAUSE THEY HAPPEN IN REMOTE AREAS AND HEALTH CENTRES 
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In total 1.201.300 square meters were cleared with 

116 mines and 71 UXO found and destroyed in 

2006.

The implementation of a joint borderline project 

of the Croatian Mine Action Center and Mine 

Action Centre of Serbia, funded by the European 

Union donation, commenced at the end of 2005. 

The project was a joint Croatia/Serbia border 

demining task (totalling 376.500 square meters). 

The project was concluded in 2006 demining sea-

son, with 123.900 square meters of land being 

cleared in Serbia. 

Serbia

Donor for Demining and Battle Area 

Clearance in Serbia: 

European Union, Germany, Serbia and 

the United States of America.

Demining and Battle 
Area Clearance

First tender for demining works funded by Ger-

man donation, was held in July 2006 and was 

earmarked for demining works in the border area 

between Serbia and Croatia (Zaseke, Protection 

Bank 2). At the end of 2006 another tender for 

German funds was carried out for a small project 

“Cerje”. Consequently, in 2006 a total of 196.550 

square meters of land has been cleared and 116 

mines and one UXO removed and destroyed for 

German donation.

Second tender was also held in July 2006 with 

funds of Government of Serbia and United States 

of America for three Battle Area Clearance projects 

on mountain of Kopaonik (Duboka 1, Krčmar 1, 

Krčmar 2). In the working period from August to 

October 2006 a total of 883.400 square meters of 

land have been cleared (BAC) on three projects 

with 70 UXO found and destroyed. Clearance of 

areas in the National Park of Kopaonik, will offer 

economic development, employment and tourist 

advantages to the region. 

Chart 15: 

Distribution of funds in Serbia 

by purpose in 2006

	 Demining and Technical Survey 	 93.7%

	 Structure Support		  6.2%

	 Training			   0.1%

IN WHICH LANDMINE SURVIVORS ARE FULLY INTEGRATED INTO THEIR SOCIETIES. MINE ACTION COMPRISES FIVE COMPLEMENTARY GROUPS OF ACTIVITIES: MINE RISK EDUCATION (MRE) THE EDUCATION PROCESS WHICH AIMS TO ENSURE THAT COMMUNITIES ARE NOT ONLY AWARE OF THE RISKS FROM LIVING IN PROXIMITY TO LANDMINES AND UXO, AND TO ENCOURAGE PEOPLE TO BEHAVE IN A WAY THAT REDUCES THE RISK TO PEOPLE, PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT. HUMANITARIAN DEMINING DEMINING ACTIVITIES WHICH LEAD TO THE REMOVAL OF LANDMINE AND UXO HAZARDS, INCLUDING TECHNICAL SURVEY, MAPPING, CLEARANCE, MARKING, POST-CLEARANCE DOCUMENTATION, COMMUNITY MINE ACTION LIAISON AND THE HANDOVER 
OF CLEARED LAND. DEMINING MAY BE EMERGENCY-BASED OR DEVELOPMENTAL. SURVIVOR ASSISTANCE REFERS TO ALL AID, RELIEF, COMFORT AND SUPPORT PROVIDED SURVIVORS WITH THE PURPOSE OF REDUCING THE IMMEDIATE AND LONG-TERM MEDICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL IMPLICATIONS OF THEIR TRAUMA. STOCKPILE DESTRUCTION ARTICLE 4 OF THE MINE BAN TREATY (MBT) REQUIRES THAT SIGNATORIES UNDERTAKE TO DESTROY OR ENSURE THE DESTRUCTION OF ALL STOCKPILED ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES IT OWNS OR POSSESSES, OR THAT ARE UNDER ITS JURISDICTION OR CONTROL, AS SOON AS POSSIBLE BUT NOT LATER THAN FOUR YEARS AFTER THE ENTRY INTO FORCE OF THE MBT FOR THAT STATE PARTY. ADVOCACY AGAINST 
THE USE OF ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES. IN THE CONTEXT OF MINE ACTION, THE TERM REFERS TO … PUBLIC SUPPORT, RECOMMENDATION OR POSITIVE PUBLICITY WITH THE AIM OF REMOVING, OR AT LEAST REDUCING, THE THREAT FROM, AND THE IMPACT OF, LANDMINES AND UXO. WHY CLEAR LANDMINES? THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN 90 COUNTRIES. THESE REPORTEDLY KILL OR INJUR 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR.  IT IS HOWEVER DIFFICULT TO OBTAIN ACCURATE STATISTICS.  WE WON’T KNOW HOW MANY LANDMINES THERE ARE IN THE GROUND UNTIL WE’VE ACTUALLY FOUND THEM, AND MANY LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE NOT REPORTED BECAUSE THEY HAPPEN IN REMOTE AREAS AND HEALTH CENTRES 
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Project “Procurement of Technical 
Equipment for Mine Action Center 
of Serbia”

In the beginning of 2006, Mine Action Center of 

Serbia was equipped with terrain vehicle, com-

puter and GIS equipment, mine detectors and 

personal protection equipment with the donation 

from Department for International Development/

United Kingdom. With this donation of the much 

needed equipment, substantially better conditions 

for work were established. Mine Action Center 

of Serbia can, thus, successfully and effectively 

tackle the mine and UXO problem in Serbia and 

can also offer better support and cooperation with 

other mine action centers in SEE region.

Project “Prosthetics and Orthotics 
Course for Rehabilitation Specialists 
from Serbia”

A training for four rehabilitation specialists from 

Institute for Prosthetic Belgrade, Serbia, was or-

ganized in June 2006. A 5-day Prosthetics and 

Orthotics course was implemented at Slovenian 

Rehabilitation Institute in Ljubljana, Slovenia. 

Aim of the project was to enhance the capacities 

of rehabilitation institutions in Serbia to treat 

landmine survivors and other disabled persons. 

Structure Support

Donor for Structure Support in Serbia: 

UK Department for International 

Development (DFID). 

Training

Donor for Training in Serbia: 

Slovenia.

DON’T EVEN FIND OUT ABOUT THEM. THIS IMPACT GOES FAR BEYOND PHYSICAL INJURY AND DEATH – IT INCLUDES VIRTUALLY EVERY ASPECT OF LIFE AND PREVENTS MINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITIES FROM FULLY RECOVERING AFTER ARMED CONFLICTS HAVE ENDED. ABOUT ONE THIRD OF ALL LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE CHILDREN.  MANY MORE LOSE PARENTS OR OTHER FAMILY MEMBERS AND SUDDENLY FIND THEMSELVES RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING FOR THE FAMILY. IN ADDITION, LANDMINES HINDER INFRASTRUCTURE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, THEY INCREASE A COUNTRY’S DEPENDENCY ON INTERNATIONAL AID, BLOCK THE DELIVERY OF RELIEF GOODS TO AREAS MOST IN NEED, PREVENT THE RETURN OF REFUGEES AND HAMPER THE 
PROCESS OF PEACE AND RECONCILIATION. LANDMINES HAVE A KNOCK ON EFFECT TO OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS.  AID CONVOYS WILL NOT BE ABLE TO DRIVE ROADS SUSPECTED OF BEING MINED; THIS CAN MEAN AID FAILS TO REACH COMMUNITIES, AND OFTEN-EXPENSIVE ALTERNATIVES HAVE TO BE SOUGHT SUCH AS AIRDROPS. CASE STUDY: NUBA MOUNTAINS, CENTRAL SUDAN IN JANUARY 2003, THE DANCHURCH AID (DCA) MINE ACTION TEAM, WORKING IN THE NUBA MOUNTAINS, WERE TASKED TO CLEAR THE ROAD FROM THE VILLAGE OF EL HAMRA TO THE VILLAGE OF UMM SERDIBA. THERE HAD BEEN TWO MINE STRIKES ON THIS ROAD, ONE DESTROYED A TRACTOR KILLING A NUMBER OF PEOPLE; THE SECOND VEHICLE TO BE HIT 
BELONGED TO THE JMC, THE INTERNATIONAL BODY MONITORING THE ‘NUBA CEASEFIRE’ BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENT OF SUDAN AND THE SUDANESE PEOPLES LIBERATION MOVEMENT/ARMY. ALTHOUGH THE ROAD HAD TO REGARDED AS MINED; THE LOCAL POPULATION HAD TO CONTINUE USING THE ROAD, IT WAS THE ONLY WAY THEY COULD GET TO THE MAIN MARKET IN THE AREA. OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS WERE UNABLE TO ACCESS VAST AREAS OF THE NUBA MOUNTAINS; LEADING TO PROLONGED SUFFERING FOR THOUSANDS OF PEOPLE. DCA DEPLOYED A NUMBER OF DOG TEAMS ONTO THE ROAD, AND THE SUBSEQUENT CLEARANCE NOW PROVIDES THE LOCAL PEOPLE A SAFE ROUTE TO TRAVEL, THE JMC WITH SAFE PASSAGE 
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Structure SupportProvince of Kosovo 
(Serbia)

Project “Provision of Metal Detectors 
and Personal Protective Equipment”

Through ITF, United States Department of State 

ensured funds for the support of the Explosive 

Ordnance Demining Section (EOD) of Kosovo 

Protection Corps/UNMIK with demining equip-

ment for humanitarian mine clearance in Kosovo. 

Thus the EOD section was equipped with 24 new 

sets of Personal Protective Equipment, 24 “Schon-

stedt” and 24 “Vallon” detectors. The project will 

enhance the capacity of local demining authorities 

to address remaining mine and UXO problem in 

province of Kosovo (Serbia).

Donor for Structure Support in the province 

of Kosovo (Serbia): 

United States of America. 

Pictures 065, 067, stick:...
Chart 16: 

Distribution of funds in Kosovo (Serbia) 

by purpose in 2006

	 Demining and Technical Survey	 24,7% 

	 Structure Support	 54,6%

	 Mine Victims Assistance	 20,7%

DON’T EVEN FIND OUT ABOUT THEM. THIS IMPACT GOES FAR BEYOND PHYSICAL INJURY AND DEATH – IT INCLUDES VIRTUALLY EVERY ASPECT OF LIFE AND PREVENTS MINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITIES FROM FULLY RECOVERING AFTER ARMED CONFLICTS HAVE ENDED. ABOUT ONE THIRD OF ALL LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE CHILDREN.  MANY MORE LOSE PARENTS OR OTHER FAMILY MEMBERS AND SUDDENLY FIND THEMSELVES RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING FOR THE FAMILY. IN ADDITION, LANDMINES HINDER INFRASTRUCTURE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, THEY INCREASE A COUNTRY’S DEPENDENCY ON INTERNATIONAL AID, BLOCK THE DELIVERY OF RELIEF GOODS TO AREAS MOST IN NEED, PREVENT THE RETURN OF REFUGEES AND HAMPER THE 
PROCESS OF PEACE AND RECONCILIATION. LANDMINES HAVE A KNOCK ON EFFECT TO OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS.  AID CONVOYS WILL NOT BE ABLE TO DRIVE ROADS SUSPECTED OF BEING MINED; THIS CAN MEAN AID FAILS TO REACH COMMUNITIES, AND OFTEN-EXPENSIVE ALTERNATIVES HAVE TO BE SOUGHT SUCH AS AIRDROPS. CASE STUDY: NUBA MOUNTAINS, CENTRAL SUDAN IN JANUARY 2003, THE DANCHURCH AID (DCA) MINE ACTION TEAM, WORKING IN THE NUBA MOUNTAINS, WERE TASKED TO CLEAR THE ROAD FROM THE VILLAGE OF EL HAMRA TO THE VILLAGE OF UMM SERDIBA. THERE HAD BEEN TWO MINE STRIKES ON THIS ROAD, ONE DESTROYED A TRACTOR KILLING A NUMBER OF PEOPLE; THE SECOND VEHICLE TO BE HIT 
BELONGED TO THE JMC, THE INTERNATIONAL BODY MONITORING THE ‘NUBA CEASEFIRE’ BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENT OF SUDAN AND THE SUDANESE PEOPLES LIBERATION MOVEMENT/ARMY. ALTHOUGH THE ROAD HAD TO REGARDED AS MINED; THE LOCAL POPULATION HAD TO CONTINUE USING THE ROAD, IT WAS THE ONLY WAY THEY COULD GET TO THE MAIN MARKET IN THE AREA. OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS WERE UNABLE TO ACCESS VAST AREAS OF THE NUBA MOUNTAINS; LEADING TO PROLONGED SUFFERING FOR THOUSANDS OF PEOPLE. DCA DEPLOYED A NUMBER OF DOG TEAMS ONTO THE ROAD, AND THE SUBSEQUENT CLEARANCE NOW PROVIDES THE LOCAL PEOPLE A SAFE ROUTE TO TRAVEL, THE JMC WITH SAFE PASSAGE 
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ITF Regional Activities in 
South-East Europe

Regional approach represents a vital dimension 

of ITF’s activities. We believe, that the regional 

co-operation is essential, as different important 

issues can be addressed more efficiently and more 

cost-effectively, if the countries in the region are 

prepared to help each other in reaching their 

common goal of mine-free land. The exchange of 

experience and information, excellence in work 

and know-how, and co-ordination of activities in 

the field of mine action are crucial components 

in achieving their objectives, not to mention the 

process of confidence building through mine ac-

tion activities in the long run. 

On 25th October 2006, the 16th SEEMACC meet-

ing took place in the town of Ohrid, Macedonia. 

The purpose of the meeting was the continuation 

of cooperation in the field of mine action in the re-

gion of South East Europe in accordance with the 

Agreement on the Establishment of SEEMACC. 

At the beginning of the meeting members pro-

nounced to officially accept the Republic of Mac-

edonia as a member of SEEMACC. 

Members of SEEMACC presented the insight of 

mine action activities in their own countries. As 

the Lake Ohrid is facing underwater UXO threat, 

some emphasis was given to underwater EOD. 

Members of SEEMACC came to conclusion that 

the underwater UXO and mine problem should 

be addressed properly by consolidating priorities 

and harmonizing approach for SEEMACC mem-

bers. They also agreed that in the spirit of con-

tinuous and strengthened cooperation between 

national capacities members will set up a directory 

of different mine action experts for expeditious 

and prompt response for the future needs and ac-

tivities within the region of SEE as well as in other 

mine affected regions. Moreover, the role of tech-

nical secretary and coordinator for SEEMACC 

was assigned to ITF. 

For more information about SEEMACC please 

visit www.see-demining.org. 

Donor for the SEEMACC: 

United States of America

South-Eastern Europe Mine 
Action Coordination Council 

(SEEMACC)

Chart 17: 

Distribution of funds in SEE region in 2006

	 Other				    48,6%

	 Region				   25,0%

	 Mine Risk Education		  13,7%

	 Structure Support		  12,7% 

AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF A ‘HUMANITARIAN HIGHWAY’ TO ALLOW OTHER ORGANISATIONS SAFE PASSAGE INTO THE AREA. IS MINE ACTION THE SAME IN ALL COUNTRIES? NO, IS THE SIMPLE ANSWER.  MINE ACTION DIFFERS FROM ONE COUNTRY TO ANOTHER. COUNTRIES SUCH AS AFGHANISTAN OR MOZAMBIQUE HAVE LONG ESTABLISHED PROGRAMMES; MINE ACTION HAS BEEN CONDUCTED THERE FOR MANY YEARS. OFTEN THESE COUNTRIES HAVE THERE OWN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION ORGANISATION; SUCH AS THE AFGHAN TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS (ATC). AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, A RAPID MINE ACTION RESPONSE WAS REQUIRED.  A COUNTRYWIDE SURVEY WAS CONDUCTED BY A BRITISH MINE ACTION CHARITY.  THIS GAVE THE UNITED 
NATIONS MINE ACTION CENTRE A GOOD IDEA OF THE MINE AND UXO PROBLEM THE MINE ACTION COMMUNITY WAS ACTUALLY FACING.  WHERE THE PRIORITY CLEARANCE WAS AND WHICH MINEFIELDS NEEDED TO BE CLEARED FIRST. WITH A LARGE NUMBER OF INTERNATIONAL MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS WORKING IN KOSOVO; THE MAJORITY OF THE LANDMINE AND UXO PROBLEM WAS DEALT WITH WITHIN ABOUT 2 YEARS.  AN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION CAPACITY NOW REMAINS TO DEAL WITH THE LOW PRIORITY MINEFIELDS THAT WERE LEFT. MINE CLEARANCE WHAT IS A LANDMINE? A LANDMINE IS AN EXPLOSIVE DEVICE, DESIGNED TO WOUND, KILL OR OTHERWISE INCAPACITATE PERSONNEL; OR DESIGNED TO DESTROY OR DAMAGE VEHI-
CLES. WHAT DIFFERENT TYPES OF LANDMINES ARE THERE? WE KNOW THERE ARE TWO MAIN GROUPS OF LANDMINES, ANTI PERSONNEL AND ANTI TANK MINES. ALL LANDMINES HAVE SPECIFIC CHARACTERISTICS AND ARE DESIGNED TO OPERATE IN SPECIFIC WAYS; THEY ARE BLAST, FRAGMENTATION AND BOUNDING. BLAST MINES: THE BLAST EFFECT OF THE MINE EXPLODING IS THE MAIN CAUSE OF INJURY TO THE VICTIM. THE PMN ANTI-PERSONNEL MINE IS A BLAST MINE. FRAGMENTATION MINES: THE MINE HAS A METAL CASE, WHICH BREAKS INTO METAL FRAGMENTS AS THE MINE EXPLODES.  THE SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED OUT BY THE EXPLOSIVE FORCE OF THE MINE AND CAUSE INJURY TO THE VICTIMS. BOUNDING MINES: THE 
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Institute for Rehabilitation of the Republic of 

Slovenia (IRRS) provides treatment for mine 

survivors, who are not able to receive treatment in 

their own countries, due to severity of their condi-

tion, unsuitable local facilities or limited experi-

ence of local professional specialists. 

IRRS provided rehabilitation treatment, in 2006 

in Ljubljana, Slovenia, for 31 mine survivors from 

SEE and 1 from Azerbaijan. 

The international conference “Prevention of Vio-

lence Against Children and Human Security” was 

organized by Foundation Together in Brdo, Slov-

enia (30th November to 2nd December 2006).

The conference was one of the contributions of 

the Republic of Slovenia in the frame of its presi-

dency of the Human Security Network (HSN) 

in 2006 and was besides ITF co-financed by the 

Ministry of the Foreign Affairs of the Republic of 

Slovenia and the Embassies of the United States 

of America and the Netherlands in Slovenia. 

The main goal of the conference was to present 

the results of the study on violence against chil-

dren by an independent expert for the UN gen-

eral secretary, to present theoretical topics dealing 

with mental health protection and prevention of 

violence against children in the frame of human 

security and to enable exchange of information 

among participating organisations. The 140 par-

ticipants at the Conference were high level repre-

sentatives from the ten member countries of the 

Human Security Network and representatives of 

the Together Network partner organisations from 

the region of SEE and wider.

International Conference 
“Prevention of Violence 

Against Children and Human 
Security” implemented by 

Foundation “Together”

Donor for the Conference: 

Slovenia

Rehabilitation of Mine 
Survivors at the Institute 
for Rehabilitation of the 

Republic of Slovenia 

Donors for Rehabilitation Program 

at Institute for Rehabilitation of 

Republic of Slovenia: 

Austrian Airlines, Cordinamenti Donne, Herakel 

Baku, humanitarian contribution “Nikola Kepić”, 

IRRS, Korea, Music Gallery Baku, Norway, 

Panalpina Baku, Rotary Club International 

Calvia, Slovenia, Studio Moderna Azerbaijan and

the United States of America. 

Chart 18: 

Number and origin of patients rehabilitated at 

IRRS in 2006

	 Bosnia and Herzegovina		  22

	 Kosovo (Serbia)			   6

	 Albania			   1

	 Azerbaijan			   1

	 Croatia			   1

	 Serbia				    1

AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF A ‘HUMANITARIAN HIGHWAY’ TO ALLOW OTHER ORGANISATIONS SAFE PASSAGE INTO THE AREA. IS MINE ACTION THE SAME IN ALL COUNTRIES? NO, IS THE SIMPLE ANSWER.  MINE ACTION DIFFERS FROM ONE COUNTRY TO ANOTHER. COUNTRIES SUCH AS AFGHANISTAN OR MOZAMBIQUE HAVE LONG ESTABLISHED PROGRAMMES; MINE ACTION HAS BEEN CONDUCTED THERE FOR MANY YEARS. OFTEN THESE COUNTRIES HAVE THERE OWN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION ORGANISATION; SUCH AS THE AFGHAN TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS (ATC). AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, A RAPID MINE ACTION RESPONSE WAS REQUIRED.  A COUNTRYWIDE SURVEY WAS CONDUCTED BY A BRITISH MINE ACTION CHARITY.  THIS GAVE THE UNITED 
NATIONS MINE ACTION CENTRE A GOOD IDEA OF THE MINE AND UXO PROBLEM THE MINE ACTION COMMUNITY WAS ACTUALLY FACING.  WHERE THE PRIORITY CLEARANCE WAS AND WHICH MINEFIELDS NEEDED TO BE CLEARED FIRST. WITH A LARGE NUMBER OF INTERNATIONAL MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS WORKING IN KOSOVO; THE MAJORITY OF THE LANDMINE AND UXO PROBLEM WAS DEALT WITH WITHIN ABOUT 2 YEARS.  AN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION CAPACITY NOW REMAINS TO DEAL WITH THE LOW PRIORITY MINEFIELDS THAT WERE LEFT. MINE CLEARANCE WHAT IS A LANDMINE? A LANDMINE IS AN EXPLOSIVE DEVICE, DESIGNED TO WOUND, KILL OR OTHERWISE INCAPACITATE PERSONNEL; OR DESIGNED TO DESTROY OR DAMAGE VEHI-
CLES. WHAT DIFFERENT TYPES OF LANDMINES ARE THERE? WE KNOW THERE ARE TWO MAIN GROUPS OF LANDMINES, ANTI PERSONNEL AND ANTI TANK MINES. ALL LANDMINES HAVE SPECIFIC CHARACTERISTICS AND ARE DESIGNED TO OPERATE IN SPECIFIC WAYS; THEY ARE BLAST, FRAGMENTATION AND BOUNDING. BLAST MINES: THE BLAST EFFECT OF THE MINE EXPLODING IS THE MAIN CAUSE OF INJURY TO THE VICTIM. THE PMN ANTI-PERSONNEL MINE IS A BLAST MINE. FRAGMENTATION MINES: THE MINE HAS A METAL CASE, WHICH BREAKS INTO METAL FRAGMENTS AS THE MINE EXPLODES.  THE SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED OUT BY THE EXPLOSIVE FORCE OF THE MINE AND CAUSE INJURY TO THE VICTIMS. BOUNDING MINES: THE 
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Capacity building is crucial for mine-affected 

countries of SEE in order to be able to cope more 

effectively with the landmine problem. Numerous 

trainings and seminars on technical assistance are 

organized by the IRRS related to rehabilitation of 

mine survivors.

List of programs implemented by IRRS, which 

are have been described in detail in previous chap-

ters:

	 Prosthetics and Orthotics Course for 

	 Rehabilitation Specialists from SEE,

	 Program for Prosthetics and Orthotics 

	 Technologist at School of Health Studies, 

	 University of Ljubljana,

	 International conference “Rehabilitation 

	 within the Employment Process of Persons 

	 with Disabilities in Tuzla Canton”.

Regional Training Program

Donors for Regional Training Program: 

Slovenia and the United States of America.

MINE, SIMILAR TO THE FRAGMENTATION, HAS A SMALL CHARGE THAT THROWS THE MINE OUT OF THE GROUND INTO THE AIR NORMALLY AT ABOUT HEAD HEIGHT.  THEN THE MAIN CHARGE EXPLODES AND SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED .  A TRIPWIRE USUALLY ACTIVATES THESE LANDMINES. WHAT ACTUALLY MAKES THE MINE EXPLODE? LANDMINES ARE USUALLY INITIATED BY PRESSURE OR TRIP WIRE. PRESSURE: DIRECT DOWNWARD PRESSURE ON THE LANDMINE WILL INITIATE THE LANDMINE. TRIPWIRE: A TRIPWIRE IS ATTACHED TO THE FUSE.  WHEN PRESSURE IS APPLIED TO THE TRIPWIRE, A PIN IS NORMALLY PULLED OUT OF THE FUSE INITIATING THE LANDMINE.  SOME LANDMINES MAYBE SET UP WITH MORE THAN ONE TRIPWIRE. HOW 
IS A LANDMINE LAID? LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED IN A NUMBER OF DIFFERENT WAYS: BY HAND, WHERE A LANDMINE IS USUALLY BURIED IN THE GROUND. BY MECHANICAL DEPLOYMENT, SPECIALLY DESIGNED VEHICLES ARE ABLE TO LAY LANDMINES. BY REMOTE DEPLOYMENT, MANY MODERN LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED BY REMOTE METHODS SUCH AS BY AIRCRAFT, HELICOPTER, ARTILLERY OR ROCKET.  LANDMINES DEPLOYED BY THIS MANOR WILL USUALLY BE SURFACE LAID. SCATTERABLE DEPLOYMENT, THESE MINES ARE DESIGNED TO SPREAD OF AS LARGE AN AREA AS POSSIBLE.  THE SOVIET PFM-1 ‘BUTTERFLY’ IS ONE SUCH EXAMPLE. WHAT IS A MINEFIELD? A MINEFIELD IS AN AREA OF LAND CONTAINING OR BELIEVED TO CONTAIN 
LANDMINES. IS IT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE A PROBLEM? NO, IT IS NOT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE CAUSING THESE PROBLEMS – COUNTLESS PIECES OF UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO), SUCH AS GRENADES, MORTARS AND CLUSTER BOMBLETS, MUNITIONS THAT DID NOT EXPLODE, HAVE VERY MUCH THE SAME EFFECT. WHY DON’T ALL MUNITIONS WORK? FOR THE SAME REASON ONE MORNING YOUR CAR WON’T START; SO GRENADES, MORTAR BOMBS ETC MAY NOT WORK. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINEFIELD? A SURVEY TEAM WILL START BY IDENTIFYING A LANDMINE-AFFLICTED COMMUNITY. ONCE IT HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED THAT LANDMINES AFFECT THE COMMUNITY, THE SURVEY OFFICER WILL TRY TO IDENTIFY THE AREA BELIEVED TO BE A 
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In 2006 ITF also focused its attention to Mine 

Action activities in Azerbaijan. However, the op-

erations were temporarily brought to a standstill 

in other two South Caucasus countries, i.e. Arme-

nia and Georgia. Nevertheless, ITF anticipates re-

suming Mine Action activities in the near future. 

South Caucasus

III.b. Other Countries and Regions

South Caucasus
Other Mine-Affected Countries

MINE, SIMILAR TO THE FRAGMENTATION, HAS A SMALL CHARGE THAT THROWS THE MINE OUT OF THE GROUND INTO THE AIR NORMALLY AT ABOUT HEAD HEIGHT.  THEN THE MAIN CHARGE EXPLODES AND SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED .  A TRIPWIRE USUALLY ACTIVATES THESE LANDMINES. WHAT ACTUALLY MAKES THE MINE EXPLODE? LANDMINES ARE USUALLY INITIATED BY PRESSURE OR TRIP WIRE. PRESSURE: DIRECT DOWNWARD PRESSURE ON THE LANDMINE WILL INITIATE THE LANDMINE. TRIPWIRE: A TRIPWIRE IS ATTACHED TO THE FUSE.  WHEN PRESSURE IS APPLIED TO THE TRIPWIRE, A PIN IS NORMALLY PULLED OUT OF THE FUSE INITIATING THE LANDMINE.  SOME LANDMINES MAYBE SET UP WITH MORE THAN ONE TRIPWIRE. HOW 
IS A LANDMINE LAID? LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED IN A NUMBER OF DIFFERENT WAYS: BY HAND, WHERE A LANDMINE IS USUALLY BURIED IN THE GROUND. BY MECHANICAL DEPLOYMENT, SPECIALLY DESIGNED VEHICLES ARE ABLE TO LAY LANDMINES. BY REMOTE DEPLOYMENT, MANY MODERN LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED BY REMOTE METHODS SUCH AS BY AIRCRAFT, HELICOPTER, ARTILLERY OR ROCKET.  LANDMINES DEPLOYED BY THIS MANOR WILL USUALLY BE SURFACE LAID. SCATTERABLE DEPLOYMENT, THESE MINES ARE DESIGNED TO SPREAD OF AS LARGE AN AREA AS POSSIBLE.  THE SOVIET PFM-1 ‘BUTTERFLY’ IS ONE SUCH EXAMPLE. WHAT IS A MINEFIELD? A MINEFIELD IS AN AREA OF LAND CONTAINING OR BELIEVED TO CONTAIN 
LANDMINES. IS IT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE A PROBLEM? NO, IT IS NOT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE CAUSING THESE PROBLEMS – COUNTLESS PIECES OF UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO), SUCH AS GRENADES, MORTARS AND CLUSTER BOMBLETS, MUNITIONS THAT DID NOT EXPLODE, HAVE VERY MUCH THE SAME EFFECT. WHY DON’T ALL MUNITIONS WORK? FOR THE SAME REASON ONE MORNING YOUR CAR WON’T START; SO GRENADES, MORTAR BOMBS ETC MAY NOT WORK. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINEFIELD? A SURVEY TEAM WILL START BY IDENTIFYING A LANDMINE-AFFLICTED COMMUNITY. ONCE IT HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED THAT LANDMINES AFFECT THE COMMUNITY, THE SURVEY OFFICER WILL TRY TO IDENTIFY THE AREA BELIEVED TO BE A 
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Project “Support to Azerbaijan 
National Agency for Mine Action 
(ANAMA) 10-men Emergency Re-
sponse Team (ERT) and Operational 
Coordination and Control”

Throughout 2006, ITF continued to support a 

14-month project, which started in December 

2005 and contributed to ANAMA capabilities on 

different levels:

	 sustainable capability to react to emergency 

	 threats from landmines and UXO ensured 

	 with the support to ERT ANAMA,

	 clearance operations have been significantly 

	 enhanced with the purchase of subsurface 

	 bomb locator,

	 mobility of ANAMA demining teams has 

	 been improved with the purchase of transport 

	 vehicle,

	 continuing operational coordination and 

	 control has been ensured through support, 

	 which has been provided to ANAMA 

	 headquarters and both regional offices. 

Azerbaijan Structure Support

Operations activities have been implemented in 

the following regions of Azerbaijan: Aghdam, 

Aghjabedi, Aghstafa, Fizuli and Terter. Results 

are listed as follows:

	 ERT had provided support to ANAMA UXO  

	 disposal team on Saloglu site, Aghstafa region.

 	 Together both teams have cleared 681.498 

	 square meters of UXO affected land and 

	 removed 2.280 UXO,

	 ERT has also been involved in clearance of haz-

	 ardous sites on several occasions such as removal  

	 of BM 21 rocket from house basement in Mahri- 

	 zli village, Aghdam region,

	 ERT has cleared 159 houses and 315.244 

	 square meters of surrounding land from mine 	

	 and UXO threat in regions of Aghjabedi, 

	 Aghdam, Fizuli and Terter,

	 ERT has cleared 4 local schools from mine and  

	 UXO threat in Terter district,

Donors for Structure Support in Azerbaijan: 

Marshall Legacy Institute, Slovenia, 

and UK Department for International  

Development (DFID).

Chart 19: 

Distribution of funds in Azerbaijan by purpose 

in 2006

	 Structure Support		  72,9%

	 Training			   16,6% 

	 Other				    9,3%

	 Mine Victims Assistance		  1,2%

MINEFIELD. THEY WILL USE A VARIETY OF SOURCES OF INFORMATION TO LOCATE A MINEFIELD; THIS WILL RANGE FROM MINEFIELD RECORDS, LOCAL KNOWLEDGE OR OTHER SOURCES. MINEFIELD RECORDS; IF A MINEFIELD IS LAID IT SHOULD BE RECORDED AND MARKED; IN MANY CONFLICTS THIS IS NOT DONE.  THIS COULD BE FOR A VARIETY OF REASONS; BUT IS OFTEN BECAUSE SOLDIERS INVOLVED IN SUCH CONFLICTS ARE NOT PROFESSIONAL SOLDIERS, BUT CONSCRIPTS OR GUERRILLA FIGHTERS. AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, THE YUGOSLAVIAN ARMY PROVIDED THE UN WITH VERY ACCURATE MINEFIELD RECORDS.  THIS MADE THE TASK OF IDENTIFYING MINEFIELDS MUCH EASIER IN MANY CASES. LOCAL KNOWLEDGE; IS AN INVALUABLE SOURCE 
OF INFORMATION.  PEOPLE WHO LIVE THEIR LIVES WITH LANDMINES WILL KNOW WHICH FIELDS NOT TO USE AND WHICH TRACKS NOT TO DRIVE DOWN. A SURVEY TEAM WILL BE ABLE TO TAKE SUCH INFORMATION AND LOCATE SUSPECTED MINEFIELDS. HOW DO YOU DECIDE WHERE TO WORK AND WHAT LAND TO CLEAR? DEMINING AGENCIES MUST IDENTIFY AREAS OF GROUND THAT HAS THE HIGHEST PRIORITY FOR CLEARANCE.  THIS WILL BE DONE IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LANDMINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITY, NGOS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORGANISATIONS PRIORITISATION. AN AREA MAYBE THOUGHT TO BE MINED, OR THE FEAR OF LANDMINES IS DENYING THE USE OF THIS LAND TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS.  
ONCE THE LAND HAS BEEN CLEARED IT IS THEN FREE TO BE USED. A LARGE PLOT OF LAND MAY BE DENIED TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS BY ONLY A FEW LANDMINES, THEREFORE THE AREA CLEARED IS MORE IMPORTANT THAN THE NUMBER OF LANDMINES FOUND. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINE? THE MOST COMMON METHOD WILL BE A DEMINER USING A METAL DETECTOR. A DEMINER WILL USE A METAL DETECTOR AND A VARIETY OF OTHER TOOLS, QUIET OFTEN-SIMPLE GARDENING TOOLS. THE DETECTOR WILL INDICATE THE PRESENCE OF METAL IN THE GROUND. EVERY METAL INDICATION GIVEN BY THE METAL DETECTOR NEEDS TO BE CHECKED IN CASE IT‘S A MINE. SO THE MORE METAL FRAGMENTS THERE ARE, THE MORE TIME IT MIGHT TAKE. THE 
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Project “Support of Azerbaijan Na-
tional Mine Action 8 – men Training 
and Quality Assurance Team (TQAT)”

TQAT element of ANAMA is of vital impor-

tance as it executes quality control (QC) and 

quality assurance (QA) operations on the ground, 

thus verifying if operations are in accordance with 

Azerbaijan standards on humanitarian demining 

and in accordance with clearance certificates 

procedures, which are the basis for the return of 

cleared areas back to local communities. Beside 

implementing regular monitoring tasks, TQAT 

also issued certificates for 42 cleared sites for the 

14.487 beneficiaries that have received land for use 

as residential, agricultural or pasture areas. Fur-

thermore, in the same period TQAT implemented 

training courses such as “UXO Operators Course”, 

“Basic Demining Course”, “Team/Section Leader 

Course”, “Paramedic Course” and number of re-

freshment training courses for deminers coming 

from ANAMA and from two Azerbaijan NGO’s 

working in the field of humanitarian demining. 

Implementing training courses enables ANAMA 

to maintain and upgrade their national capacity in 

the field of humanitarian demining. TQAT also 

conducted two emergency General Surveys, which 

identified approximately 28 square kilometers of 

land as mine and UXO suspected. 

Project “Training of 6 Mine  
Detection Dogs’ (MDD) teams 
for ANAMA”

The training of 6 MDD teams was implemented 

from March 2006 to October 2006. In addition 

to the training of MDDs and handlers the project 

included purchase of 6 untrained, so called “green” 

dogs. Project has significantly increased ANA-

MA clearance capacities as mine detection dogs 

are able to process a daily average area of up to 

50 times larger than the area processed by a single 

deminer. 

	 To prepare the ERT for house clearance 

	 operations a training course in the field of 

	 “booby traps” and house clearance was carried 

	 out separately in March and in July 2006,

	 ERT has removed 24.220 UXO from an 

	 outdoor depot (an area of 18.824 square 

	 meters) in town of Aghstafa, Aghstafa district,

	 A sub-surface bomb locator (purchased 

	 through this project) has been used on the 

	 Zobjug site, Fizuli. There is an estimated 19 

	 million square meters of mine and UXO 

	 contaminated land on the Zobjug site. 

	 This land is foreseen as a settling site on which 

	 2,104 houses would be built for the returnees 

	 and IDP’s originating from the 1988-1994’s 

	 war. 

MINEFIELD. THEY WILL USE A VARIETY OF SOURCES OF INFORMATION TO LOCATE A MINEFIELD; THIS WILL RANGE FROM MINEFIELD RECORDS, LOCAL KNOWLEDGE OR OTHER SOURCES. MINEFIELD RECORDS; IF A MINEFIELD IS LAID IT SHOULD BE RECORDED AND MARKED; IN MANY CONFLICTS THIS IS NOT DONE.  THIS COULD BE FOR A VARIETY OF REASONS; BUT IS OFTEN BECAUSE SOLDIERS INVOLVED IN SUCH CONFLICTS ARE NOT PROFESSIONAL SOLDIERS, BUT CONSCRIPTS OR GUERRILLA FIGHTERS. AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, THE YUGOSLAVIAN ARMY PROVIDED THE UN WITH VERY ACCURATE MINEFIELD RECORDS.  THIS MADE THE TASK OF IDENTIFYING MINEFIELDS MUCH EASIER IN MANY CASES. LOCAL KNOWLEDGE; IS AN INVALUABLE SOURCE 
OF INFORMATION.  PEOPLE WHO LIVE THEIR LIVES WITH LANDMINES WILL KNOW WHICH FIELDS NOT TO USE AND WHICH TRACKS NOT TO DRIVE DOWN. A SURVEY TEAM WILL BE ABLE TO TAKE SUCH INFORMATION AND LOCATE SUSPECTED MINEFIELDS. HOW DO YOU DECIDE WHERE TO WORK AND WHAT LAND TO CLEAR? DEMINING AGENCIES MUST IDENTIFY AREAS OF GROUND THAT HAS THE HIGHEST PRIORITY FOR CLEARANCE.  THIS WILL BE DONE IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LANDMINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITY, NGOS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORGANISATIONS PRIORITISATION. AN AREA MAYBE THOUGHT TO BE MINED, OR THE FEAR OF LANDMINES IS DENYING THE USE OF THIS LAND TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS.  
ONCE THE LAND HAS BEEN CLEARED IT IS THEN FREE TO BE USED. A LARGE PLOT OF LAND MAY BE DENIED TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS BY ONLY A FEW LANDMINES, THEREFORE THE AREA CLEARED IS MORE IMPORTANT THAN THE NUMBER OF LANDMINES FOUND. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINE? THE MOST COMMON METHOD WILL BE A DEMINER USING A METAL DETECTOR. A DEMINER WILL USE A METAL DETECTOR AND A VARIETY OF OTHER TOOLS, QUIET OFTEN-SIMPLE GARDENING TOOLS. THE DETECTOR WILL INDICATE THE PRESENCE OF METAL IN THE GROUND. EVERY METAL INDICATION GIVEN BY THE METAL DETECTOR NEEDS TO BE CHECKED IN CASE IT‘S A MINE. SO THE MORE METAL FRAGMENTS THERE ARE, THE MORE TIME IT MIGHT TAKE. THE 
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Project “Prosthetics and Orthotics 
course for rehabilitation specialists 
from Azerbaijan”

Five Azeri specialists in the field of rehabilitation 

attended a 3-week rehabilitation training course 

at the IRRS in September 2006. The specialists - 

one rehabilitation team (Physician, Therapist and 

Technician) and Director from the Prosthetics 

and Orthopedic Rehabilitation Centre in Baku, 

Azerbaijan, and one Orthopaedic Field Officer 

from ICRC in Azerbaijan - attended the course. 

Aim of the project was to enhance the capacity of 

rehabilitation institutions in Azerbaijan in order 

to effectively treat landmine survivors and other 

disabled persons.

Training

Donor for Training in Azerbaijan: 

Slovenia.

Based on ITF good work in the regions of SEE 

and South Caucasus, support of Slovenian dip-

lomatic network and the fact that ITF has been 

intensively present in mine action for the past 8 

years, ITF was approached / invited by several 

mine affected countries to support different as-

pects within their national mine action programs.

ITF visited and carried out assessment in Colom-

bia and Jordan. Based on identified needs of both 

mine affected countries ITF is planning to sign 

Memorandum of Understanding with Colombia 

and Jordan, which will enable legal basis for future 

ITF operations in the field of mine action in re-

spected countries.

ITF also continued discussions in 2006 with 

representatives of Sudan, Egypt, Yemen and 

Tajikistan with the aim to identify »weak« spots 

in their mine action programs. Once the require-

ments are clearly identified, ITF will make every 

effort to prepare efficient and sustainable mine ac-

tion projects and conduct extensive fund raising 

activities to secure funding and start the projects.

ITF activities in above mentioned countries will 

focus primarily on mine victims assistance, mine 

risk education and support to local/national mine 

action capacities.

Other Mine-Affected 
Countries

Donor:

Slovenia.

DEMINER WILL THEN MARK THIS SPOT PRIOR TO EXCAVATING ON THAT LOCATION USING A PROBE AND EXCAVATION TOOLS. IF HE OR SHE FINDS A LANDMINE, A SUPERIOR WILL BE INFORMED. DO ALL MINES CONTAIN METAL? NO, THERE ARE SOME THAT DO NOT CONTAIN ANY METAL AT ALL. SO HOW DO YOU CLEAR MINES WITHOUT METAL IN THEM? THE DEMINERS WILL HAVE TO CARRY OUT A 100% EXCAVATION OF THE AREA; OR DOGS MAYBE USED IN SUCH AREAS. WHO ACTUALLY CLEARS THE MINES? IN MOST CASES DEMINERS WILL BE VOLUNTEERS FROM THE LOCAL COMMUNITY, HOWEVER SOMETIMES THEY ARE DEMOBILISED SOLDIERS.  THESE PEOPLE WILL MAKE UP THE NATIONAL STAFF EMPLOYED BY MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS. ALL 
ORGANISATIONS THAT ADOPT-A-MINEFIELD (UK) FUNDS EMPLOY NATIONAL STAFF, BOTH IN OPERATIONAL ROLES AND OPERATIONAL SUPPORT.  MINE CLEARANCES ORGANISATIONS ARE COMMITTED TO CAPACITY BUILDING OF LOCAL STAFF; PROVIDING MANAGEMENT TRAINING NATIONAL STAFF, SO THAT THEY CAN ONE DAY RUN THE PROGRAMME WITHOUT THE PRESENCES OF INTERNATIONAL STAFF. MINES IN CAMBODIA, ARE A CAMBODIAN PROBLEM; IT IS THE KHMER PEOPLE, FAMILY, FRIENDS WHO ARE AFFECTED BY LANDMINES.  WHAT DO THEY DO WHEN THEY FIND A LANDMINE? LANDMINE PROBLEM WHY IS IT NECESSARY TO HAVE A CAMPAIGN TO CLEAR MINEFIELDS? LANDMINES CONTINUE TO EFFECT MANY COMMUNITIES WELL AFTER 
HOSTILITIES HAVE CEASED; ONE THIRD OF ALL VICTIMS ARE CHILDREN. THE PRESENCE OF LANDMINES CAN ALSO HINDER THE REDEVELOPMENT OF A COUNTRY AND ITS ECONOMY FOR MANY YEARS AFTER A CONFLICT. THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN THE GROUND IN AT LEAST 90 COUNTRIES. LANDMINES REPORTEDLY MAIM OR KILL 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR. THOSE WHO SURVIVE ENDURE A LIFETIME OF PHYSICAL, PSYCHOLOGICAL, AND ECONOMIC HARDSHIP. LOCAL COMMUNITIES IN LANDMINE-AFFECTED COUNTRIES OFTEN DO NOT HAVE THE RESOURCES TO CLEAR THEIR OWN LAND AND TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE CARE FOR THEIR LANDMINE SURVIVORS. THEY DEPEND PRIMARILY UPON FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
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In beginning of July 2006, representatives of ITF 

and Slovenian Institute for Rehabilitation (IRRS) 

visited Colombia based on invitation from Co-

lombian Vice-president H.E. Mr. Santos. Purpose 

of the visit was become introduced to victims as-

sistance (VA) program and see the situation on 

the spot. Representatives met in Bogota with all 

relevant national and international VA stakehold-

ers in Colombia and observed situation in cities 

Cali and Medellin situated in two of most affected 

regions of Colombia.

ITF prepared initial recommendations regard-

ing the futher steps / support in victim assistance 

program. Joint preparation of projects between 

Observatory for Mine Action as Colombian na-

tional authority, ITF and IRRS is being planned 

in order to start with the VA activities in 2007.

Colombia

Donor:

Slovenia.

In beginning of September 2006 ITF representa-

tives visited Norwegian Peoples Aid - NPA / Na-

tional Committee for Demining and Rehabilita-

tion - NCDR demining activities in Wadi Araba 

and minefields on the border with Syria. Several 

meetings with all major mine action stakeholders 

and mine affected communities were organized. 

ITF and NCDR agreed that major support from 

ITF is needed on the field of psychological reha-

bilitation and socio-economic reintegration of 

mine survivors. ITF is already preparing project 

proposals in the field of victims assistance and 

demining to support efforts of National Com-

mittee for Demining and Rehabilitation to meet 

obligations of Kingdom of Jordan under the Mine 

Ban Treaty.

Jordan

Donor:

Slovenia.

DEMINER WILL THEN MARK THIS SPOT PRIOR TO EXCAVATING ON THAT LOCATION USING A PROBE AND EXCAVATION TOOLS. IF HE OR SHE FINDS A LANDMINE, A SUPERIOR WILL BE INFORMED. DO ALL MINES CONTAIN METAL? NO, THERE ARE SOME THAT DO NOT CONTAIN ANY METAL AT ALL. SO HOW DO YOU CLEAR MINES WITHOUT METAL IN THEM? THE DEMINERS WILL HAVE TO CARRY OUT A 100% EXCAVATION OF THE AREA; OR DOGS MAYBE USED IN SUCH AREAS. WHO ACTUALLY CLEARS THE MINES? IN MOST CASES DEMINERS WILL BE VOLUNTEERS FROM THE LOCAL COMMUNITY, HOWEVER SOMETIMES THEY ARE DEMOBILISED SOLDIERS.  THESE PEOPLE WILL MAKE UP THE NATIONAL STAFF EMPLOYED BY MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS. ALL 
ORGANISATIONS THAT ADOPT-A-MINEFIELD (UK) FUNDS EMPLOY NATIONAL STAFF, BOTH IN OPERATIONAL ROLES AND OPERATIONAL SUPPORT.  MINE CLEARANCES ORGANISATIONS ARE COMMITTED TO CAPACITY BUILDING OF LOCAL STAFF; PROVIDING MANAGEMENT TRAINING NATIONAL STAFF, SO THAT THEY CAN ONE DAY RUN THE PROGRAMME WITHOUT THE PRESENCES OF INTERNATIONAL STAFF. MINES IN CAMBODIA, ARE A CAMBODIAN PROBLEM; IT IS THE KHMER PEOPLE, FAMILY, FRIENDS WHO ARE AFFECTED BY LANDMINES.  WHAT DO THEY DO WHEN THEY FIND A LANDMINE? LANDMINE PROBLEM WHY IS IT NECESSARY TO HAVE A CAMPAIGN TO CLEAR MINEFIELDS? LANDMINES CONTINUE TO EFFECT MANY COMMUNITIES WELL AFTER 
HOSTILITIES HAVE CEASED; ONE THIRD OF ALL VICTIMS ARE CHILDREN. THE PRESENCE OF LANDMINES CAN ALSO HINDER THE REDEVELOPMENT OF A COUNTRY AND ITS ECONOMY FOR MANY YEARS AFTER A CONFLICT. THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN THE GROUND IN AT LEAST 90 COUNTRIES. LANDMINES REPORTEDLY MAIM OR KILL 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR. THOSE WHO SURVIVE ENDURE A LIFETIME OF PHYSICAL, PSYCHOLOGICAL, AND ECONOMIC HARDSHIP. LOCAL COMMUNITIES IN LANDMINE-AFFECTED COUNTRIES OFTEN DO NOT HAVE THE RESOURCES TO CLEAR THEIR OWN LAND AND TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE CARE FOR THEIR LANDMINE SURVIVORS. THEY DEPEND PRIMARILY UPON FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
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ITF has made arrangements in Autumn 2006 for 

deployment of one mine action expert for Quality 

Assurance (QA) within the United Nations Mine 

Action Center South Lebanon (UNMAC SL) 

with the donation of the Republic of Slovenia. 

QA adviser will be deployed to South Lebanon in 

early 2007 for the period of six months working 

as supervisor of mine clearance and cluster bombs 

clearance teams in Lebanon. 

ITF is already liasing with other interested do-

nors to extend support to mine and cluster bombs 

clearance activities and thus enable rehabilitation 

and reconstruction of South Lebanon.

Lebanon

Donor:

Slovenia.

FROM GOVERNMENTS, INTERNATIONAL AND NON GOVERNMENTAL ORGANISATIONS. WHAT IS MINE ACTION? MINE ACTION REFERS TO ALL THOSE ACTIVITIES, WHICH ADDRESS THE PROBLEMS FACED BY PEOPLE AS A RESULT OF LANDMINE/UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO) CONTAMINATION. MINE ACTION IS NOT SO MUCH ABOUT LANDMINES, THOUGH, AS ABOUT PEOPLE AND THEIR INTERACTIONS WITH A MINE-CONTAMINATED ENVIRONMENT. IT AIMS TO RECREATE AN ENVIRONMENT IN WHICH PEOPLE CAN LIVE SAFELY, IN WHICH ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT CAN OCCUR FREE FROM CONSTRAINTS, AND IN WHICH LANDMINE SURVIVORS ARE FULLY INTEGRATED INTO THEIR SOCIETIES. MINE ACTION COMPRISES FIVE COMPLEMENTARY 
GROUPS OF ACTIVITIES: MINE RISK EDUCATION (MRE) THE EDUCATION PROCESS WHICH AIMS TO ENSURE THAT COMMUNITIES ARE NOT ONLY AWARE OF THE RISKS FROM LIVING IN PROXIMITY TO LANDMINES AND UXO, AND TO ENCOURAGE PEOPLE TO BEHAVE IN A WAY THAT REDUCES THE RISK TO PEOPLE, PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT. HUMANITARIAN DEMINING DEMINING ACTIVITIES WHICH LEAD TO THE REMOVAL OF LANDMINE AND UXO HAZARDS, INCLUDING TECHNICAL SURVEY, MAPPING, CLEARANCE, MARKING, POST-CLEARANCE DOCUMENTATION, COMMUNITY MINE ACTION LIAISON AND THE HANDOVER OF CLEARED LAND. DEMINING MAY BE EMERGENCY-BASED OR DEVELOPMENTAL. SURVIVOR ASSISTANCE REFERS TO ALL AID, 
RELIEF, COMFORT AND SUPPORT PROVIDED SURVIVORS WITH THE PURPOSE OF REDUCING THE IMMEDIATE AND LONG-TERM MEDICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL IMPLICATIONS OF THEIR TRAUMA. STOCKPILE DESTRUCTION ARTICLE 4 OF THE MINE BAN TREATY (MBT) REQUIRES THAT SIGNATORIES UNDERTAKE TO DESTROY OR ENSURE THE DESTRUCTION OF ALL STOCKPILED ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES IT OWNS OR POSSESSES, OR THAT ARE UNDER ITS JURISDICTION OR CONTROL, AS SOON AS POSSIBLE BUT NOT LATER THAN FOUR YEARS AFTER THE ENTRY INTO FORCE OF THE MBT FOR THAT STATE PARTY. ADVOCACY AGAINST THE USE OF ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES. IN THE CONTEXT OF MINE ACTION, THE TERM REFERS TO … PUBLIC SUPPORT, 
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Media appearances

Humanitarian efforts of ITF activities are of-

ten accompanied by public and media attention. 

There were 117 appearances of ITF in Slovenian 

media and 107 appearances of ITF in Croatian 

media in the 2006. 

ITF also hosted a press event “Breakfast with 

Journalists« in October 2006 in Ljubljana, Slov-

enia where the main ITF activitites and mine ac-

tion efforts in SEE were presented to attending 

representatives of Slovenian media.

ITF Public Relations and 
Other Events

III.c. ITF other activities

Public Relations and other Events
ITF Publications
ITF Web Page

Humanitarian Event “Night of A
Thousand Dinners 2006” 

Humanitarian Event “Night of A Thousand Din-

ners”® took place on 9th March 2006 at Grand Ho-

tel Union in Ljubljana, Slovenia and gathered more 

than 290 guests from different spheres, diplomats, 

business partners, economists and cultural work. 

The main goal of the event was to spread mine 

awareness and raise means for landmine eradica-

tion. Altogether, nearly USD 48.970,72 were raised. 

Proceeds from the “Night of A Thousand Dinners” 

2006 will be earmarked for two demining projects in 

Bosnia and Herzegovina as part of the USA-UNA, 

Adopt-A-Minefield clearance program. Hosts of the 

dinner were H.E. Mr. Thomas Robertson, Ambassa-

dor of the United States of America, H.E. Mr. Rob-

ert Hage, Ambassador of Canada and Mr. Goran 

Gačnik, Director ITF. Honorary guest at the dinner 

was Mr. Martin Raguž, Chairman of the House of 

the Representatives of Bosnia and Herzegovina Par-

liamentary Assembly. ITF would like to thank all 

contributors for their donations, and especially to 

Ms. Živa Vadnov who donated the proceeds from 

her Miss Slovenia 2004 crown auction to these hu-

manitarian projects.

FROM GOVERNMENTS, INTERNATIONAL AND NON GOVERNMENTAL ORGANISATIONS. WHAT IS MINE ACTION? MINE ACTION REFERS TO ALL THOSE ACTIVITIES, WHICH ADDRESS THE PROBLEMS FACED BY PEOPLE AS A RESULT OF LANDMINE/UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO) CONTAMINATION. MINE ACTION IS NOT SO MUCH ABOUT LANDMINES, THOUGH, AS ABOUT PEOPLE AND THEIR INTERACTIONS WITH A MINE-CONTAMINATED ENVIRONMENT. IT AIMS TO RECREATE AN ENVIRONMENT IN WHICH PEOPLE CAN LIVE SAFELY, IN WHICH ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT CAN OCCUR FREE FROM CONSTRAINTS, AND IN WHICH LANDMINE SURVIVORS ARE FULLY INTEGRATED INTO THEIR SOCIETIES. MINE ACTION COMPRISES FIVE COMPLEMENTARY 
GROUPS OF ACTIVITIES: MINE RISK EDUCATION (MRE) THE EDUCATION PROCESS WHICH AIMS TO ENSURE THAT COMMUNITIES ARE NOT ONLY AWARE OF THE RISKS FROM LIVING IN PROXIMITY TO LANDMINES AND UXO, AND TO ENCOURAGE PEOPLE TO BEHAVE IN A WAY THAT REDUCES THE RISK TO PEOPLE, PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT. HUMANITARIAN DEMINING DEMINING ACTIVITIES WHICH LEAD TO THE REMOVAL OF LANDMINE AND UXO HAZARDS, INCLUDING TECHNICAL SURVEY, MAPPING, CLEARANCE, MARKING, POST-CLEARANCE DOCUMENTATION, COMMUNITY MINE ACTION LIAISON AND THE HANDOVER OF CLEARED LAND. DEMINING MAY BE EMERGENCY-BASED OR DEVELOPMENTAL. SURVIVOR ASSISTANCE REFERS TO ALL AID, 
RELIEF, COMFORT AND SUPPORT PROVIDED SURVIVORS WITH THE PURPOSE OF REDUCING THE IMMEDIATE AND LONG-TERM MEDICAL AND PSYCHOLOGICAL IMPLICATIONS OF THEIR TRAUMA. STOCKPILE DESTRUCTION ARTICLE 4 OF THE MINE BAN TREATY (MBT) REQUIRES THAT SIGNATORIES UNDERTAKE TO DESTROY OR ENSURE THE DESTRUCTION OF ALL STOCKPILED ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES IT OWNS OR POSSESSES, OR THAT ARE UNDER ITS JURISDICTION OR CONTROL, AS SOON AS POSSIBLE BUT NOT LATER THAN FOUR YEARS AFTER THE ENTRY INTO FORCE OF THE MBT FOR THAT STATE PARTY. ADVOCACY AGAINST THE USE OF ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES. IN THE CONTEXT OF MINE ACTION, THE TERM REFERS TO … PUBLIC SUPPORT, 
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ITF issues various publications, either in hard 

copy or in electronic version with aim of provid-

ing information to donor community and general 

public on ITF activities and on the problem of 

landmines in the region of SEE and other mine 

affected regions. 

In 2006, ITF published the following publica-

tions: 

	 ITF Annual Report 2005: A Step Closer, 

	 March 2006

	 ITF Strategy 2006-2009, March 2006;

	 ITF Brochure: About One Third of All 

	 Landmine Casualties are Children, 

	 September 2006;

	 ITF Intermediate Report 2006, October 

	 2006;

	 ITF e-TRUST No.14, No.15, and No. 16 - an  

	 electronic newsletter issued respectively in 

	 April, July, and November 2006. 

All ITF publications can be obtained on ITF web 

site www.itf-fund.si.

ITF Publications The purpose of the web page is to provide access 

to ITF mine action operations and activities for 

all interested stakeholders and wider public. The 

web-site features the following main pages: 

1.	 Presentation, 

2.	 Activities,

3.	 Donors, 

4.	 Help!,

5.	 News and 

6.	 Links.

ITF web site is updated on a weekly basis and 

enables viewing of all demining projects as well as 

other mine action projects that have been imple-

mented with different donor funds. In 2006 over 

399.000 visits of the ITF website were recorded, 

showing a huge interest of general public as well as 

professionals regarding the mine problem in gen-

eral and ITF activities in particular. 

ITF Web Page
www.itf-fund.si

Chart 20: 

Distribution of visit of ITF Web Page by 

Region

	 European Union			   56,0%

	 North America			   32,9% 

	 Other Regions			   8,9%

	 Other European Countries		  2,2%

RECOMMENDATION OR POSITIVE PUBLICITY WITH THE AIM OF REMOVING, OR AT LEAST REDUCING, THE THREAT FROM, AND THE IMPACT OF, LANDMINES AND UXO. WHY CLEAR LANDMINES? THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN 90 COUNTRIES. THESE REPORTEDLY KILL OR INJUR 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR.  IT IS HOWEVER DIFFICULT TO OBTAIN AC-
CURATE STATISTICS.  WE WON’T KNOW HOW MANY LANDMINES THERE ARE IN THE GROUND UNTIL WE’VE ACTUALLY FOUND THEM, AND MANY LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE NOT REPORTED BECAUSE THEY HAPPEN IN REMOTE AREAS AND HEALTH CENTRES DON’T EVEN FIND OUT ABOUT THEM. THIS IMPACT GOES FAR BEYOND PHYSICAL INJURY AND DEATH – IT INCLUDES VIRTU-
ALLY EVERY ASPECT OF LIFE AND PREVENTS MINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITIES FROM FULLY RECOVERING AFTER ARMED CONFLICTS HAVE ENDED. ABOUT ONE THIRD OF ALL LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE CHILDREN.  MANY MORE LOSE PARENTS OR OTHER FAMILY MEMBERS AND SUDDENLY FIND THEMSELVES RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING FOR THE FAMILY. IN ADDITION, LANDMINES 
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Regional cooperation of 
mine action stakeholders…

confidence gained.
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IV.	 Conclusion
ITF Strategy 2006-2009 will serve as the basis 

for the development of annual action plans, which 

will include a detailed outline of specific activities 

and measurable performance targets.

Our primary concern still remains focused on SEE 

mine-affected countries, where ITF will remain the 

vital link between the stakeholders in mine action. 

Efforts of donor community helped countries in 

SEE to rise from post conflict into development 

phase. The fact can be seen in growing participa-

tion of local communities with their own funds in-

vested into demining process. We encourage donor 

community to recognize efforts of local communi-

ties and further support  Mine Action activities un-

til we reach the final goal of mine free /safe region. 

We will also keep sharing our experience and ‘best 

practice’ with other mine-affected regions as our 

contribution to the global eradication of the mine 

problem.

On behalf of the people living in the mine-contami-

nated areas we would like to thank all donors, Mine 

Action Centers, relevant authorities in the mine-con-

taminated countries and implementing agencies that 

have been working with us towards our common goal 

of mine-free land. Thank you!

HINDER INFRASTRUCTURE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, THEY INCREASE A COUNTRY’S DEPENDENCY ON INTERNATIONAL AID, BLOCK THE DELIVERY OF RELIEF GOODS TO AREAS MOST IN NEED, PREVENT THE RETURN OF REFUGEES AND HAMPER THE PROCESS OF PEACE AND RECONCILIATION. LANDMINES HAVE A KNOCK ON EFFECT TO OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS.  
AID CONVOYS WILL NOT BE ABLE TO DRIVE ROADS SUSPECTED OF BEING MINED; THIS CAN MEAN AID FAILS TO REACH COMMUNITIES, AND OFTEN-EXPENSIVE ALTERNATIVES HAVE TO BE SOUGHT SUCH AS AIRDROPS. CASE STUDY: NUBA MOUNTAINS, CENTRAL SUDAN IN JANUARY 2003, THE DANCHURCH AID (DCA) MINE ACTION TEAM, WORKING IN THE NUBA MOUNTAINS, WERE 
TASKED TO CLEAR THE ROAD FROM THE VILLAGE OF EL HAMRA TO THE VILLAGE OF UMM SERDIBA. THERE HAD BEEN TWO MINE STRIKES ON THIS ROAD, ONE DESTROYED A TRACTOR KILLING A NUMBER OF PEOPLE; THE SECOND VEHICLE TO BE HIT BELONGED TO THE JMC, THE INTERNATIONAL BODY MONITORING THE ‘NUBA CEASEFIRE’ BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENT OF SUDAN 
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Statutory Annual Statements for 
the Financial Year 2006



Report on Procedures and Controls from 01 January 2006 to 31 December 200662

Report on 
Procedures and 

Controls
from 01 January 2006 to 

31 December 2006

AND THE SUDANESE PEOPLES LIBERATION MOVEMENT/ARMY. ALTHOUGH THE ROAD HAD TO REGARDED AS MINED; THE LOCAL POPULATION HAD TO CONTINUE USING THE ROAD, IT WAS THE ONLY WAY THEY COULD GET TO THE MAIN MARKET IN THE AREA. OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS WERE UNABLE TO ACCESS VAST AREAS OF THE NUBA MOUNTAINS; LEADING TO PROLONGED SUFFERING FOR THOUSANDS OF PEOPLE. DCA DEPLOYED A NUMBER OF DOG TEAMS ONTO THE ROAD, AND THE SUBSEQUENT CLEARANCE NOW PROVIDES THE LOCAL PEOPLE A SAFE ROUTE TO TRAVEL, THE JMC WITH SAFE PASSAGE AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF A ‘HUMANITARIAN HIGHWAY’ TO ALLOW OTHER ORGANISATIONS SAFE PASSAGE INTO THE AREA. IS 
MINE ACTION THE SAME IN ALL COUNTRIES? NO, IS THE SIMPLE ANSWER.  MINE ACTION DIFFERS FROM ONE COUNTRY TO ANOTHER. COUNTRIES SUCH AS AFGHANISTAN OR MOZAMBIQUE HAVE LONG ESTABLISHED PROGRAMMES; MINE ACTION HAS BEEN CONDUCTED THERE FOR MANY YEARS. OFTEN THESE COUNTRIES HAVE THERE OWN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION ORGANISATION; SUCH AS THE AFGHAN TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS (ATC). AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, A RAPID MINE ACTION RESPONSE WAS REQUIRED.  A COUNTRYWIDE SURVEY WAS CONDUCTED BY A BRITISH MINE ACTION CHARITY.  THIS GAVE THE UNITED NATIONS MINE ACTION CENTRE A GOOD IDEA OF THE MINE AND UXO PROBLEM THE MINE ACTION COMMUNITY WAS ACTU-
ALLY FACING.  WHERE THE PRIORITY CLEARANCE WAS AND WHICH MINEFIELDS NEEDED TO BE CLEARED FIRST. WITH A LARGE NUMBER OF INTERNATIONAL MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS WORKING IN KOSOVO; THE MAJORITY OF THE LANDMINE AND UXO PROBLEM WAS DEALT WITH WITHIN ABOUT 2 YEARS.  AN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION CAPACITY NOW REMAINS TO DEAL WITH THE LOW PRIORITY MINEFIELDS THAT WERE LEFT. MINE CLEARANCE WHAT IS A LANDMINE? A LANDMINE IS AN EXPLOSIVE DEVICE, DESIGNED TO WOUND, KILL OR OTHERWISE INCAPACITATE PERSONNEL; OR DESIGNED TO DESTROY OR DAMAGE VEHICLES. WHAT DIFFERENT TYPES OF LANDMINES ARE THERE? WE KNOW THERE ARE TWO MAIN GROUPS OF LANDMINES, ANTI 
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ALLY FACING.  WHERE THE PRIORITY CLEARANCE WAS AND WHICH MINEFIELDS NEEDED TO BE CLEARED FIRST. WITH A LARGE NUMBER OF INTERNATIONAL MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS WORKING IN KOSOVO; THE MAJORITY OF THE LANDMINE AND UXO PROBLEM WAS DEALT WITH WITHIN ABOUT 2 YEARS.  AN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION CAPACITY NOW REMAINS TO DEAL WITH THE LOW PRIORITY MINEFIELDS THAT WERE LEFT. MINE CLEARANCE WHAT IS A LANDMINE? A LANDMINE IS AN EXPLOSIVE DEVICE, DESIGNED TO WOUND, KILL OR OTHERWISE INCAPACITATE PERSONNEL; OR DESIGNED TO DESTROY OR DAMAGE VEHICLES. WHAT DIFFERENT TYPES OF LANDMINES ARE THERE? WE KNOW THERE ARE TWO MAIN GROUPS OF LANDMINES, ANTI 
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PERSONNEL AND ANTI TANK MINES. ALL LANDMINES HAVE SPECIFIC CHARACTERISTICS AND ARE DESIGNED TO OPERATE IN SPECIFIC WAYS; THEY ARE BLAST, FRAGMENTATION AND BOUNDING. BLAST MINES: THE BLAST EFFECT OF THE MINE EXPLODING IS THE MAIN CAUSE OF INJURY TO THE VICTIM. THE PMN ANTI-PERSONNEL MINE IS A BLAST MINE. FRAGMENTATION MINES: THE MINE HAS A METAL CASE, WHICH BREAKS INTO METAL FRAGMENTS AS THE MINE EXPLODES.  THE SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED OUT BY THE EXPLOSIVE FORCE OF THE MINE AND CAUSE INJURY TO THE VICTIMS. BOUNDING MINES: THE MINE, SIMILAR TO THE FRAGMENTATION, HAS A SMALL CHARGE THAT THROWS THE MINE OUT OF THE GROUND INTO THE AIR 
NORMALLY AT ABOUT HEAD HEIGHT.  THEN THE MAIN CHARGE EXPLODES AND SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED .  A TRIPWIRE USUALLY ACTIVATES THESE LANDMINES. WHAT ACTUALLY MAKES THE MINE EXPLODE? LANDMINES ARE USUALLY INITIATED BY PRESSURE OR TRIP WIRE. PRESSURE: DIRECT DOWNWARD PRESSURE ON THE LANDMINE WILL INITIATE THE LANDMINE. TRIPWIRE: A TRIPWIRE IS ATTACHED TO THE FUSE.  WHEN PRESSURE IS APPLIED TO THE TRIPWIRE, A PIN IS NORMALLY PULLED OUT OF THE FUSE INITIATING THE LANDMINE.  SOME LANDMINES MAYBE SET UP WITH MORE THAN ONE TRIPWIRE. HOW IS A LANDMINE LAID? LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED IN A NUMBER OF DIFFERENT WAYS: BY HAND, WHERE A LANDMINE IS 
USUALLY BURIED IN THE GROUND. BY MECHANICAL DEPLOYMENT, SPECIALLY DESIGNED VEHICLES ARE ABLE TO LAY LANDMINES. BY REMOTE DEPLOYMENT, MANY MODERN LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED BY REMOTE METHODS SUCH AS BY AIRCRAFT, HELICOPTER, ARTILLERY OR ROCKET.  LANDMINES DEPLOYED BY THIS MANOR WILL USUALLY BE SURFACE LAID. SCATTERABLE DEPLOYMENT, THESE MINES ARE DESIGNED TO SPREAD OF AS LARGE AN AREA AS POSSIBLE.  THE SOVIET PFM-1 ‘BUTTERFLY’ IS ONE SUCH EXAMPLE. WHAT IS A MINEFIELD? A MINEFIELD IS AN AREA OF LAND CONTAINING OR BELIEVED TO CONTAIN LANDMINES. IS IT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE A PROBLEM? NO, IT IS NOT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE CAUSING THESE PROBLEMS 
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– COUNTLESS PIECES OF UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO), SUCH AS GRENADES, MORTARS AND CLUSTER BOMBLETS, MUNITIONS THAT DID NOT EXPLODE, HAVE VERY MUCH THE SAME EFFECT. WHY DON’T ALL MUNITIONS WORK? FOR THE SAME REASON ONE MORNING YOUR CAR WON’T START; SO GRENADES, MORTAR BOMBS ETC MAY NOT WORK. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINEFIELD? A SURVEY TEAM WILL START BY IDENTIFYING A LANDMINE-AFFLICTED COMMUNITY. ONCE IT HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED THAT LANDMINES AFFECT THE COMMUNITY, THE SURVEY OFFICER WILL TRY TO IDENTIFY THE AREA BELIEVED TO BE A MINEFIELD. THEY WILL USE A VARIETY OF SOURCES OF INFORMATION TO LOCATE A MINEFIELD; THIS WILL RANGE FROM MINEFIELD 
RECORDS, LOCAL KNOWLEDGE OR OTHER SOURCES. MINEFIELD RECORDS; IF A MINEFIELD IS LAID IT SHOULD BE RECORDED AND MARKED; IN MANY CONFLICTS THIS IS NOT DONE.  THIS COULD BE FOR A VARIETY OF REASONS; BUT IS OFTEN BECAUSE SOLDIERS INVOLVED IN SUCH CONFLICTS ARE NOT PROFESSIONAL SOLDIERS, BUT CONSCRIPTS OR GUERRILLA FIGHTERS. AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, THE YUGOSLAVIAN ARMY PROVIDED THE UN WITH VERY ACCURATE MINEFIELD RECORDS.  THIS MADE THE TASK OF IDENTIFYING MINEFIELDS MUCH EASIER IN MANY CASES. LOCAL KNOWLEDGE; IS AN INVALUABLE SOURCE OF INFORMATION.  PEOPLE WHO LIVE THEIR LIVES WITH LANDMINES WILL KNOW WHICH FIELDS NOT TO USE AND WHICH TRACKS 
NOT TO DRIVE DOWN. A SURVEY TEAM WILL BE ABLE TO TAKE SUCH INFORMATION AND LOCATE SUSPECTED MINEFIELDS. HOW DO YOU DECIDE WHERE TO WORK AND WHAT LAND TO CLEAR? DEMINING AGENCIES MUST IDENTIFY AREAS OF GROUND THAT HAS THE HIGHEST PRIORITY FOR CLEARANCE.  THIS WILL BE DONE IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LANDMINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITY, NGOS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORGANISATIONS PRIORITISATION. AN AREA MAYBE THOUGHT TO BE MINED, OR THE FEAR OF LANDMINES IS DENYING THE USE OF THIS LAND TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS.  ONCE THE LAND HAS BEEN CLEARED IT IS THEN FREE TO BE USED. A LARGE PLOT OF LAND MAY BE DENIED TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS 
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2. Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2006

						      in 000 SIT

				    Note	 2006	 2005	 

ASSETS (A+B+C) 	 	 3.451.910	 3.216.393	

 

A.	 LONG-TERM ASSETS (I+II+III)		  57.777	 58.748	 

I.	 INTANGIBLE ASSETS	 1	 12.995	 2.464	 

II.	 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS	 2	 44.782	 56.284	 

III.	 LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS		  0	 0	

 

B.	 CURRENT ASSETS (I+II+III+IV)		  3.393.962	 3.157.645	 

I.	 INVENTORIES		  0	 0	 

II.	 Short term receivables 	 3	 229.622	 58.145	 

 	 1.	 Accounts receivable		  0	 240	 

 	 2.	 Sundry debtors		  229.622	 57.905	 

III.	 SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS	 4	 1.773.815	 1.427.467	 

IV.	 CASH AND BANK	 5	 1.390.525	 1.671.602	

 

C. PREPAID EXPENSES		  171	 431	

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (A+B+C+D)	 3.451.910	 3.216.393	 

A.	 Unrestricted Net Assets 	 6	 82.251	 43.844	 

B.	 Permanently Restricted Net Assets	 7	 3.019.805	 2.970.647	 

C.	 Temporarily Restricted Net Assets	 8	 46.025	 45.019	 

D.	 Short term liabilities from Operating Activities		  303.829	 156.883	 

	 1.	 Accounts payable	 9	 295.052	 145.637	 

	 2.	 Accrued salaries		  7.376	 9.012	 

	 3.	 Sundry creditors		  1.401	 2.234	 

3. Profit And Loss Statement for the Financial Year 2005

						      in 000 SIT

				    Note	 2006	 2005	 

+ A. Revenues / Donations	 10	 5.665.368	 5.496.043	 

+ B. Income from financing	 11	 613.513	 537.755	 

+ C. Extraordinary income		  16	 1.095	 

= D. Total revenues		  6.278.897	 6.034.893

 

- E. Costs of materials and services	 12	 5.498.924	 5.338.975	 

- F. Labour expenses	 13	 120.155	 120.950	 

- G. Depreciation		  17.395	 25.577	 

- H. Provisions for current assets		  0	 0	 

- I. Other expenses	 14	 1.098	 407	 

- J. Costs of financing	 15	 597.896	 512.233	 

- K. Extraordinary expenses		  5.022	 1.432	 

= L. Total Expenses		  6.240.490	 5.999.574

			    

= M. Surplus/loss before taxation		  38.407	 35.319	 

- N. Corporate income tax		  0	 0	 

= O. Net surplus (loss) after taxation	 16	 38.407	 35.319	

– COUNTLESS PIECES OF UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO), SUCH AS GRENADES, MORTARS AND CLUSTER BOMBLETS, MUNITIONS THAT DID NOT EXPLODE, HAVE VERY MUCH THE SAME EFFECT. WHY DON’T ALL MUNITIONS WORK? FOR THE SAME REASON ONE MORNING YOUR CAR WON’T START; SO GRENADES, MORTAR BOMBS ETC MAY NOT WORK. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINEFIELD? A SURVEY TEAM WILL START BY IDENTIFYING A LANDMINE-AFFLICTED COMMUNITY. ONCE IT HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED THAT LANDMINES AFFECT THE COMMUNITY, THE SURVEY OFFICER WILL TRY TO IDENTIFY THE AREA BELIEVED TO BE A MINEFIELD. THEY WILL USE A VARIETY OF SOURCES OF INFORMATION TO LOCATE A MINEFIELD; THIS WILL RANGE FROM MINEFIELD 
RECORDS, LOCAL KNOWLEDGE OR OTHER SOURCES. MINEFIELD RECORDS; IF A MINEFIELD IS LAID IT SHOULD BE RECORDED AND MARKED; IN MANY CONFLICTS THIS IS NOT DONE.  THIS COULD BE FOR A VARIETY OF REASONS; BUT IS OFTEN BECAUSE SOLDIERS INVOLVED IN SUCH CONFLICTS ARE NOT PROFESSIONAL SOLDIERS, BUT CONSCRIPTS OR GUERRILLA FIGHTERS. AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, THE YUGOSLAVIAN ARMY PROVIDED THE UN WITH VERY ACCURATE MINEFIELD RECORDS.  THIS MADE THE TASK OF IDENTIFYING MINEFIELDS MUCH EASIER IN MANY CASES. LOCAL KNOWLEDGE; IS AN INVALUABLE SOURCE OF INFORMATION.  PEOPLE WHO LIVE THEIR LIVES WITH LANDMINES WILL KNOW WHICH FIELDS NOT TO USE AND WHICH TRACKS 
NOT TO DRIVE DOWN. A SURVEY TEAM WILL BE ABLE TO TAKE SUCH INFORMATION AND LOCATE SUSPECTED MINEFIELDS. HOW DO YOU DECIDE WHERE TO WORK AND WHAT LAND TO CLEAR? DEMINING AGENCIES MUST IDENTIFY AREAS OF GROUND THAT HAS THE HIGHEST PRIORITY FOR CLEARANCE.  THIS WILL BE DONE IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LANDMINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITY, NGOS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORGANISATIONS PRIORITISATION. AN AREA MAYBE THOUGHT TO BE MINED, OR THE FEAR OF LANDMINES IS DENYING THE USE OF THIS LAND TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS.  ONCE THE LAND HAS BEEN CLEARED IT IS THEN FREE TO BE USED. A LARGE PLOT OF LAND MAY BE DENIED TO THE LOCAL INHABITANTS 
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4. Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year 2006

						      In 000 SIT	 

					     2006	 2005	

Cash at the beginning of the year 		  1.671.602	 526.406

+ Revenues 		  6.278.897	 6.034.893	 

- Expenses (less depreciation cost and cost of long-term provisions)	 (6.223.095)	 (5.973.997)	 

- Corporate tax and distributions of profit		  0	 0	 

			    

= Net cash flow from operating activities before adjustments		  1.727.404	 587.302

- Decrease in current liabilities and deferred income		  146.946	 85.534	 

- Increase in accounts receivable and prepaid expenses		  (171.217)	 11.009	 

+ Decrease in inventories		  0	 0	 

			    

= Adjusted net cash flow from operating activities		  1.703.133	 683.845

+ Net decrease in intangible fixed assets		  (11.113)	 37	 

+ Net decrease in tangible fixed assets		  (5.311)	 (2.964)	 

+ Net decrease in short-term financial assets		  (346.348)	 790.778	 

			    

= Net cash flow from operating and financing activities 		  1.340.361	 1.471.696

+ Increase in restricted net assets		  50.164	 199.906	 

			    

= Cash at year end		  1.390.525	 1.671.602

5. General Information 

The International Trust Fund for Demining and Mine Victims Assistance was founded by the Republic 

of Slovenia, as such represented by the Slovene Government, on July 21, 1998. The establishment of the 

International Trust Fund was approved by the Minister of Foreign Affairs under the approval No. ZML-

326/98 dated 22 July 1998. The International Trust Fund was entered in the Register of Foundations.

The headquarters of the International Trust Fund is located at Ig, Slovenia, and its implementation of-

fices in Bosnia and Herzegovina and Croatia. The Fund has a staff of 14 at its Ig headquarters, 4 in its 

office in Bosnia and Herzegovina and 1 in its office in Croatia.

The main activities of the International Trust Fund:

	 Organising the removal and disposal of mines and other unexploded ordnance;

	 Organising assistance and rehabilitation of mine victims.

The bodies of the International Trust Fund:

	 Managing Board,

	 Board of Advisors,

	 Director,

	 Honouree Board.

The members of the Managing Board as at 

31 December 2006:

	 Roman Kolar, Chairman, 

	 Mustafa Alikadić, member,

	 Kory Golob, member,

	 Dijana Pleština, member,

	 Dragiša Mekić, member,

	 Zvezdana Veber Hartman, member,

	 Darko Vidović, member,

	 Stanislav Vidovič, member,

	 Bojan Žmavc, member.

The Advisory Board includes representatives of donors and founders of the International Trust Fund.

The statutory Annual Statement of the International Trust Fund for Demining and Mine Victims Assist-

ance, Ig, for the year 2006 was prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

The financial year is equal to the calendar year.

BY ONLY A FEW LANDMINES, THEREFORE THE AREA CLEARED IS MORE IMPORTANT THAN THE NUMBER OF LANDMINES FOUND. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINE? THE MOST COMMON METHOD WILL BE A DEMINER USING A METAL DETECTOR. A DEMINER WILL USE A METAL DETECTOR AND A VARIETY OF OTHER TOOLS, QUIET OFTEN-SIMPLE GARDENING TOOLS. THE DETECTOR WILL INDICATE THE PRESENCE OF METAL IN THE GROUND. EVERY METAL INDICATION GIVEN BY THE METAL DETECTOR NEEDS TO BE CHECKED IN CASE IT‘S A MINE. SO THE MORE METAL FRAGMENTS THERE ARE, THE MORE TIME IT MIGHT TAKE. THE DEMINER WILL THEN MARK THIS SPOT PRIOR TO EXCAVATING ON THAT LOCATION USING A PROBE AND EXCAVATION TOOLS. IF HE OR 
SHE FINDS A LANDMINE, A SUPERIOR WILL BE INFORMED. DO ALL MINES CONTAIN METAL? NO, THERE ARE SOME THAT DO NOT CONTAIN ANY METAL AT ALL. SO HOW DO YOU CLEAR MINES WITHOUT METAL IN THEM? THE DEMINERS WILL HAVE TO CARRY OUT A 100% EXCAVATION OF THE AREA; OR DOGS MAYBE USED IN SUCH AREAS. WHO ACTUALLY CLEARS THE MINES? IN MOST CASES DEMINERS WILL BE VOLUNTEERS FROM THE LOCAL COMMUNITY, HOWEVER SOMETIMES THEY ARE DEMOBILISED SOLDIERS.  THESE PEOPLE WILL MAKE UP THE NATIONAL STAFF EMPLOYED BY MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS. ALL ORGANISATIONS THAT ADOPT-A-MINEFIELD (UK) FUNDS EMPLOY NATIONAL STAFF, BOTH IN OPERATIONAL ROLES AND OPERATIONAL 
SUPPORT.  MINE CLEARANCES ORGANISATIONS ARE COMMITTED TO CAPACITY BUILDING OF LOCAL STAFF; PROVIDING MANAGEMENT TRAINING NATIONAL STAFF, SO THAT THEY CAN ONE DAY RUN THE PROGRAMME WITHOUT THE PRESENCES OF INTERNATIONAL STAFF. MINES IN CAMBODIA, ARE A CAMBODIAN PROBLEM; IT IS THE KHMER PEOPLE, FAMILY, FRIENDS WHO ARE AFFECTED BY LANDMINES.  WHAT DO THEY DO WHEN THEY FIND A LANDMINE? LANDMINE PROBLEM WHY IS IT NECESSARY TO HAVE A CAMPAIGN TO CLEAR MINEFIELDS? LANDMINES CONTINUE TO EFFECT MANY COMMUNITIES WELL AFTER HOSTILITIES HAVE CEASED; ONE THIRD OF ALL VICTIMS ARE CHILDREN. THE PRESENCE OF LANDMINES CAN ALSO HINDER THE REDEVEL-
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The financial statements for the financial year 2006 comply with the International Financial Reporting 

Standards and basic accounting conventions i.e. considering the occurrence of business events, ongoing 

concern and fair and true presentation.

The polices and practices the Management applies in preparing and presenting financial statements are 

in compliance with the above stated basis whereas certain accounting polices are optional and the man-

agement decides independently to apply one of available variants. The summary of general accounting 

polices and practices applied by the company in reference to valuing separate items as follows:

	 The intangible and tangible fixed assets are at the beginning valued at their purchase value. The 

	 purchase value consists of purchase price, import and irredeemable purchase duties and costs needed

	 to put them into use. The tangible fixed assets are individually depreciated pursuant to straight-line 

	 method.

	 The quantity units of inventories of material and merchandise are initially valued at their actual 

	 purchase price, which includes buying prices, import and other irredeemable duties and direct 

	 purchase costs. The purchase price is decreased for given discounts. The inventories of materials and

	 merchandise are written down, if the book value exceeds the higher of market or net realisable value.

	 The receivables are initially shown as amounts based on relevant documents and assumption that they 

	 will be paid. The receivables are written down, if their book value exceeds their fair or realisable value.  

	 The receivables are revalued by reversal of writedowns if their fair or realisable value exceeds their 		

	 book value. The receivables in foreign currencies are in the financial statements stated at the mid 

	 exchange rate of the Bank of Slovenia for individual currency as at the balance date. The exchange rate  

	 differences represent regular financial income or regular financial expenses.

5.1 Summary of Accounting Policies and Practices

	 The short-term investments in equity and debt securities of other companies or state are initially  

	 valued at their purchase value whereas the short-term loans are valued at paid amounts. The 

	 revaluation of short-term financial investments presents the change of their book value and occurs 

	 as a revaluation due to improvement of assets, impairment of assets or reversal of impairment. 

	 The information on fair value and main characteristics of individual short-term financial investment 

	 shall be disclosed. 

	 The short-term deferrals include debtors and other assets and liabilities presumed to occur within 

	 one year and the occurrence of which is possible and the size reliably estimated. The deferred charges  

	 include current deferred costs or current deferred expenses and current uncharged revenues, which 

	 are shown separately and broken down into more significant ones. The short-term accruals and 

	 deferred income include short-term accrued costs and deferred income shown separately and broken 	

	 down into more significant ones.

	 The unrestricted net assets consist of the founding capital, retained earnings, revaluation of the 

	 capital and net surplus/loss of the year. 

	 Donations for specific purposes are presented as the permanently restricted net assets. Foreign 

	 donations are translated at the middle exchange rate of the Bank of Slovenia in effect at the balance

	 date. Donations are used for covering the costs of activities, for which they were granted.

	 Temporarily restricted net assets present the value of donated intangibles and fixed assets and are

	 used for covering the depreciation cost of donated intangible and tangible fixed assets.

BY ONLY A FEW LANDMINES, THEREFORE THE AREA CLEARED IS MORE IMPORTANT THAN THE NUMBER OF LANDMINES FOUND. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINE? THE MOST COMMON METHOD WILL BE A DEMINER USING A METAL DETECTOR. A DEMINER WILL USE A METAL DETECTOR AND A VARIETY OF OTHER TOOLS, QUIET OFTEN-SIMPLE GARDENING TOOLS. THE DETECTOR WILL INDICATE THE PRESENCE OF METAL IN THE GROUND. EVERY METAL INDICATION GIVEN BY THE METAL DETECTOR NEEDS TO BE CHECKED IN CASE IT‘S A MINE. SO THE MORE METAL FRAGMENTS THERE ARE, THE MORE TIME IT MIGHT TAKE. THE DEMINER WILL THEN MARK THIS SPOT PRIOR TO EXCAVATING ON THAT LOCATION USING A PROBE AND EXCAVATION TOOLS. IF HE OR 
SHE FINDS A LANDMINE, A SUPERIOR WILL BE INFORMED. DO ALL MINES CONTAIN METAL? NO, THERE ARE SOME THAT DO NOT CONTAIN ANY METAL AT ALL. SO HOW DO YOU CLEAR MINES WITHOUT METAL IN THEM? THE DEMINERS WILL HAVE TO CARRY OUT A 100% EXCAVATION OF THE AREA; OR DOGS MAYBE USED IN SUCH AREAS. WHO ACTUALLY CLEARS THE MINES? IN MOST CASES DEMINERS WILL BE VOLUNTEERS FROM THE LOCAL COMMUNITY, HOWEVER SOMETIMES THEY ARE DEMOBILISED SOLDIERS.  THESE PEOPLE WILL MAKE UP THE NATIONAL STAFF EMPLOYED BY MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS. ALL ORGANISATIONS THAT ADOPT-A-MINEFIELD (UK) FUNDS EMPLOY NATIONAL STAFF, BOTH IN OPERATIONAL ROLES AND OPERATIONAL 
SUPPORT.  MINE CLEARANCES ORGANISATIONS ARE COMMITTED TO CAPACITY BUILDING OF LOCAL STAFF; PROVIDING MANAGEMENT TRAINING NATIONAL STAFF, SO THAT THEY CAN ONE DAY RUN THE PROGRAMME WITHOUT THE PRESENCES OF INTERNATIONAL STAFF. MINES IN CAMBODIA, ARE A CAMBODIAN PROBLEM; IT IS THE KHMER PEOPLE, FAMILY, FRIENDS WHO ARE AFFECTED BY LANDMINES.  WHAT DO THEY DO WHEN THEY FIND A LANDMINE? LANDMINE PROBLEM WHY IS IT NECESSARY TO HAVE A CAMPAIGN TO CLEAR MINEFIELDS? LANDMINES CONTINUE TO EFFECT MANY COMMUNITIES WELL AFTER HOSTILITIES HAVE CEASED; ONE THIRD OF ALL VICTIMS ARE CHILDREN. THE PRESENCE OF LANDMINES CAN ALSO HINDER THE REDEVEL-
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	 The long and short-term debts are shown liabilities with reference to financing of the Trust Fund’s 

	 assets. The debts are financial liabilities, if lenders are lending the company money, or operating, if 

	 suppliers are sending to the Trust Fund inputs for performing its services. The financial debts present  

	 granted credits based on loan agreement, investment agreement or issued securities. The operating 

	 debts are supplier borrowings for purchased goods or services, debts for financial leases, short-term 

	 liabilities owed to staff, financiers and to the state. The long-term debts have to be paid back or settled  

	 within the term of over one year and the short-term debts within one year. The revaluation of the long  

	 and short-term financial investments presents the change of their book value and occurs as 

	 impairment of assets or improvement of debts. The information on fair value or main characteristics 

	 of individual debt shall be disclosed. 

	 The revenues are broken down into operating revenues, financial income and extraordinary income. 

	 Operating revenues and financial income are reckoned as regular revenues. The operating revenues 

	 present the utilization of permanently restricted net assets, fixed percentage of donated funds, granted  

	 for covering the Trusts Fund’s administrative and operating costs, revenues from utilization of 

	 temporarily restricted net assets for covering the amortization and depreciation of fixed assets and

	 other revenues. The financial income arises from long and short-term financial investments and 

	 receivables. The financial income consists of interest and exchange rate differences. The extraordinary  

	 revenues consist of irregular items that mark influence on the increase of regular results in the  

	 respective business year.

	 The expenses are sorted into operating expenses, financial expenses and extraordinary expenses.

	 Operating expenses and financial expenses present regular expenses. The operating expenses equal 

	 the costs of the period. The revaluating operating expenses (writedowns) occur in reference to 

	 tangible fixed assets, intangible long-term assets and current assets due to their impairment. The

	 financial expenses present the expenses for financing and expenses for investing. The extraordinary 		

	 expenses consist of irregular items that mark influence on the decrease of regular results in the 

	 respective financial year.

5.2 Notes to the Accounts

The notes relate to annual statements for 2006 unless otherwise specified in the text.
							     
					     2006	 2005	 
1.		  Intangible Assets 	 In 000 SIT	 12.995	 2.464

				     

The intangibles consist of long term accrued office space renal costs (11.481 thousand SIT), leasehold 

improvements (715 thousands SIT) and other intangibles (799 thousand SIT). 

The depreciation of leasehold improvements was calculated as to expected service life of the improve-

ments. Other intangibles were amortized on individual basis using the straight-line method. The amor-

tization rate at 20% was applied to amortise other intangibles. 

Donated intangibles equalled 12.163 thousand SIT.

The amortization cost of donated intangibles (491 thousand SIT) debit temporarily restricted net assets 

(Note 8).

OPMENT OF A COUNTRY AND ITS ECONOMY FOR MANY YEARS AFTER A CONFLICT. THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN THE GROUND IN AT LEAST 90 COUNTRIES. LANDMINES REPORTEDLY MAIM OR KILL 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR. THOSE WHO SURVIVE ENDURE A LIFETIME OF PHYSICAL, PSYCHOLOGICAL, AND ECONOMIC HARDSHIP. LOCAL COMMUNITIES IN LANDMINE-AFFECTED COUNTRIES OFTEN DO NOT HAVE THE RESOURCES TO CLEAR THEIR OWN LAND AND TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE CARE FOR THEIR LANDMINE SURVIVORS. THEY DEPEND PRIMARILY UPON FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM GOVERNMENTS, INTERNATIONAL AND NON GOVERNMENTAL ORGANISATIONS. WHAT IS MINE ACTION? MINE ACTION REFERS TO 
ALL THOSE ACTIVITIES, WHICH ADDRESS THE PROBLEMS FACED BY PEOPLE AS A RESULT OF LANDMINE/UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO) CONTAMINATION. MINE ACTION IS NOT SO MUCH ABOUT LANDMINES, THOUGH, AS ABOUT PEOPLE AND THEIR INTERACTIONS WITH A MINE-CONTAMINATED ENVIRONMENT. IT AIMS TO RECREATE AN ENVIRONMENT IN WHICH PEOPLE CAN LIVE SAFELY, IN WHICH ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT CAN OCCUR FREE FROM CONSTRAINTS, AND IN WHICH LANDMINE SURVIVORS ARE FULLY INTEGRATED INTO THEIR SOCIETIES. MINE ACTION COMPRISES FIVE COMPLEMENTARY GROUPS OF ACTIVITIES: MINE RISK EDUCATION (MRE) THE EDUCATION PROCESS WHICH AIMS TO ENSURE THAT COMMUNITIES ARE NOT 
ONLY AWARE OF THE RISKS FROM LIVING IN PROXIMITY TO LANDMINES AND UXO, AND TO ENCOURAGE PEOPLE TO BEHAVE IN A WAY THAT REDUCES THE RISK TO PEOPLE, PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT. HUMANITARIAN DEMINING DEMINING ACTIVITIES WHICH LEAD TO THE REMOVAL OF LANDMINE AND UXO HAZARDS, INCLUDING TECHNICAL SURVEY, MAPPING, CLEARANCE, MARKING, POST-CLEARANCE DOCUMENTATION, COMMUNITY MINE ACTION LIAISON AND THE HANDOVER OF CLEARED LAND. DEMINING MAY BE EMERGENCY-BASED OR DEVELOPMENTAL. SURVIVOR ASSISTANCE REFERS TO ALL AID, RELIEF, COMFORT AND SUPPORT PROVIDED SURVIVORS WITH THE PURPOSE OF REDUCING THE IMMEDIATE AND LONG-TERM MEDICAL AND 
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Changes in Intangibles in 2006:

	  	  	 			   In 000 SIT	
	 Item	 Intangibles 	 Donated
				    owned	 intangibles	 Total	 
1. Purchase value
	 Balance as at 1 January 2006	 7.045	 80.700	 87.745	 
	 Increase – new purchases 	 41	 11.481	 11.522	 
	 Increase – other 	 0	 0	 0	 
	 Decrease – sales, disposals	 0	 (40.499)	 (40.499)	 
	  Balance as at 31 December 2006	 7.086	 51.682	 58.768	 

2. Accumulation depreciation
	 Balance as at 1 January 2006	 (5.700)	 (79.581)	 (85.281)	 
	 Increase – depreciation	 (500)	 (491)	 (991)	 
	 Increase – other 	 0	 0	 0	 
	 Decrease – sales, disposals 	 0	 40.499	 40.499	 
	  Balance as at 31 December 2006	 (6.200)	 (39.573)	 (45.773)	 

3. Book value
	 Balance as at 1 January 2005	 1.345	 1.119	 2.464	 
	 Balance as at 31 December 2005	 886	 12.109	 12.995

					     2006	 2005	 
2.	 Tangible Fixed Assets	 In 000 SIT	 44.782	 56.284

 

Fixed assets are shown with their book value. The base value for depreciation equals the acquisition cost.

The depreciation rates applied for separate types of tangible fixed assets:
	  			    
- Computers and computer equipment	 33,00 %	  
- Office equipment	 12,50 %	  
- Vehicles	 15,50 %	  
- Other equipment	 10,00 – 50,00 %	

Changes in Fixed Assets in 2006:

	  	  				    In 000 SIT	
Item				   Intangibles 	 Donated
				    owned	 intangibles	 Total	 
1. Purchase value
	 Balance as at 1 January 2006	 43.000	 141.206	 184.206	 
	 Increase – new purchases	 3.631	 4.372	 8.003	 
	 Increase – other	 0	 0	 0	 
	 Decrease	 (5.804)	 (5.437)	 (11.241)	 
	 Balance as at 31 December 2006	 40.827	 140.141	 180.968	 

2. Accumulated depreciation
	 Balance as at 1 January 2006	 (31.903)	 (96.019)	 (127.922)	 
	 Increase – depreciation	 (4.225)	 (12.178)	 (16.403)	 
	 Increase – other	 (0)	 (0)	 (0)	 
	 Decrease	 4.880	 3.259	 8.139	 
	 Balance as at 31 December 2006	 (31.248)	 (104.938)	 (136.186)	 

3. Book value
	 Balance as at 1 January 2006	 11.097	 45.187	 56.284	 
	 Balance as at 31 December 2006	 9.579	 35.203	 44.782	 

The depreciation cost of donated tangibles (12.178 thousand SIT) debit temporarily restricted net assets 
(Note 8).

			   		  2006	 2005	 
3.	 Short term receivables 	 In 000 SIT	 229.622	 58.145	

This item comprises receivables for VAT in Bosnia and Hercegovina (159.437 thousand SIT), receiva-

bles from donors for (64.748 thousand SIT) and receivables for bank deposits interests (4.257 thousand 

SIT), advance payments (373 thousand SIT), advance payments for travelling expenses (98 thousands 

SIT) and other (709 thousand SIT).

OPMENT OF A COUNTRY AND ITS ECONOMY FOR MANY YEARS AFTER A CONFLICT. THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN THE GROUND IN AT LEAST 90 COUNTRIES. LANDMINES REPORTEDLY MAIM OR KILL 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR. THOSE WHO SURVIVE ENDURE A LIFETIME OF PHYSICAL, PSYCHOLOGICAL, AND ECONOMIC HARDSHIP. LOCAL COMMUNITIES IN LANDMINE-AFFECTED COUNTRIES OFTEN DO NOT HAVE THE RESOURCES TO CLEAR THEIR OWN LAND AND TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE CARE FOR THEIR LANDMINE SURVIVORS. THEY DEPEND PRIMARILY UPON FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM GOVERNMENTS, INTERNATIONAL AND NON GOVERNMENTAL ORGANISATIONS. WHAT IS MINE ACTION? MINE ACTION REFERS TO 
ALL THOSE ACTIVITIES, WHICH ADDRESS THE PROBLEMS FACED BY PEOPLE AS A RESULT OF LANDMINE/UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO) CONTAMINATION. MINE ACTION IS NOT SO MUCH ABOUT LANDMINES, THOUGH, AS ABOUT PEOPLE AND THEIR INTERACTIONS WITH A MINE-CONTAMINATED ENVIRONMENT. IT AIMS TO RECREATE AN ENVIRONMENT IN WHICH PEOPLE CAN LIVE SAFELY, IN WHICH ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT CAN OCCUR FREE FROM CONSTRAINTS, AND IN WHICH LANDMINE SURVIVORS ARE FULLY INTEGRATED INTO THEIR SOCIETIES. MINE ACTION COMPRISES FIVE COMPLEMENTARY GROUPS OF ACTIVITIES: MINE RISK EDUCATION (MRE) THE EDUCATION PROCESS WHICH AIMS TO ENSURE THAT COMMUNITIES ARE NOT 
ONLY AWARE OF THE RISKS FROM LIVING IN PROXIMITY TO LANDMINES AND UXO, AND TO ENCOURAGE PEOPLE TO BEHAVE IN A WAY THAT REDUCES THE RISK TO PEOPLE, PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT. HUMANITARIAN DEMINING DEMINING ACTIVITIES WHICH LEAD TO THE REMOVAL OF LANDMINE AND UXO HAZARDS, INCLUDING TECHNICAL SURVEY, MAPPING, CLEARANCE, MARKING, POST-CLEARANCE DOCUMENTATION, COMMUNITY MINE ACTION LIAISON AND THE HANDOVER OF CLEARED LAND. DEMINING MAY BE EMERGENCY-BASED OR DEVELOPMENTAL. SURVIVOR ASSISTANCE REFERS TO ALL AID, RELIEF, COMFORT AND SUPPORT PROVIDED SURVIVORS WITH THE PURPOSE OF REDUCING THE IMMEDIATE AND LONG-TERM MEDICAL AND 
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			   		  2006	 2005	 
4.	 Short-term Financial Assets	 In 000 SIT 	 1.773.815	 1.427.467	

This item comprises short-term deposits with the domestic bank:
Assets			   Interest rate (p.a.)	 Currency	  In thousand SIT	 
Donors assets	 4,95%	 USD	 1.491.837	 
Donors assets	 3,00%	 EUR	 167.748	 
Donors assets	 3,15%	 SIT	 44.114	 
Donors assets	 3,25%	 SIT	 14.037	 
Own assets	 3,15%	 SIT	 20.052	 
Own assets	 3,15%	 SIT	 26.000	 
Own assets	 3,25%	 SIT	 10.027
Total					    1.773.815	

All deposits have the maturity in January 2007.
 			   		  2006	 2005	 
5.	 Cash and Bank	 In 000 SIT	 1.390.525	 1.671.602
				     
 Foreign currency accounts		  1.349.715	 1.647.634	 
 Slovene Tolar accounts		  34.377	 18.697	 
 Petty Cash		  6.433	 5.271	 

					     2006	 2005	 
6.	 Unrestricted Net Assets 	 In 000 SIT	 82.251	 43.844
				     
Founding capital		  1.000	 1.000	 
Retained earnings 		  42.835	 7.160	 
Adjustment		  0	 365	 
Net Result for the Year		  38.407	 35.319	 

The founding capital of 1.000 thousand SIT was transferred to the International Trust Fund for Dem-

ining and Mine Victims Assistance on 22 July 1998, when the Ministry of Foreign Affairs approved the 

Founding Act.

Summary of Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets in 2006:

Item				    Founding 	 Retained	 Net result	 Total
				    capital	 earnings	 for the year
 

Balance as at 31.December 2005	 1.000	 7.525	 35.319	 43.844	 
Transfer to unrestricted net assets	 0	 0	 38.407	 38.407	 
Surplus transfer	 0	 35.319	 (35.319)	 0
Balance as at 31 December 2006	 1.000	 42.835	 38.407	 82.251

					     2006	 2005	 
7.	 Permanently Restricted Net Assets	 In 000 SIT	 3.019.805	 2.970.647
				     
Donations for demining and mine victims rehabilitation 
and other specific purposes		  3.019.730	 2.970.244	 
Deferrals		  0	 60	 
Other				   75	 343	 

Summary of Changes in Permanently Restricted Net Assets (in 000 SIT): 

 					     Donations (cash)	 Donated advances	 Total

Balance as at 31 December 2005		  2.970.244	 60	 2.970.304
Donations received		  5.926.752	 0	 5.926.752	 
Donations returned		  (21.838)	 0	 (21.838)	 
Interest credited		  93.929	 0	 93.929	 
Use of donations		  (5.491.797)	 0	 (5.491.797)	 
	 - Demining		  (4.068.369)	 0	 (4.068.369)	 
	 - Rehabilitation		  (900.418)	 0	 (900.418)	 
	 - Mine victims assistance		  (391.965)	 0	 (391.965)	 
	 - Training		  (29.032)	 0	 (29.032)	 
	 - Financing of the Trust Fund		  (86.723)	 0	 (86.723)	 
	 - Other		  (15.290)	 0	 (15.290)
Trust Fund’s Revenues 		  (156.165)	 0	 (156.165)	 
Other				   0	 (60)	 (60)	 
Exchange rate differences		  (312.566)	 0	 (312.566)	 
Changes in balance of donors pledging for activities 
temporarily financed by the Trust Fund		  11.171	 0	 11.171
Balance as at 31 December 2006		  3.019.730	 0	 3.019.730

PSYCHOLOGICAL IMPLICATIONS OF THEIR TRAUMA. STOCKPILE DESTRUCTION ARTICLE 4 OF THE MINE BAN TREATY (MBT) REQUIRES THAT SIGNATORIES UNDERTAKE TO DESTROY OR ENSURE THE DESTRUCTION OF ALL STOCKPILED ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES IT OWNS OR POSSESSES, OR THAT ARE UNDER ITS JURISDICTION OR CONTROL, AS SOON AS POSSIBLE BUT NOT LATER THAN FOUR YEARS AFTER THE ENTRY INTO FORCE OF THE MBT FOR THAT STATE PARTY. ADVOCACY AGAINST THE USE OF ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES. IN THE CONTEXT OF MINE ACTION, THE TERM REFERS TO … PUBLIC SUPPORT, RECOMMENDATION OR POSITIVE PUBLICITY WITH THE AIM OF REMOVING, OR AT LEAST REDUCING, THE THREAT FROM, AND THE IMPACT OF, 
LANDMINES AND UXO. WHY CLEAR LANDMINES? THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN 90 COUNTRIES. THESE REPORTEDLY KILL OR INJUR 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR.  IT IS HOWEVER DIFFICULT TO OBTAIN ACCURATE STATISTICS.  WE WON’T KNOW HOW MANY LANDMINES THERE ARE IN THE GROUND UNTIL WE’VE ACTUALLY FOUND THEM, AND MANY LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE NOT REPORTED BECAUSE THEY HAPPEN IN REMOTE AREAS AND HEALTH CENTRES DON’T EVEN FIND OUT ABOUT THEM. THIS IMPACT GOES FAR BEYOND PHYSICAL INJURY AND DEATH – IT INCLUDES VIRTUALLY EVERY ASPECT OF LIFE AND PREVENTS MINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITIES FROM FULLY RECOVERING AFTER ARMED CONFLICTS HAVE ENDED. 
ABOUT ONE THIRD OF ALL LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE CHILDREN.  MANY MORE LOSE PARENTS OR OTHER FAMILY MEMBERS AND SUDDENLY FIND THEMSELVES RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING FOR THE FAMILY. IN ADDITION, LANDMINES HINDER INFRASTRUCTURE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, THEY INCREASE A COUNTRY’S DEPENDENCY ON INTERNATIONAL AID, BLOCK THE DELIVERY OF RELIEF GOODS TO AREAS MOST IN NEED, PREVENT THE RETURN OF REFUGEES AND HAMPER THE PROCESS OF PEACE AND RECONCILIATION. LANDMINES HAVE A KNOCK ON EFFECT TO OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS.  AID CONVOYS WILL NOT BE ABLE TO DRIVE ROADS SUSPECTED OF BEING MINED; THIS CAN MEAN AID FAILS TO REACH COMMUNITIES, 
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Summary of Changes in Permanently Restricted Net Assets in 2006 (in 000 SIT):
Donor					     Opening 	 Donations 				    Mine victims 			   Financing of 	 Returned 	 Interests 		  Exchange	 Donor pledge/	 Balance as at		
							       balance 	 received 	 Revenues 	 Demining 	 Structure 	 assistance 	 Other 	 Training 	 the Trust Fund 	 donations 	 Cerdited 	 Reallocation	 gains/losses 	 settlement of 	 31.12.2006
																				                    donors pledge				    
ADOPT-A-MINEFIELD 			   77.736	 105.684	 (3.574)	 (60.656)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 4.205	 0	 (10.714)	 0	 112.681	  
AMWAY					     3.534	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (358)	 0	 3.176	  
AUSTRIA					     199.593	 107.835	 (3.235)	 (163.622)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (3.684)	 3.849	 0	 36	 0	 140.772	  
AUSTRIA – MFA				    0	 4.792	 (144)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 4.648	  
BELGIUM					     37	 19.167	 (575)	 (15.842)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (2)	 0	 2.785	  
BH MAC					     118	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 118	  
CANTON BOSANSKO-PODRINJSKI GORAŽDE	 0	 3.063	 (92)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 1	 0	 2.972	  
BRČKO DISTRICT GOVERNMENT		  0	 79.448	 (2.383)	 (58.846)	 0	 (5.012)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 8	 0	 13.215	  
COORDINAMENTI DONNE			   1.193	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (1.193)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	  
CROATIA WITHOUT MINES			   198	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (20)	 0	 178	  
CZECH REPUBLIC				    0	 16.672	 (500)	 0	 0	 (10.605)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (336)	 0	 5.231	  
DAN CHURCH AID				    0	 11.542	 (346)	 (11.196)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	  
DIANA PLESTINA				    1.795	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (926)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 869	  
ĐURĐA OTRŽAN				    2.001	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 82	 0	 (204)	 0	 1.879	  
ELEKTROPRIVREDA HERCEG BOSNE		  100	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 100	  
ELEKTROPRIVREDA HZ HB MOSTAR		  621	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 621	  
EUROPEAN AGENCY FOR RECONSTRUCTION	 271	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (271)	 0	 0	 0	  
EUROPEAN AGENCY FOR RECONSTRUCTION - A	 51	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (51)	 0	 0	 0	  
EUROPEAN COMMISION - EC ZAGREB		  0	 39.879	 (1.347)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 4.100	 (9)	 (42.623)	 0	  
EUROPEAN UNION - 2003 –A			   120.583	 0	 0	 (181.569)	 0	 0	 (2.396)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 1	 63.381	 0	  
EUROPEAN UNION - 2003 –B			   0	 7.929	 0	 0	 0	 0	 308	 0	 0	 0	 0	 2.091	 0	 (10.328)	 0	  
EUROPEAN UNION 4- Interests			   12.363	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 904	 (5.869)	 3	 0	 7.401	  
FOUNDATION WORLD WITHOUT MINES		  5.397	 8.386	 (252)	 (4.648)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 2	 0	 8.885	  
FRANCE					     119	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 3	 0	 0	 0	 122	  
GLOBAL CARE UNLIMITED			   3	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (3)	 0	 0	  
HANDICAP INTERNATIONAL			   0	 13.008	 0	 0	 0	 (12.911)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (97)	 0	 0	  
NIGHT OF A THOUSAND DINNERS		  6.747	 9.770	 (293)	 0	 0	 0	 (3.584)	 0	 (90)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 12.550	  
KAMPOS IZTOK AND CIMERMQCIC ZDENKA	 0	 57	 (2)	 0	 0	 (55)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	  
INSTITUTE FOR REHABILITATION, REP. OF SLOVENIA	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (815)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 195	 (13)	 741	 108	  
IRELAND					     6.062	 28.750	 (862)	 (18.799)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 5	 0	 15.156	  
JAKI AND ŠČETININ ARHITEKTA (ARHEdoo)	252	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 252	  
CANADA					     276	 181.717	 (3.089)	 (25.192)	 (153.437)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 59	 0	 (40)	 0	 294	  
COMMISIION FOR DEMINING			   4.123	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (3.883)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 1	 0	 241	  
KOREA					     607	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (591)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (16)	 0	 0	  
LANDMINE SURVIVORS NETWORK		  0	 86.275	 (2.588)	 0	 0	 (83.592)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (95)	 0	 0	  
LIONS CLUB ZRINJEVAC			   0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	  
HUNGARY					    0	 3.763	 (113)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (120)	 0	 3.530	  
MARASKA					     0	 73.844	 (2.215)	 (68.988)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (2.305)	 0	 0	 (336)	 0	 0	  
MARSHALL LEGACY INSTITUTE			   0	 17.248	 (517)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (16.809)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 78	 0	 0	  
BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA			   0	 412.799	 (12.384)	 0	 (401.486)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 1.071	 0	 0	  
SLOVENIA- MINISTRY OF DEFENSE		  0	 17.100	 (498)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 16.602	  

PSYCHOLOGICAL IMPLICATIONS OF THEIR TRAUMA. STOCKPILE DESTRUCTION ARTICLE 4 OF THE MINE BAN TREATY (MBT) REQUIRES THAT SIGNATORIES UNDERTAKE TO DESTROY OR ENSURE THE DESTRUCTION OF ALL STOCKPILED ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES IT OWNS OR POSSESSES, OR THAT ARE UNDER ITS JURISDICTION OR CONTROL, AS SOON AS POSSIBLE BUT NOT LATER THAN FOUR YEARS AFTER THE ENTRY INTO FORCE OF THE MBT FOR THAT STATE PARTY. ADVOCACY AGAINST THE USE OF ANTI-PERSONNEL LANDMINES. IN THE CONTEXT OF MINE ACTION, THE TERM REFERS TO … PUBLIC SUPPORT, RECOMMENDATION OR POSITIVE PUBLICITY WITH THE AIM OF REMOVING, OR AT LEAST REDUCING, THE THREAT FROM, AND THE IMPACT OF, 
LANDMINES AND UXO. WHY CLEAR LANDMINES? THERE ARE ESTIMATED TO BE OVER 70 MILLION LANDMINES IN 90 COUNTRIES. THESE REPORTEDLY KILL OR INJUR 19,000 CIVILIANS EVERY YEAR.  IT IS HOWEVER DIFFICULT TO OBTAIN ACCURATE STATISTICS.  WE WON’T KNOW HOW MANY LANDMINES THERE ARE IN THE GROUND UNTIL WE’VE ACTUALLY FOUND THEM, AND MANY LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE NOT REPORTED BECAUSE THEY HAPPEN IN REMOTE AREAS AND HEALTH CENTRES DON’T EVEN FIND OUT ABOUT THEM. THIS IMPACT GOES FAR BEYOND PHYSICAL INJURY AND DEATH – IT INCLUDES VIRTUALLY EVERY ASPECT OF LIFE AND PREVENTS MINE-AFFECTED COMMUNITIES FROM FULLY RECOVERING AFTER ARMED CONFLICTS HAVE ENDED. 
ABOUT ONE THIRD OF ALL LANDMINE CASUALTIES ARE CHILDREN.  MANY MORE LOSE PARENTS OR OTHER FAMILY MEMBERS AND SUDDENLY FIND THEMSELVES RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING FOR THE FAMILY. IN ADDITION, LANDMINES HINDER INFRASTRUCTURE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, THEY INCREASE A COUNTRY’S DEPENDENCY ON INTERNATIONAL AID, BLOCK THE DELIVERY OF RELIEF GOODS TO AREAS MOST IN NEED, PREVENT THE RETURN OF REFUGEES AND HAMPER THE PROCESS OF PEACE AND RECONCILIATION. LANDMINES HAVE A KNOCK ON EFFECT TO OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS.  AID CONVOYS WILL NOT BE ABLE TO DRIVE ROADS SUSPECTED OF BEING MINED; THIS CAN MEAN AID FAILS TO REACH COMMUNITIES, 
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Donor					     Opening 	 Donations 				    Mine victims 			   Financing of 	 Returned 	 Interests 		  Exchange	 Donor pledge/	 Balance as at		
							       balance 	 received 	 Revenues 	 Demining 	 Structure 	 assistance 	 Other 	 Training 	 the Trust Fund 	 donations 	 Cerdited 	 Reallocation	 gains/losses 	 settlement of 	 31.12.2006
																				                    donors pledge				    
CANTON SARAJEVO - MINISTRY OF URBAN 
PLANNING AND ENVIROMENTAL PROTECTION	 0	 20.827	 (625)	 (11.977)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 1	 0	 8.226	  
SLOVENIA – MINISTRY OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS 2003	 3.007	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 3.007	  
MOBITEL d.d.				    0	 400	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (400)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	  
GERMANY					    54.970	 592.335	 (17.770)	 (480.946)	 0	 (4.421)	 0	 0	 0	 (10.528)	 0	 0	 (3)	 0	 133.637	  
NORWAY					     0	 1.090.777	 (8.112)	 (1.077.820)	 0	 (4.324)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (272)	 0	 249	  
NOVA LJUBLJANSKA BANKA			   2	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 2	  
COMMUNITY GORAŽDE			   0	 2.450	 (74)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 2.376	  
COMMUNITY ILIDŽA				    0	 12.251	 (368)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 4	 0	 11.887	  
COMMUNITY STARI GRAD			   39.669	 0	 0	 (36.269)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 5	 0	 3.405	  
RAIFFEISEN KREKOVA BANKA			   0	 1.000	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (1.000)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	  
SLOVENIA - MINISTRY OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS 2005	 6.647	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (794)	 0	 (3.478)	 (860)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 1.515	  
SLOVENIA - 2004				    3.883	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (3.190)	 (108)	 (372)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 213	  
SLOVENIA - 2005 				    22.372	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (3.356)	 (6.379)	 (1.840)	 (1.328)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 9.469	  
SLOVENIA - 2006 				    0	 90.000	 0	 0	 0	 (3.640)	 0	 0	 (76.736)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 9.624	  
SLOVENIA - 2006				    0	 43.000	 0	 0	 (4.078)	 (4.000)	 0	 0	 (7.709)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 27.213	  
ROOTS OF PEACE				    2.906	 0	 0	 (2.849)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (57)	 0	 0	  
ROTARY CLUB INTERNATIONAL CALVIA		  0	 1.437	 (43)	 0	 0	 (1.394)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	  
ROTARY CLUB WIEN - NORDOST			  0	 56.303	 (1.689)	 (54.617)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 3	 0	 0	  
SLOVENIAN TABLE TENNIS ASSOCIATION		  0	 1.023	 (33)	 0	 0	 (941)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (49)	 0	 0	  
SPAIN					     0	 71.890	 (2.157)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 2	 0	 69.735	  
SWEDEN					     8	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 8	  
SWITZERLAND				    445	 76.202	 (2.286)	 (74.030)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 100	 0	 431	  
UNITED KINGDOM				    182.075	 142.309	 (3.986)	 (133.137)	 (167.831)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 1.532	 0	 803	 0	 21.765	  
SERBIA					     0	 119.809	 (3.594)	 (116.212)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (3)	 0	 0	  
UNITED KINGDOM				    6	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (1)	 0	 5	  
UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM - BiH	 84.332	 13.911	 (417)	 (82.806)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (5.321)	 0	 0	 199	 0	 9.898	  
UNITED NATIONS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM - ALBANIJA	 0	 369.630	 (11.089)	 (357.388)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 182	 0	 1.335	  
United Nations Association of the United States of America (UNA-USA)	0	 201	 (6)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (195)	 0	 0	 0	  
CANTON CENTRAL BOSNIAN			   0	 24.501	 (735)	 (11.883)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 3	 0	 11.886	  
WALNUT CREEK				    495	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (50)	 0	 445	  
USA-10-ALBANIA				    1.433	 0	 0	 0	 (1.329)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (104)	 0	 0	  
USA-10-MACEDONIA				    496	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (456)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (40)	 0	 0	  
USA-10-MVA				    13.694	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (3.261)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (1.123)	 0	 9.310	  
USA-10-REGION				    3.321	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (18)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (336)	 0	 2.967	  
USA-10-SERBIA AND MONTENEGRO		  76.046	 0	 0	 0	 (6.388)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (7.504)	 0	 62.154	  
USA-10-CAUCASUS				    1.018	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (103)	 0	 915	  
USA-10/2004-ALBANIA				   13.650	 0	 0	 (8.400)	 (2.507)	 (1.662)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (708)	 0	 373	  
USA-10/2004-BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA		  224.161	 0	 0	 (86.117)	 (66.667)	 (9.484)	 (1.111)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (13.500)	 0	 47.282	  
USA-10/2004-REGION				    37.637	 0	 0	 0	 (26.516)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (3.084)	 0	 8.037	  
USA-10/2004-REHABILITATION			   116.986	 0	 0	 (882)	 0	 (61.151)	 (1.806)	 (3.800)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (8.437)	 0	 40.910	  

AND OFTEN-EXPENSIVE ALTERNATIVES HAVE TO BE SOUGHT SUCH AS AIRDROPS. CASE STUDY: NUBA MOUNTAINS, CENTRAL SUDAN IN JANUARY 2003, THE DANCHURCH AID (DCA) MINE ACTION TEAM, WORKING IN THE NUBA MOUNTAINS, WERE TASKED TO CLEAR THE ROAD FROM THE VILLAGE OF EL HAMRA TO THE VILLAGE OF UMM SERDIBA. THERE HAD BEEN TWO MINE STRIKES ON THIS ROAD, ONE DESTROYED A TRACTOR KILLING A NUMBER OF PEOPLE; THE SECOND VEHICLE TO BE HIT BELONGED TO THE JMC, THE INTERNATIONAL BODY MONITORING THE ‘NUBA CEASEFIRE’ BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENT OF SUDAN AND THE SUDANESE PEOPLES LIBERATION MOVEMENT/ARMY. ALTHOUGH THE ROAD HAD TO REGARDED AS MINED; THE LOCAL 
POPULATION HAD TO CONTINUE USING THE ROAD, IT WAS THE ONLY WAY THEY COULD GET TO THE MAIN MARKET IN THE AREA. OTHER HUMANITARIAN ORGANISATIONS WERE UNABLE TO ACCESS VAST AREAS OF THE NUBA MOUNTAINS; LEADING TO PROLONGED SUFFERING FOR THOUSANDS OF PEOPLE. DCA DEPLOYED A NUMBER OF DOG TEAMS ONTO THE ROAD, AND THE SUBSEQUENT CLEARANCE NOW PROVIDES THE LOCAL PEOPLE A SAFE ROUTE TO TRAVEL, THE JMC WITH SAFE PASSAGE AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF A ‘HUMANITARIAN HIGHWAY’ TO ALLOW OTHER ORGANISATIONS SAFE PASSAGE INTO THE AREA. IS MINE ACTION THE SAME IN ALL COUNTRIES? NO, IS THE SIMPLE ANSWER.  MINE ACTION DIFFERS FROM ONE COUNTRY TO AN-
OTHER. COUNTRIES SUCH AS AFGHANISTAN OR MOZAMBIQUE HAVE LONG ESTABLISHED PROGRAMMES; MINE ACTION HAS BEEN CONDUCTED THERE FOR MANY YEARS. OFTEN THESE COUNTRIES HAVE THERE OWN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION ORGANISATION; SUCH AS THE AFGHAN TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS (ATC). AFTER THE WAR IN KOSOVO, A RAPID MINE ACTION RESPONSE WAS REQUIRED.  A COUNTRYWIDE SURVEY WAS CONDUCTED BY A BRITISH MINE ACTION CHARITY.  THIS GAVE THE UNITED NATIONS MINE ACTION CENTRE A GOOD IDEA OF THE MINE AND UXO PROBLEM THE MINE ACTION COMMUNITY WAS ACTUALLY FACING.  WHERE THE PRIORITY CLEARANCE WAS AND WHICH MINEFIELDS NEEDED TO BE CLEARED FIRST. WITH A LARGE 
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Donor					     Opening 	 Donations 				    Mine victims 			   Financing of 	 Returned 	 Interests 		  Exchange	 Donor pledge/	 Balance as at		
							       balance 	 received 	 Revenues 	 Demining 	 Structure 	 assistance 	 Other 	 Training 	 the Trust Fund 	 donations 	 Cerdited 	 Reallocation	 gains/losses 	 settlement of 	 31.12.2006
																				                    donors pledge				    
USA-10/2004-SERBIA AND MONTENEGRO		  91.292	 0	 0	 (12.775)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (8.367)	 0	 70.150	  
USA-10/2005-ALBANIA				   163.480	 0	 0	 (58.547)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (16.401)	 0	 88.532	  
USA-10/2005-BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA		  530.017	 0	 0	 (197.831)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (46.668)	 0	 285.518	  
USA-10/2005-CROATIA				   192.091	 0	 0	 (172.439)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (10.373)	 0	 9.279	  
USA-10/2005-REGION				    80.972	 0	 0	 0	 (41.277)	 0	 (841)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (6.963)	 0	 31.891	  
USA-10/2005-REHABILITATION			   293.256	 0	 0	 (1.469)	 0	 (148.168)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (21.550)	 0	 122.069	  
USA-10/2005-SERBIA AND MONTENEGRO		  134.381	 0	 0	 (78.310)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (10.648)	 0	 45.423	  
USA-14- BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA		  2.067	 0	 0	 (287)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (201)	 0	 1.579	  
USA-14- CROATIA				    16.335	 0	 0	 (997)	 (2.022)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (1.520)	 0	 11.796	  
USA-14- YUGOSLAVIA				    12	 0	 0	 0	 (12)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	  
USA-14- REGION				    19.933	 0	 0	 0	 (976)	 0	 0	 (1.807)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (1.922)	 0	 15.228	  
USA-2006-ALBANIA				    0	 203.880	 (7.136)	 0	 0	 (10.164)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (14.446)	 0	 172.134	  
USA-2006-BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA		  0	 672.804	 (23.548)	 (86.124)	 0	 (5.412)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (46.289)	 0	 511.431	  
USA-2006-CROATIA				    0	 468.924	 (16.412)	 (306.150)	 0	 (2.587)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (26.302)	 0	 117.473	  
USA-2006-KOSOVO				    0	 22.427	 (785)	 0	 (11.166)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (1.247)	 0	 9.229	  
USA-2006-MACEDONIA			   0	 10.194	 (357)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (741)	 0	 9.096	  
USA-2006-REGION				    0	 62.897	 (2.201)	 (983)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (4.526)	 0	 55.187	  
USA-2006-REHABILITATION			   0	 302.762	 (10.597)	 0	 0	 (5.359)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (21.808)	 0	 264.998	  
USA-2006-SERBIA AND MONTENEGRO		  0	 203.880	 (7.136)	 (7.766)	 (2.625)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (14.565)	 0	 171.788	  
USA-BIH-2					     0	 0	 0	 0	 (2.415)	 0	 2.415	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	  
USA-ML-1					     6.140	 0	 0	 0	 (3.754)	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (529)	 0	 1.857	  
USA-INTERESTS				    89.344	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 83.295	 0	 (10.690)	 0	 161.949	  
USA-UNILATERAL				    9.227	 0	 0	 0	 (5.932)	 0	 86	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (716)	 0	 2.665	  
USA-US Technical Assistance			   8.658	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 0	 (865)	 0	 7.793	  

TOTAL					     2.970.244	 5.926.752	 (156.165)	 (4.068.369)	 (900.418)	 (391.965)	 (15.290)	 (29.032)	 (86.723)	 (21.838)	 93.929	 0	 (312.566)	 11.171	 3.019.730	  
										        

The donation balances were presented according to the mid exchange rate of the Bank of Slovenia in effect as at 31 December 2006.
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					     2006	 2005	 
8.	 Temporarily Restricted Net Assets	 In 000 SIT	 46.025	 45.019

				     

Summary of Movements in Temporary Restricted Net Assets in 2006: 
						      In 000 SIT

					     2006	 2005	 

Balance as at 01. January		  45.019	 62.322
Donation received		  15.853	 2.238	 
Differences (disposals, sales, reconciliation)				    
	 - Depreciation		  (12.669	 (19.918)	 
	 - Disposals 		  (2.178)	 (103)	 
	 - Reconciliation		  0	 480
Balance as at 31. December		  46.025	 45.019

					     2006	 2005	 
9.	 Accounts payable 	 In 000 SIT	 295.052	 145.637
				     
Accounts payable to foreign vendors		  291.074	 116.231	 
Accounts payable to domestic vendors		  3.978	 29.406	 

Accounts payable to foreign vendors in amount of 291.074 thousand SIT and accounts payable do do-

mestic vendors in amount of 392 thousand SIT debit temporarily restricted net assets.

					     2006	 2005	 
10.	 Revenues / Donations	 In 000 SIT	 5.665.368	 5.496.043
				     
Utilization of permanently restricted net assets – main activities of fund	 5.493.371	 5.326.074	 
Operating revenues, fixed percentage of donated funds		  156.125	 147.274	 
Depreciation/amortisation of donated assets		  12.669	 19.918	 
Other revenues		  3.203	 2.777	 

Other revenues of the Trust Fund consist of sales of tender documentation (2.811 thousand SIT) and 

other (392 thousand SIT).

					     2006	 2005	 
11.	 Income from Financing	 In 000 SIT	 613.513	 537.755
				     
 Exchange rate gains		  499.112	 482.146	 
 Interest received		  114.401	 55.590	 
 Others 		  0	 19	 

					     2006	 2005	 
12.	 Costs of Materials and Services	 In 000 SIT	 5.498.924	 5.338.975
				     
Materials		  16.414	 10.947	 
Services		  5.482.510	 5.328.028	 

The total of costs of materials and services debits permanently restricted net assets in amount 5.444.282 

thousand SIT.

Cost of services consist of (in thousand SIT)
					     2006	 2005	 
production services (de-mining, rehabilitation, others) 		  5.388.318	 5.227.067	 
reimbursement of travelling expenses to employees		  25.410	 30.220	 
costs of professional fees		  23.657	 21.326	 
cost of marketing, advertising, fairs		  8.500	 9.071	 
insurance costs		  7.119	 6.682	 
lease rental charges		  5.483	 9.022	 
maintenance costs		  3.064	 594	 
other				    20.959	 24.046
total				    5.482.510	 5.328.028

					     2006	 2005

13.	 Labour Expenses	 In 000 SIT	 120.155	 120.950
				     
Payroll expenses		  88.567	 87.918	 
Social security contributions and benefits 		  12.242	 12.505	 
Other labour costs		  19.346	 20.527	 

Payroll expenses consist of payments to employees of the Trust Fund’s Headquarters (72.234 thousand 

SIT) and payments to employees of implementation offices (16.333 thousand SIT). 

NUMBER OF INTERNATIONAL MINE ACTION ORGANISATIONS WORKING IN KOSOVO; THE MAJORITY OF THE LANDMINE AND UXO PROBLEM WAS DEALT WITH WITHIN ABOUT 2 YEARS.  AN INDIGENOUS MINE ACTION CAPACITY NOW REMAINS TO DEAL WITH THE LOW PRIORITY MINEFIELDS THAT WERE LEFT. MINE CLEARANCE WHAT IS A LANDMINE? A LANDMINE IS AN EXPLOSIVE DEVICE, DESIGNED TO WOUND, KILL OR OTHERWISE INCAPACITATE PERSONNEL; OR DESIGNED TO DESTROY OR DAMAGE VEHICLES. WHAT DIFFERENT TYPES OF LANDMINES ARE THERE? WE KNOW THERE ARE TWO MAIN GROUPS OF LANDMINES, ANTI PERSONNEL AND ANTI TANK MINES. ALL LANDMINES HAVE SPECIFIC CHARACTERISTICS AND ARE DESIGNED TO OPERATE IN 
SPECIFIC WAYS; THEY ARE BLAST, FRAGMENTATION AND BOUNDING. BLAST MINES: THE BLAST EFFECT OF THE MINE EXPLODING IS THE MAIN CAUSE OF INJURY TO THE VICTIM. THE PMN ANTI-PERSONNEL MINE IS A BLAST MINE. FRAGMENTATION MINES: THE MINE HAS A METAL CASE, WHICH BREAKS INTO METAL FRAGMENTS AS THE MINE EXPLODES.  THE SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED OUT BY THE EXPLOSIVE FORCE OF THE MINE AND CAUSE INJURY TO THE VICTIMS. BOUNDING MINES: THE MINE, SIMILAR TO THE FRAGMENTATION, HAS A SMALL CHARGE THAT THROWS THE MINE OUT OF THE GROUND INTO THE AIR NORMALLY AT ABOUT HEAD HEIGHT.  THEN THE MAIN CHARGE EXPLODES AND SMALL FRAGMENTS OF METAL ARE FORCED 
.  A TRIPWIRE USUALLY ACTIVATES THESE LANDMINES. WHAT ACTUALLY MAKES THE MINE EXPLODE? LANDMINES ARE USUALLY INITIATED BY PRESSURE OR TRIP WIRE. PRESSURE: DIRECT DOWNWARD PRESSURE ON THE LANDMINE WILL INITIATE THE LANDMINE. TRIPWIRE: A TRIPWIRE IS ATTACHED TO THE FUSE.  WHEN PRESSURE IS APPLIED TO THE TRIPWIRE, A PIN IS NORMALLY PULLED OUT OF THE FUSE INITIATING THE LANDMINE.  SOME LANDMINES MAYBE SET UP WITH MORE THAN ONE TRIPWIRE. HOW IS A LANDMINE LAID? LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED IN A NUMBER OF DIFFERENT WAYS: BY HAND, WHERE A LANDMINE IS USUALLY BURIED IN THE GROUND. BY MECHANICAL DEPLOYMENT, SPECIALLY DESIGNED VEHICLES ARE ABLE TO LAY LAND-
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Social security contributions and benefits include pension fund payments in the amount of 2.362 thou-

sand SIT.

Other labour costs consist of payroll tax (4.982 thousand SIT), employee travel and meal costs re-

imbursement (8.791 thousand SIT), extra vacation payment (2.876 thousand SIT), and other (2.697 

thousand SIT). 

Labour costs in the amount of 44.810 thousand SIT debit permanently restricted net assets.

					     2006	 2005	 
14.	 Other Expenses	 In 000 SIT 	 1.098	 407

Other expenses, in the amount of 37 thousand SIT, debit permanently restricted net assets.

					     2006	 2005

15.	 Costs of Financing	 In 000 SIT	 579.896	 512.233

This item consists of exchange rate losses (503.956 thousand SIT), interest costs (93.931 thousand 

SIT) and other (9 thousand SIT).

The Trust Fund increased its permanently restricted net assets for the amount of interest (93.931 thou-

sand SIT) on donated funds, pursuant to underlying agreements with individual donors (Note 7).

16.	 Allocation of Operating Results  
		  for the Year   	 In 000 SIT	 2006	 2005

		   
Retained earnings as at 1 January		  42.844	 7.160
Operating surplus (loss)		  38.407	 35.319	 
Reconciliation		  0	 365	 
Retained earnings as at 31 December		  81.251	   42.844	 

17.	 Potential Liabilities
The Trust Fund is the defendant in a lawsuit at the Ljubljana court of law. Claim amount to total of 8,5 

millions SIT. The ultimate outcome of the lawsuit cannot presently be determined, and no provision for 

any liability that may result has been made in the financial statements for the year 2006.

18.	 Post-Balance Sheet Events

In the period since the balance sheet date to the date of this report no events that would take effect on 

the fair view of the financial statements for the year 2006 have occurred.

Goran Gačnik

Managing Director

Ig, 16 February 2007
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MINES. BY REMOTE DEPLOYMENT, MANY MODERN LANDMINES CAN BE DEPLOYED BY REMOTE METHODS SUCH AS BY AIRCRAFT, HELICOPTER, ARTILLERY OR ROCKET.  LANDMINES DEPLOYED BY THIS MANOR WILL USUALLY BE SURFACE LAID. SCATTERABLE DEPLOYMENT, THESE MINES ARE DESIGNED TO SPREAD OF AS LARGE AN AREA AS POSSIBLE.  THE SOVIET PFM-1 ‘BUTTERFLY’ 
IS ONE SUCH EXAMPLE. WHAT IS A MINEFIELD? A MINEFIELD IS AN AREA OF LAND CONTAINING OR BELIEVED TO CONTAIN LANDMINES. IS IT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE A PROBLEM? NO, IT IS NOT JUST LANDMINES THAT ARE CAUSING THESE PROBLEMS – COUNTLESS PIECES OF UNEXPLODED ORDNANCE (UXO), SUCH AS GRENADES, MORTARS AND CLUSTER BOMBLETS, MUNI-
TIONS THAT DID NOT EXPLODE, HAVE VERY MUCH THE SAME EFFECT. WHY DON’T ALL MUNITIONS WORK? FOR THE SAME REASON ONE MORNING YOUR CAR WON’T START; SO GRENADES, MORTAR BOMBS ETC MAY NOT WORK. HOW DO YOU LOCATE A MINEFIELD? A SURVEY TEAM WILL START BY IDENTIFYING A LANDMINE-AFFLICTED COMMUNITY. ONCE IT HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED 

78



Regional cooperation of mine action stakeholders…
confidence gained.

Knowledge and skills through trainings needed… 
deliver them.

Children are the most vulnerable group in population… 
educate them. 

Dignity and ordinary life…
integrate into society.

Free affected land… 
reconstruct and develop. 

International Trust Fund for Demining 

and Mine Victims Assistance

Zabrv 12
1292 Ig 
Slovenia - SLO
Phone: +386 1 479 6580
Fax: + 386 1 479 6590
E-mail: ljubljana@itf-fund.si
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